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Corporate Structure
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Corporate Structure (Continued)

o AR (4)

Note 1: China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd. (FF B9 4t 3 [ 1= = (% [#]) 5 [R & T 22 &) (‘Tong Ren Tang Holdings’) is the ultimate holding
company of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (1L 7R [AI1= % 1 £ % /& Ik 17 F R 2 7]) (‘'Tong Ren Tang Technologies’ or the ‘Company’).
it AEHEREICZ (FE) GREFLA ([FBAF]) ILRACERNRERRGER LA ([EE-EREE] 2 [ZKRE)) 1R LER

NG

Note 2: Bejjing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited (3£ 5[] 1= % % 17 B IR 2 7]) (‘'Tong Ren Tang Ltd’) (stock code: 600085.5H) was incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC’) in 1997 and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in June of the same year. Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is the direct
holding company of Tong Ren Tang Technologies.

2 AERECERG ARG ([EE-ZRE)) (REAH : 600085.5H) R— NN EFLEFEARLEFE ([HE]) 7MKL - F1FENAE
FEESLZ AN LT BRI ERBREZEER N E]

Note 3: Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (1t 3R [F]{~ % ] %7 R 7 F]) (‘'Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine’) (stock code: 3613.
HK) was incorporated in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC (‘Hong Kong, China’) in 2004, listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange’) in May 2013, and transferred to the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange in May 2018. Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine is a subsidiary of the Company.

i3 ARACZEEFR LA ([EFEZEE ) (RERE  3613HO) R EEMFEFEEERFFTHE ([FEEE])FMAT - R
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* For full names of the subsidiaries, please refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Corporate Information

AEIkcgs

BOARD OF DIRECTORS wHY

As at 31 December 2020, the directors of the Company (eachthe RZZBE-ZZE+-A=+—H A AEEe([E
“Director”’) of the board (the “Board”) are as follows: EgES([EEDWOT -
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS Mo Ay # 3 )
Gu Hai Ou (Chairman) BEEB(EELR)
JinTao ® &

Ma Guan Yu HEF

Wu Qian R F

Wang Yu Wei TIEE

Fang Jia Zhi BXRE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE BoLEMATE S
DIRECTORS

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE

Chan Ching Har, Eliza BRIBE

Zhan Yuan Jing EIR%
SUPERVISORS Mo B

Su Li (Chairman) & F(EFER)
Wu Yi Gang Z LA

Li Yuan Hong Al
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PEEMANR
Wang Yu Wei (General Manager) TIRIE (ABACEE)
Yang De Chun =

Fang Jia Zhi BEXRE

Zhang Feng ik 8

Wang Yue F

Dong Ling Yun BEE

Zhang Jing Yan RRE
COMPANY SECRETARY 2w b
Zhang Jing Yan KRRE
AUDIT COMMITTEE HHREEH
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman) TRE(EE)
Chan Ching Har, Eliza BRIEE

Zhan Yuan Jing EIR
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Zhan Yuan Jing (Chairman)
Gu Hai Ou
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Gu Hai Ou (Chairman)
Chan Ching Har, Eliza
Zhan Yuan Jing

STRATEGY AND PLANNING COMMITTEE

Gu Hai Ou (Chairman)
Wang Yu Wei

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Chan Ching Har, Eliza
Zhan Yuan Jing

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Gu Hai Ou
Zhang Jing Yan

AUTHORIZED PERSON TO ACCEPT
SERVICE OF PROCESS AND NOTICE

Zhang Jing Yan

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

22nd Floor, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG
LAWS

DLA Piper Hong Kong
25/F, Three Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central Hong Kong

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716,

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Note: During the reporting period, Mr. Huang Ning and Mr. Wu Le Jun
resigned as executive Directors of the Company; Mr. Dong Ke Man
resigned as an employee representative Supervisor of the
Company. For details, please refer to the section “Changes of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in the “Report of
the Board of Directors” section of the report.
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Financial Highlights
A 265 B 22

A summary of the consolidated results and financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for each of five years ended 31 December 2020, as extracted from the audited financial statements of the Group, is set
out below:

Revenue A

Gross profit FEF

Profit for the year & JZ 518

Profit attributable to owners of the Company FiEi B A R B FEE
EBITDA BT E# 85 AT A H

Earnings per share (RMB) Bz (AR TT)

Dividend per share (RMB) &% S (A R#ETT)

Gross profit ratio F F| &

Net profit ratio }%FI| &
Current ratio R &)tk &

Quick ratio R Bj Lt 2
Liability/Asset ratio & &= B F &
Return on equity A& 2 [B] 5 &
Return on assets & & [B] ¥ 5K

Total assets & E 4251
Total liabilities B & & &t
Equity attributable to owners of the Company # 5B R A A RIFT A &
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Financial Highlights (Continued)
S 5 WL 22 (4)

ATRARBEREFRARATEE [ARENEE T TF+ _A=1T—HILABAFEZEHEEHNER
MBARRBE (REREAEEEEZRE)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT ARETT ARET T ARETT
4,607,369 4,476,449 5,059,638 5,025,183 4,665,295
2,067,710 2,054,495 2,427,979 2,525,542 2,365,984
786,507 741,390 1,005,853 969,892 850,989
467,553 417,650 677,815 666,666 595,654
1,261,436 1,124,592 1,310,469 1,273,398 1,114,013
0.37 0.33 0.53 0.52 047

0.16 0.16 0.18 0.17 0.16

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
44.88% 45.90% 47.99% 50.26% 50.71%
17.07% 16.56% 19.88% 19.30% 18.24%
3.04 4.49 4.95 4.88 4.98

1.85 3.04 3.30 3.17 3.21
29.15% 29.18% 25.52% 27.22% 28.09%
10.15% 10.00% 13.82% 15.01% 14.46%
7.19% 7.08% 10.30% 10.93% 10.40%
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTTT ARBTIT ARBETT ARBETIT
10,940,798 10,469,970 9,769,866 8,875,657 8,184,166
3,189,293 3,055,396 2,493,017 2416,115 2,299,058
5,731,549 5,527,255 5,316,652 4,816,620 4,403,184
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Chairman’s Statement

R R

I am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 for shareholders’ review.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period"), the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB4,607,369,000, representing
an increase of 2.92% from RMB4,476,449,000 for the corresponding period of last year; net profit amounted to RMB786,507,000,
representing an increase of 6.09% from RMB741,390,000 for the corresponding period of last year; net profit attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to RMB467,553,000, representing an increase of 11.95% from RMB417,650,000 for the corresponding period
of last year; earnings per share was RMB0.37 (2019: RMBO0.33); and dividend per share was RMBO0.16 (2019: RMBO0.16).

REVIEW OF THE YEAR

The year 2020 marks the 20th anniversary of the Company’s establishment and listing in Hong Kong, and is also an important year for
the Group to consolidate the achievements during the “13th Five Year Plan” period and set sail for the “14th Five Year Plan” period.
During the year, the new coronavirus (COVID-19) pneumonia epidemic (the “Epidemic”) rapidly spread worldwide, which made a
significant and constant shock on supply side and the demand side. Besides, the uncertainty of the market environment increased
sharply, and the downward pressure of the macro-economy continued to increase, which brought severe challenges to the
production and sales of the Group. However, challenges breed opportunities, and difficulties coexisted with hope. During the
prevention and control of the Epidemic, traditional Chinese medicines have been widely used, and people have built a deepening
awareness of health care and the concept of disease prevention and treatment, which also brought new opportunities for the
development of traditional Chinese medicine.

During the year, the Group effectively exerted the political and leading core roles of the Party Committees, continued to focus on the
development of the Epidemic, strictly implemented the national and local decision and deployment on Epidemic prevention and
control tasks, The Group carried out the Epidemic prevention and control with a strong sense of mission, and seized opportunities in
the time of adversity with strong development resilience, so as to promote the progress of various production and operation task for
the whole year, and escort the Group for long-term development. During the Reporting Period, the Group constantly paid attention to
the change of market, focused on market demand, actively explored the production and operation ideas under the situation of
normalization of Epidemic prevention and control, utilized the capacity advantage of newly built production base, closely combined
Epidemic prevention and control with stabilizing production and operation, so as to guarantee the product supply, and promote the
sales of products which restored the growth of overall performance.

During the Reporting Period, the Group carefully implemented the Epidemic prevention and control policy for China and overseas,
insisted on prevention and control measures under the normalization of the Epidemic to protect the health and safety of employees
and realised “zero infection” for all employees of the Group. In early 2020, in order to support the prevention and control of the
Epidemic, the Company actively performed corporate social responsibility by donating Chinese patent medicine products of
approximately RMB5.55 million to Beijing Charity Association and other institutes to help the Party and the country win the Epidemic
prevention and control war. Meanwhile, under the deployment of Beijing Municipal State-owned Asset Supervision and Administration
Commission, the Company produced a million silicone mask disinfectants in a short time, providing a solid guarantee for the Epidemic
prevention and control in Beijing. In 2020, the Company was awarded the title of “Outstanding Enterprises with Social Responsibility in
the Battle against Covid-19" and “Saluting the Heroes-2020 National Pharmaceutical Model Enterprise”. In addition, the Company
continued to make an all-out effort to support poverty alleviation and completed poverty relief tasks through consumption, which
demonstrated the responsibility of the Company as a state-owned enterprise.

8 TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. o ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

R (4)
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

R R T (M)

Looking back at the “13th Five Year Plan” period, despite of the challenges and changes, we took a pragmatic and forward-looking
attitude, carefully planning and progressively developing, and we thoroughly implemented industrial layout adjustment, continuously
promoted the marketing system reform, and deepen the product variety building, thus laying a solid foundation for steady
development in the long run. During the “13th Five Year Plan” period, the Group completed construction of two new production
bases, namely Daxing Production Base and Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan and realizing a relatively closed-loop operating
system integrating production and logistic distribution; the Group set up a marketing branch, further implemented channel planning,
refined supply for market demand, realizing the precise marketing through coordinated development various channels including
distributor channels, OTC channels, medical channels and E-commerce channels; The Group maintained steady development of its
major product series, including Liuwei Dihuang Pills, Jinkui Shengi Pills, Shengmai Liquor and other products, and realised significant
increase in sales revenue of the series of products such as Zhuangyao Jianshen Pills, Fuzi Lizhong Pills, Danggui Kushen Pills over the
beginning of the “13th Five Year Plan” period after cultivation in recent years, driving the transitional development from variety group
construction towards large-scale production and sales.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

In the future, China will fully promote the construction of a healthy China, keep equal importance to traditional Chinese medicine and
western medicine, energetically develop traditional Chinese medicine, and actively cope with aging population, which will bring new
development opportunities for the traditional Chinese medicine industry. The Group will stand at the new starting point of the “14th
Five Year Plan” period, adapt to the new situation and respond to the changes in a scientific and innovative way. Under the premises
of strictly adhering to the integrity and quality, the Group will strengthen the control of all links, strive to emit new vitality, and achieve
higher quality overall development with higher level of operation and management.

In the year 2021, the uncertainty risks worldwide caused by the Epidemic still exist, and intense competitive pressure remains in the
market environment of the traditional Chinese medicine industry. However, the Group will continue to fully promote the guidance
role of Party Committee construction, consolidate the development foundation on the basis of ensuring normalization of the Epidemic
prevention and control. The Group will also insist on demand-oriented development strategy, adjust to improve, reform to develop,
forge ahead with high quality development, build a refined supply and sales pattern, work hard to achieve the goals, and plan the new
development blueprint for “14th Five-Year-Plan” period for the Group.

I hereby would like to express my sincere gratitude and respect to the members of the Board and all the staff of the Group for their

excellent performance and unremitting efforts; and to all the shareholders for their continuous support to and understanding of the
Company. As always, we will try our best to reward the shareholders.

Gu Hai Ou
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
26 March 2021
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CEVTREE Yig

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year 2020 is an important year for the Group to consolidate the achievements of the “Quality Management Improvement Year”,
and to conclude the “13th Five Year Plan” period and set sail for the “14th Five Year Plan” period. During the year, the Group always
insisted on the main line of “adjustment, improvement, reform and development”, built the three cornerstones of “party building,
quality and integrity”, united together and made steady progress, withstood the adverse impact of the Epidemic on the Group's
development, achieved smooth and stable overall economic operation. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's revenue
amounted to RMB4,607,369,000, representing an increase of 2.92% from RMB4,476,449,000 for the corresponding period of last year;
net profit amounted to RMB786,507,000, representing an increase of 6.09% from RMB741,390,000 for the corresponding period of last
year; net profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMB467,553,000, representing an increase of 11.95% from
RMB417,650,000 for the corresponding period of last year.

During the year, the Group constantly enhanced the coordinated development with production bases in Beijing and Hebei, strove to
overcome the adverse impact caused by the Epidemic, combined with the change of market demand and the Epidemic prevention
and control situation, planned ahead, preserved inventories in advance and scientifically scheduled production, constantly enhanced
the orderly connection between each production process and timely adjusted product supply strategy and structure, accelerated the
improvement of overall productivity, effectively ensured products supply. In 2020, the Company achieved an increase of over 20% in
the overall production volume and production value of Chinese patent medicine as compared to the same period last year. During the
Reporting Period, the Company acquired Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Processing Base (“Processing Base”) located in
Daxing Bio-Pharma Industrial Base in Zhongguancun Technology Park District in Beijing at the consideration of RMB641 million in cash.
Daxing Branch Factory integrated with Processing Basein addition to the original production shop of Chinese medicine pills, which
forms a closed-loop of production chain from pre-treatment of Chinese medicine, production of pills to logistic distribution. Through
exploring the production technique of each product, closely analyzing production procedures and standards, Daxing Branch Factory
steadily improved the production capability and realised production for major products such as Liuwei Dihuang Pills (7SERHBEE A1),
Jinkui Shengi Pills (£ [E & & F1), Xihuang Pills (P8 & 1), and becomes the main production base of the Group. Tong Ren Tang
Technologies Tangshan in Yutian County in Tangshan City of the Hebei Province, is engaged in extraction of Chinese medicine, liquid
preparations and production as core business, and mainly produces Shengmai Liquor (AKX A AR &), Children Cough Fluid (72 &
% %) and other liquid preparation varieties. During the Reporting Period, Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan rapidly improved
extraction and production volume of liquid preparation and effectively promoted sales Shengmai Liquor (4 B& % A AR 4% ) and other
major varieties. Besides, Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan also actively gave a full play of its advantages, created market demand,
expanded products varieties and finished disinfectant production such as silicone mask disinfectant, wash free antibacterial hand
sanitizer and others.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B i e 5 4y i (46)

During the Reporting Period, facing the complex, ever-changing and competitive market environment, the Company still closely
monitored the changes in market environment brought by the Epidemic, focused on the treatment concepts of traditional Chinese
medicine of “prevention, control, resistance, maintenance”, paid close attention to the market demand brought by Epidemic
prevention and control as well as seasonal changes, kept variety as the core, and planned the product variety operation by combining
the product function and characteristics with the market demand. Meanwhile, the Company cooperated with famous E-commerce
platforms such as top 100 chain drugstores , Ali Health, JD Health, gave the full play to the advantage of retail terminal and
E-commerce respectively, actively carried out both online and offline activities under the theme of “Caring for Family, Caring for
Health”, “Dream Tong Ren, Energize Terminal’, etc.,, developed multi-dimensional distribution network channels through marketing
activities such as terminal promotion, live broadcast promotion, TV column cooperation and WeChat article publish, promoted offline
marketing activities, and expanded the exposure of the products, which effectively boosted the product sales volume and the growth
in sales revenue. During the year, the Company took online sales opportunities during the Epidemic period and acquired good results
in promoting each kind of products by catering for the demand and online shopping habit of various customer groups, and through
the E-commerce activities such as “New Year Festival Sales”, “618”", “Double Eleven”, which is in accordance with the development
trend of E-commerce and help to improve the market share and coverage of our products in E-commerce channel. During the year,
the number of products that achieved a sales amount of more than RMB5 million of the Group was 50. The number of products that
achieved a sales amount of more than RMB100 million of the Group was 9, which was the same as last year. Among major products of
the Group, with the restoration of the production capacity, the sales amount of series of Liuwei Dihuang Pills (75 BK 3 & #1) series,
Jinkui Shendii Pills (5 [E B & A1) series, Niuhuang Jiedu (4 EERF ) series, Xihuang Pills (FEE A1) series, and Shengmai Liquor (4K
RO BRI ) series, increased by 43.51%, 5.20%, 18.57%, 19.38%, 64.67%, respectively as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. The sales of series amount of Ejiao (PR 8 ) increased by 3.10% and the sales amount of series of Ganmao Qingre Granules (&X'§
B Eh $8 KI) series decreased by 29.62% due to the impact of the Epidemic prevention and control policies, as compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

In terms of scientific research on products, the Group is mainly committed to conducting secondary scientific research on existing
products, taking into consideration of curative effects of existing products and exploring the potential of technological improvement
and upgrading. In 2020, the Group carried out pharmacological research on Xihuang Pills (78% A1), Taizi Baoxin Liquor (A TR/ 0
AR /&), Yangxue Rongjin Pills (£ M 48 £ #1.) and other products, fully explored the potential clinical value of related products, and
provided scientific research support for their clinical application and academic promotion. Meanwhile, in order to enhance consumers’
experience, the Group adopted the “electronic-tongue” analysis technology to solve taste issues of some products, establish the taste
evaluation system of liquor of Chinese patent medicine for the products and preliminarily worked out a solution to improve the taste,
all of which provided scientific research support for solving key technical issues such as improving the taste of medicine. In addition, in
order to facilitate consumers’ daily use and carrying, the Group researched on increasing the single-dose packaging of some products
to meet the using habits of different consumers.
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The subsidiaries of the Company are engaged in manufacturing and distribution of traditional Chinese medicine products, food and
daily chemical products, production of Chinese medical raw material, medical services, distribution of medicine, etc. In particular, our
principal subsidiary Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine which is located in Hong Kong, China, adopts a strategy of driving medicine
demand by providing medical services and promoting culture at first to build a global layout with its base in Hong Kong, China, aiming
to continuously accelerate the internationalization of traditional Chinese medicine. During the Reporting Period, given the global
outbreak of COVID-19 and the weakened market consumption as a result of stringent prevention and control measures in various
countries, local consumption and tourism have been hit hard in Hong Kong, China. Amid the newly challenging environment for
economy, Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine decisively took a number of contingency measures. For example, it launched anti-
epidemic products, diversified online sales channels, enriched the portfolio of its products while investing more in marketing and
promotion. It endeavored to widen its income source and reduce its costs, enriched its ideas, strengthened its branding and product
promotion and minimized the negative impact of adversity as much as possible. During the year of 2020, the sales revenue of Tong
Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,170,364,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of 7.31%. Profit
attributable to the owners of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine amounted to RMB482,080,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of
1.49%.

Founded in 2001, the Company’s subsidiary Tong Ren Tang WM has been devoted to the natural plants applicable to the skin care for
daily use, whose main products are masks, creams, skin care products and daily chemical products. During the Reporting Period, due
to the impact of the Epidemic, the offline channel customers flow reduced significantly along with the change of consumption
demand, which affected the performance of Tong Ren Tang WM to a comparatively great degree. Facing the Epidemic impact on real
economy, Tong Ren Tang WM timely adjusted focus of sales, strived to take advantages of E-commerce channels, through integrating
JD, Tmall, Taobao and other online platforms, supplementing special business staffs and enhanced the width of product promotion to
drive the online sales of products. Meanwhile, Tong Ren Tang WM pushed offline dealers to upgrade their business model through
new policy which favourable to them, and supported them with new type of media to improve sales. During the Reporting Period, the
sales revenue of Tong Ren Tang WM amounted to RMB58,790,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of 29.80% and Tong Ren Tang
WM recorded a net profit loss. However, the online business development of Tong Ren Tang WM appeared virtuous upward trend, as
the exposure rate and recognition of its products were improved, and the portion of online sales revenue increased and operation
quality was gradually improved.

Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital and Nansanhuan Zhonglu Drugstore are wholly owned medical
institution and retail pharmacy of the Company, respectively. During the Reporting Period, Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional Chinese
Medicine Hospital orderly resumed the medical treatment in according to the relevant regulations of the superior health authorities
and on the basis of the Epidemic prevention and control with off-peak treatment and making appointment. Tong Ren Tang Second
Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital actively discovered new non-drug therapy projects, by newly developing massage, bone setting
and other special treatments as well as pediatric acupuncture service for children, to meet the diversified needs for patients. Even so,
the outpatient visits still decreased by 24% as compared to the same period last year, which led to decrease of revenue and profit.
During the year, Nansanhuan Zhonglu Drugstore adjusted structure of merchandise variety and increased product varieties to fulfill
different needs of consumers. However, affected by reducing business hours during the Epidemic period, customer flow reduced
which made an adverse impact on performance of Nansanhuan Zhonglu Drugstore to a large degree. During the year of 2020, sales
revenue of the two companies amounted to RMB197,399,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of 16.88%, net profit of the two
companies amounted to RMB4,331,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of 63.35%.

Based on authentic medicinal material production areas, the six planting subsidiaries take into consideration the regional and climate
characteristics, and in according to the planting and harvesting principles of the planting place and planting time, adapt the
cooperative planting method, take full advantages of local herbs, and provide around 20 authentic medicinal materials such as
moutan bark, catnip, bunge corydalis herb, radix isatidis, etc. for the Company. During the year, they continued to seek new planting
varieties based on the quality and quantity, added mint and other varieties for experimental planting, and expanded the cooperation
planting scale of moutan bark and other varieties, to meet the production needs of Chinese patent medicine of the Group. During the
year of 2020, the six subsidiaries achieved sales revenue of RMB216,548,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.96%. Net profit of
the six subsidiaries amounted to RMB13,148,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.02%.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has maintained a sound financial position. During the year of 2020, the Group's primary source of funds was cash generated
from daily operating activities and borrowings.

The Group mainly uses Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to make borrowings and loans and to hold cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB2,947,958,000 in total (31 December 2019:
RMB2,990,645,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's short-term borrowings amounted to RMB235,000,000 (31 December 2019: RMB35,000,000),
carrying an interest rate of 1.354% per annum (2019: 4.534%), and current portion of non-current bank borrowing and corporate bonds
amounted to RMB821,299,000 (31 December 2019: RMB105,198,000), totally accounting for 33.12% of the total liabilities (31 December
2019: 4.59%). Long-term borrowings amounted to RMB483,227,000 (31 December 2019: RMB1,223,571,000), bearing annual interest
rate of long-term borrowings at 3.412% (2019: 2.660%), long-term borrowings representing 15.15% of the total liabilities (31 December
2019: 40.05%). Of all the borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020, RMB1,056,299,000 will mature within one year and
RMB483,227,000 will mature beyond one year.

On 31 July 2016, the Company issued corporate bonds on Shanghai Stock Exchange with aggregate principal amount of RMB800
million, with a maturity of five years and a nominal interest rate of 2.95% per annum, also with the issuer’s option to adjust the coupon
rate and the investor's resale option at the end of the third year. The net proceeds from Issuance of the bonds (less all related costs and
expenses) amounted to approximately RMB798.56 million, which was used to repay the bank’s maturing working capital loan of
RMB100 million and to supplement the working capital of RMB698.56 million. The funds raised by the bonds were all used up in 2017.
On 14 June 2019 and 26 June 2019, the Company published announcements of the implementation of resale and resale results on the
websites of the Shanghai Stock Exchange respectively, which showed that no investor had resold the Bonds to the Company. On 19
June 2019, the Company published an announcement on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, in which the Company
decided to raise the coupon rate of the fourth year and the fifth year (from 31 July 2019 to 30 July 2021) to 4.35% with the method of
interest calculation and interest payment method remaining unchanged. The fair value of the bonds as at 31 December 2020
amounted to RMB804,088,000 (31 December 2019: RMB811,600,000) which is determined by reference to published price.

Capital Structure

The Group's capital management policy is to ensure the continuous operation of the Group with an aim to provide returns for the
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets of the Group amounted to RMB10,940,798,000 (31 December 2019: RMB10,469,970,000). The
funds of the Group comprised non-current liabilities of RMB734,369,000 (31 December 2019: RMB1,365,734,000), current liabilities of
RMB2,454,924,000 (31 December 2019: RMB1,689,662,000), equity attributable to owners of the Company of RMB5,731,549,000 (31
December 2019: RMB5,527,255,000) and non-controlling interests of RMB2,019,956,000 (31 December 2019: RMB1,887,319,000).

In 2020, the Group's funds were mainly used for production and operation activities, purchase of property, plant and equipment and
land use rights repayment of borrowings and payment of cash dividends, etc.
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Liquidity

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's liquidity ratio (the ratio of current assets to current liabilities) was 3.04 (31 December 2019: 4.49),
reflecting that the Group had sufficient financial resources. The Group's quick ratio (the ratio of liquid assets to current liabilities) was
1.85 (31 December 2019: 3.04). The decrease in quick ratio was mainly due to non-current borrowings reclassified to current portion.
The Group's trade receivables turnover ratio (the ratio of revenue to the average of trade receivables balance) was 5.59 (31 December
2019: 8.87), reflecting that the Group’'s trade receivables were liquid. The Group's trade payables turnover ratio (the ratio of cost of sales
to the average of trade payables balance) was 4.06 (31 December 2019: 3.92), reflecting that the Group had a relatively strong ability to
use funding from suppliers for no consideration. The Group's inventory turnover ratio (the ratio of revenue to the average of inventory
balance) was 1.82 (31 December 2019: 1.91), reflecting that the inventory had a high turnover rate.

Gearing Ratios

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's gearing ratio (the ratio of total
borrowings to equity attributable to owners of the Company) was 0.27 (31 December 2019: 0.25).

Expenses and Expense Ratio

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's distribution expenses amounted to RMB699,931,000 (2019: RMB718,684,000) and
the distribution expense ratio, i.e. the ratio of distribution expenses to revenue, was 0.15 (2019: 0.16). The decrease in distribution
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in the cost of labour.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s administrative expenses amounted to RMB402,521,000 (2019: RMB397,551,000)
and the administrative expense ratio, i.e. the ratio of administrative expenses to revenue, was 0.09 (2019: 0.09). The increase in
administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase in the research and development expenses and depreciation expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s net financial costs amounted to RMB3,479,000 (2019: net financial income
amounted to RMB6,814,000) and the financial costs ratio, i.e. the ratio of net financial costs to revenue, was 0.0008 (the 2019 ratio of
finance income to revenue: 0.0015). The increase in net finance costs was mainly due to no capitalisation of interests during this year.

Gross Margin and Net Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the gross margin of the Group was 44.88% (2019: 45.90%), while the net profit margin was
17.07% (2019: 16.56%).

Research and Development Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the research and development expenses (excluding employee benefit expense, depreciation
and amortisation expense) of the Group were RMB65,548,000 (2019: RMB28,316,000), accounting for 0.85% of net assets (2019: 0.38%)
and 1.42% of revenue (2019: 0.63%), respectively. The research and development expenses including employee benefit expense,
depreciation and amortisation expense were RMB103,641,000 (2019: RMB61,248,000), accounting for 1.34% of net assets (2019: 0.83%)
and 2.25% of revenue (2019: 1.37%), respectively.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's capital expenditure incurred amounted to RMB781 million (2019: RMB276 million),
primarily used for the acquisition of Processing Base.

Pledges over Assets of the Group

As at 31 December 2020, RMB9,472,000 (31 December 2019: RMB9,438,000) of the Group's assets was pledged as security for long-
term borrowing of RMB49,000 (31 December 2019: RMB49,000).
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group operates internationally and foreign exchange risk arising from trading business, recognised assets and liabilities, and net
investments in foreign operations, primarily related to the HKD. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
The Group mainly manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the fluctuation of the exchange rates.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the capital commitments of the Group relating to the constructions of production facilities, which had been
contracted for but had not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, amounted to approximately
RMB43,208,000 (31 December 2019: RMB215,523,000).

Significant Investment

During the year of 2020, the Group did not have any significant investment. As of the date of this announcement, the Group does not
have any plan for material investments or purchase of capital assets.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

During the year of 2020, the Group did not have any material acquisition and disposal in relation to subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates.
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PROSPECTS

In the year 2021, the uncertainty of market and the downward pressure of the economy still exist as the Epidemic are still affecting the
world. Despite of this, the Group will continue to insist on the concept of high-quality development, further improve the political
stance and strengthen the responsibility performance, and lay the political foundation for high quality development of enterprise
under the promise of normalization of the Epidemic prevention and control. The Group will keep the good tradition while stay
innovative and be the expert of the business while comprehensively promoting development of Party building, marketing, production
and supply, basic management and subsidiaries operation, and building a new pattern for “14th Five Year Plan” development.

In the year 2021, the Group will keep focusing on market demand, fully display advantages of the brand and group of variety, take
large-variety-strategy as the major focus of the business, make customized marketing plan in combination with market demand and
orientation for different kinds of varieties, and realise the precise marketing for major products. Meanwhile, the Group will keep
improving the width of large variety, adapt variety cultivation and introduction, emphasize advantages of serialized products, focus on
serialized products such as kidney diseases, heart and brain diseases, tonic, nourishing lungs, anti-cancers, infant medicines and others,
aim at the characteristics of different kinds of products, integrate online and offline resources to implement coordinated marketing
strategies, customize marketing plan from market, price, terminal, advertisement and other methods, fully release the potential of
variety sales, concentrate on building serialized products with high recognition and good reputation in the market to drive up the
sales volume. In addition, the Group will combine needs for medicine and market demand under the normalization of Epidemic
prevention and control, scientifically adapt to and actively seek for the change as well as explore the brand new development path
such as Chinese medicine granules and Chinese medicine disinfectant, and motivate the continuous development of the Group.

In the year 2021, the Group will strengthen standardized corporate governance by applying a problem-orientated strategy, fully review
and evaluate the problems and shortcomings presented during the “13th Five Year Plan” period, conduct a detailed analysis of the
causes and propose development goals and specific supporting measures of “14th Five Year Plan” period. On the one hand, the Group
will continue to promote the governance system and governance capacity, unswervingly follow the path of high quality development,
promote institutionalized management, strengthen talent build and improve the supporting assessment system to provide resource
support. On the other hand, the Group will put market demand at the core of production supply, strengthen the connection between
work process, implement strict assessment, to ensure the stability of production and supply. In addition, the Group will keep goal-
oriented and set up a new market-oriented development idea. Subsidiaries of the Group will continuously learn from the advanced
models of leading enterprises in the industry, timely follow up the market changes, grasp the hotspot in the market, broaden the
development ideas, take the initiative to explore and innovate, clarify the development objectives and supporting measures, continue
to expand the product recognition in the market and improve the ability of self-management.

In the future, the Group will stand on the new start point of the “14th Five Year Plan” period, adapt to the new situation, implement the

new concept and build a new pattern, strive to resolve the adverse impact of the Epidemic on the production and operation, ensure
smooth and orderly operation of the economy, and seek new development.
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Report of the Board of Directors

Ak

The Board is pleased to present the 2020 annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of Chinese medicine products. Further discussion and analysis of these
activities, including a discussion of using of key financial performance indicators for a fair review of the Group’s business and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 12 to 25 of this report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the Board of Directors.

The distribution of income of the Group is set out below:

Sales of Chinese medicine products 7 & E R $HE WA
— Mainland China 7 # B A3
— Outside Mainland China &/ B8 79 3 A 1

Subtotal /N5t

Advertising services income &£ RIE U A
— Mainland China 7 # B A i

Services income fRFE U A
— Mainland China 7R B A b
— Outside Mainland China &/ B8 73 3 A 1

Subtotal /N5t

Royalty fee income f i {55 FREU A
— Outside Mainland China B PR B A 3 A S

Total 55

26 TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. o ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

s (8

EEeMARE_Z_ZEFFHNAEBHE_T_TF+ _A=T—"H L FELERNBEHRE -

S B S 56 5 [l
AEETZRELERHETEREREY - HEBNE—THNTR (BRERVKRRRRETHAEEE
BOBERLAREEBERRAENERNFNR) ERAREN2EZ 25 ANEEEIRENTH - Zilwme
AEZGHREN 7 -

REBWAD T

2020 2019

Ratio to the Ratio to the

RMB’000 total Income RMB'000 total Income
AR%ET R A B AREFIT (F U PN
3,788,289 82.22% 3,443,104 76.91%
758,659 16.47% 951,826 21.26%
4,546,948 98.69% 4,394,930 98.17%
23,616 0.51% 32,053 0.72%
6,525 0.14% 6,790 0.15%
30,100 0.65% 42458 0.95%
36,625 0.79% 49,248 1.10%
180 0.01% 218 0.01%
4,607,369 100.00% 4,476,449 100.00%
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RESULTS

The results and financial position of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out on pages 114 to 232 of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND TAX

The Board proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Final Dividend") of RMBO.16 (tax inclusive) per share
based on the total number of the Company'’s issued and fully paid-up shares of 1,280,784,000 as at the end of 2020, totaling
RMB204,925,440 (2019: a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of RMBO0.16 (tax inclusive) per share based on the total
number of the Company’s issued and fully paid-up shares of 1,280,784,000, totaling RMB204,925,440). The profit distribution proposal
is subject to the approval by the shareholders at the annual general meeting (the "AGM") for the year 2020. The Company is expected
to complete the dividend distribution on or before 31 August 2021.

As for non-resident enterprise shareholders (other than shareholders who have invested in the shares of the Company through the
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect) as appeared on the H share register of shareholders of the Company, the Company will
withhold corporate income tax at the rate of 10% when distributing the Final Dividend in accordance with the Notice on Issues
concerning Withholding the Enterprise Income Tax on the Dividends Paid by Chinese Resident Enterprises to H-Share Holders Which
Are Overseas Non-resident Enterprises (Guo Shui Han [2008] N0.897) published by the State Administration of Taxation. Any shares
registered in the name of the non-individual registered shareholders, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or
other groups and organisations, will be treated as being held by non-resident enterprise shareholders, thus their dividends receivables
will be subject to the withholding of the corporate income tax.

As for the individual shareholders (other than shareholders who have invested in the shares of the Company through the Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect) whose names appear on the H share register of shareholders of the Company, the Company will withhold
10% of the Final Dividend as individual income tax when distributing the Final Dividend in accordance with the Notice on the Issues
Concerning the Administration of Individual Income Tax Collection after the Annulment of Document Guo Shui Fa [1993] No.045 (Guo
Shui Han [2011] No.348), unless otherwise specified by the relevant tax regulations, tax agreements or the aforesaid notice.

As for the individual shareholders or securities investment funds who have invested in the H shares of the Company through
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, when distributing the Final Dividend, the Company shall withhold individual income tax at the
rate of 20% in accordance with the register provided by China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited, according to
the Circular on the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect (Cai Shui [2016] No.127)
issued by the Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation and China’s Securities Regulatory Commission on 5 November 2016.

As of the date of this report, no arrangement was reached pursuant to which any shareholder waived or agreed to waive any dividend.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, revenue from the five largest customers and the largest customer of the Group accounted for 53.88%
and 27.45% (2019: 47.83% and 21.43%) of the Group's total revenue, respectively.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings and its subsidiaries was the largest customer of the Group. During the Reporting Period, the revenue from
this customer was RMB1,264,766,000 accounting for 27.45% of the Group's total revenue of this year. Besides, Tong Ren Tang Holdings
has interest in Client B Group as listed in the table below. During the Reporting Period, details of the revenue from the five largest
customers of the Group are set out below:

Customer Name Major products or service provided
EFEW HENIEER %%

Tong Ren Tang Holdings and its subsidiaries Chinese medicine products A B2 i

SEARREFAF

Client A Group BF A [E Chinese medicine products A B
Client B Group B/~ B E Chinese medicine products 7 %42 &
Client C Group B C£E Chinese medicine products /1 %
Client D Group % F D& Chinese medicine products /1 %2

During the Reporting Period, purchases from the five largest suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for 23.33% and
7.91% (2019: 29.15% and 13.18%) of the total purchases of the Group, respectively.

Tong Ren Tang Holdings and its subsidiaries was the largest supplier of the Group. During the Reporting Period, the amount of
purchase by the Group from this supplier was RMB158,809,000, accounting for 7.91% of the Group’s total amount of purchase in this
year.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of Directors, their close associates, or any shareholder (who, to the knowledge of the Board, owns
more than 5% of the issuers’ share capital) has any interest in the five largest suppliers or customers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable resources and the realisation and promotion of employees’ value will help to
achieve the Group's overall goals. Remunerations of the Group's employees are determined with reference to the prevailing market
level as well as the competency, qualifications and experience of individual employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual
performance during the year will also be paid to the employees as recognition of and a reward for their contributions to the Group.
The Group attaches great importance to development and growth of talents and provides employees with skill training, career
planning and development opportunities, seeking to create a platform for mutual growth and sharing of development between the
Group and employees.

The Group cherishes its solid partnership with suppliers. It aims to achieve win-win results in cooperation with all relevant parties
through operational capability and improving quality of product and service for procurement activities. The Group formulated a
rigorous supplier selection process and was based on ensuring that supplier qualification meets the requirements, the quality
department, in collaboration with related units, conducts assessment and on-site audit on suppliers. Only suppliers who have passed
the audit and assessment may be listed in the Qualified Supplier List, and allowed to provide products.
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The Group understands that maintaining good relationships with customers is essential for the Group’s overall development. For the
purpose of maintaining the competitiveness of the brand and product of the Group, the Group adheres to the principle of honesty
and integrity to build a reliable service environment for the customers, and has always been dedicated to provide our customers with
quality products and services.

The Group is also aware that the changes in the procurement and supply strategy of relevant customers and suppliers, or the failure of
the quality of the Group's products and services to continuously meet the needs of its customers, or the failure of the quality of the
products of the suppliers to meet the needs of the Group, may result in the changes in the partnership between the Group and its
major customers and suppliers, which may in turn adversely affect the Group's production and operation. The Group continues to
develop new customers and new suppliers, expand new channels and tap into new markets, with a view to reducing the risk of
reliance on them. During the Reporting Period, there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and
customers.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the reserves of the Company available for distribution amounted to approximately RMB2,449,337,000 (31
December 2019: approximately RMB2,311,024,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group for the year of 2020 are set out in Note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

DONATIONS

Cash donations made by the Group during the Reporting Period amounted to RMB1,760,000 (2019: RMB132,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no change in the share capital of the Company during the year of 2020. The details are set out in Note 17 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

During the year of 2020 and as at the date of this report, based on the public information available to the Company and as far as the
Directors are aware, the Company has satisfied the public float requirement under Rule 8.08 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than the Directors, the supervisors of the Company (the “Supervisor”) and the
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the
"SFO"):

Name of shareholder Capacity

RN ETE 54

Tong Ren Tang Ltd. M= A= & fg {5 (W2 Beneficial Owner Bz G A

Tong Ren Tang Holdings®e? £ [& /A &) 2 Interest to corporation controlled by the substantial shareholder

KRR B P4 ) B9 B A A 25
Beneficial Owner E# A A

Beneficial Owner Bz AE A

Total/ & 3% -

Yuan Sai Nan RES Beneficial Owner Bz A A

Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd. e/ 2 Investment manager 1% & £¢32

Citigroup Inc Mo/ K4 Interest of corporation controlled by the substantial shareholder,

Person having a security interest in shares,
Custodian corporation/approved lending agent

AR PIIEGIEEZE R - BRODFERFERAA -
REA—EE/ BB HRIEA

Information disclosed above is based on the data published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
unless otherwise stated in the notes below.
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(1) (L) — Long position, (S) — Short position, (P) — Lending pool

(2) 600,000,000 shares held by Tong Ren Tang Holdings were held through Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. As at 31 December 2020, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. was
owned as to 52.45% by Tong Ren Tang Holdings, thus Tong Ren Tang Holdings was deemed to be interested in the 600,000,000 shares held by
Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. Besides, Tong Ren Tang Holdings also directly held 9,480,000 domestic shares and 11,630,000 H shares of the Company.

(3) Due to an internal reorganisation, the investment manager for both Gaoling Fund, L.P. and YHG Investment, L.P. changed from Hillhouse Capital
Management, Ltd. to Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd., effective from 1 January 2019. The above charges was no transfer of shares of the Company.
As at 31 December 2020, Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd. was indirectly interested in 46,106,000 H shares of the Company in long position
indirectly held by Gaoling Fund, L.P.and 1,557,000 H shares of the Company in long position held by YHG Investment, L.P.

(4) As at 31 December 2020, Citigroup Inc. held 1,060,370 H shares of the Company in long position and 1,059,000 H shares of the Company in short
position through interest of corporation under its control, held 16,990,000 H shares of the Company in long position as a person holding security
interest in shares, and held 19,671,145 H shares in long position of the Company as custodian corporation/approved lending agent (available for
lending).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and the chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

MA]JOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has examined all of the risks identified by the Group based on the risk management system and assessed the risks which
may arise from the existing and new businesses. The major risks and uncertainties of the Group mainly included policy risks,
operational risks, etc.. For the risks identified, the Group actively reviewed their potential effects on its business operation and finance.
For details of the measures taken by the Group for management of the major risks, please refer to the section headed “Risk
Management and Internal Control” in the chapter “Corporate Governance Report”.

Policy Risk
Adjustments in industry policies, such as the medical system reform, policy on medical-related tender indicating a cost reduction
trend, and reform of value-added taxes, may have uncertainty effects on the product sale of the Group.

Increasingly stringent standards in the laws and regulations and the regulatory efforts of the State on safe production, fire safety and
environmental protection impose higher requirements on safety and environmental management for the Company. As the Group has
many production units, it is faced with the uncertainties of increasing investment cost for safe production management and
environmental management.
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Operational Risks

As the “Tong Ren Tang” brand used by the Group enjoys a high reputation, emergencies have uncertain influence against the Group
and the product sales of the Group.

The Group mainly engages in production of Chinese patent medicines, which requires a large variety of Chinese medicinal raw
materials, supplementary materials and packaging materials, with complex production process and demanding quality control.
Although the Group has a strict quality management system and carries out production and operation in strict accordance with the
requirements of GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) and GSP (Good Supply Practice) under strict quality control in all sessions, there
are potential risks of sporadic issues that may lead to economic and reputation loss of the Group.

Meanwhile, there are also risks such as a reduction in the amount of materials collected for production, a decline in the quality of raw
materials or market price fluctuations due to force majeure such as major climate changes or extreme disastrous weather, etc., which
may have a certain impact on the Group's production and supply and procurement cost.

Since the outbreak of the Epidemic, the change of the Epidemic may have impact on the supply of raw materials, supplementary
materials and packaging materials which requires by products of the Group’s production as well as manufacturing, sales, transportation
and other links of the Group's products.

COMPLIANCE OF LAWS AND LEGAL CONSTRUCTION

The Group's businesses are subject to a number of laws and regulations, which primarily include the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Civil Code of the People’s Republic of China (effective from
1 January 2021), the Property Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on Traditional Chinese
Medicine, the Pharmacopoeia of the People’s Republic of China, Good Manufacturing Practice for Drugs, Good Supply Practice for
Drugs, etc., or other laws and regulations, or other applicable legal documents promulgated according to or in connection to the
abovementioned laws and regulations. In addition, provisions under other relevant laws and regulations also apply to the Group (for
instance, Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Listing Rules and others). The Group is committed to ensuring its compliance with such provisions through
internal control and approval procedures, training, as well as supervision over each business unit.

In 2020, the Group adhered to the idea of “serving business development and preventing legal risks”, continued to strengthen the
construction of legal team and legal system and improved the ability of legal corporate governance and compliance. During the
Reporting Period, the Group constantly improved contracts, systems and major decisions according to legal review, to improve the
precautionary ability in advance. Meanwhile, the Group researched on the legal management situation of subsidiaries, helped
subsidiaries improve management of legal compliance, and constantly strengthened the legal corporate governance ability of
subsidiaries.

As far as the Directors are aware, there was no non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations of the Group with significant
impact. There was no major legal risk event during the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The relevant laws and regulations complied with by the Group include Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Air Pollution Prevention Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law on Promoting Clean Production of the People’s
Republic of China, etc..

In daily production and operation, the Group has been constantly committed to the philosophy of placing equal emphasis on
development and environmental protection. Through rational utilisation of various resources in strict accordance with relevant
national laws and regulations in production and operation, the Group sought to minimise the impact on the surrounding
environment. In the course of daily operation, the Group was dedicated to maintaining and consolidating a healthy business
environment in order to ensure the legitimacy of business conducts and thus steady and orderly development of the Group. The
Group also strived to improve the working environment of employees by promoting the concept of green office and green
production, with a view to providing a comfortable workplace for all employees. The environmental policy and performance of the
Group are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Company for year 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

The shareholders of the Company do not have pre-emptive rights under the PRC Laws and the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”).

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions with Tong Ren Tang Holdings

As at 31 December 2020, Tong Ren Tang Holdings is the ultimate holding company of the Company, which holds 48.49% direct and
indirect interest in the Company and thus a connected person of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules. As such, all the
continuing transactions between the Tong Ren Tang Group and the Group constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The existing continuing connected transactions between the Group and Tong Ren Tang Group Holdings and its associates (“Tong
Ren Tang Group’) and the relevant agreements are as follows:

(i)  Property Lease Framework Agreement

On 30 December 2019, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings renewed the Property Leasing Framework Agreement for a
term of three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to the Property Leasing Framework Agreement, Tong Ren Tang Holdings has agreed to lease and procure other
members of the Tong Ren Tang Group to lease certain premises to any member of the Group for its productions and operations,
including but not limited to office premises, warehouses and staff quarter. The continuing connected transactions under the
Property Leasing Framework Agreement was entered into in accordance with the pricing policies below: (1) The relevant market
price. The relevant market price is determined by the Group with reference to the rental information of certain properties in
similar locations, with similar specification and similar areas, and determined after arm'’s length negotiations between the parties
based on market conditions to ensure that the terms offered by the Tong Ren Tang Group would not be less favorable than
those offered by independent third parties on the market. (2) Where the market price is not available, then the contracted price,
which shall be determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties of the agreement based on the principle of cost
plus a fair and reasonable profit ratio and by reference to the historical rentals. The reasonable cost shall be determined by
reference to the size of the premises provided by the Tong Ren Tang Group, and the cost of premises management.
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The annual caps of the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement for
the three years ending 31 December 2022 are RMB200,000,000, RMB80,000,000 and RMB60,000,000, respectively. Please refer to
the announcement published by the Company on 30 December 2019 on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company for details.

In 2020, the rental fee paid by the Group to the Tong Ren Tang Group under the Property Leasing Framework amounted to
RMB5,019,000, and the value of additions to right-of-use assets was RMB43,091,000, which did not exceed the relevant annual
cap.

Distribution Framework Agreement

On 16 October 2019, the Company renewed the Distribution Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings for a term of
three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Meanwhile, the Company have revised the annual cap of the Distribution
Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings on 6 November 2020 for the three years ending 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to the Distribution Framework Agreement, the Group may sell and Tong Ren Tang Group, as a non-exclusive
distributor of the Group, may purchase relevant products produced by the Group from time to time and then distribute the
same to retailers and/or end-user. The price of the products to be sold by the Group to Tong Ren Tang Group shall not be lower
than that charged by the Group to other independent third parties and shall be determined in accordance with a reasonable
cost plus a fair and reasonable profit margin: (i) the reasonable cost shall be determined by reference to the cost of the raw
materials, the cost of labour and the manufacturing expense etc,; and (i) the profit margin shall be determined by reference to
the prevailing market and the then market price for comparable products in the relevant industry, and the profit rate of the
products of the Group in the past years (approximately 50%).

The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the Distribution Framework Agreement for the
three years ending 31 December 2022 are RMB1,450,000,000, RMB1,670,000,000 and RMB1,850,000,000, respectively. Please refer
to the announcements dated 16 October 2019, 16 December 2019, 6 November 2020 and 23 December 2020 and the circulars
of the Company dated 31 October 2019 and 2 December 2020 published by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the Company for details.

In 2020, sales amount of the Group to the Tong Ren Tang Group under the Distribution Framework Agreement amounted to
RMB1,262,162,000, which did not exceed the relevant annual cap.
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Master Procurement Agreement

On 16 October 2019, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Holdings renewed the Master Procurement Agreement for a term of
three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to the Master Procurement Agreement, Tong Ren Tang Group as non-exclusive supplier of the Group may supply and
the Group may procure the raw materials and semi-finished products and finished products (‘Relevant Products”) for
manufacturing and distribution from time to time. The price to be paid for the Relevant Products procured by the Group from
the Tong Ren Tang Group shall be determined in accordance with the following principle: (i) provided that the Relevant
Products satisfy the Pharmacopoeia of the People’s Republic of China standard and the internal quality standard of the
Company, and under the premise of equal quality, the price shall be negotiated and agreed by the parties based on the market
price for procurement with fair market competition and public offer, which shall be determined with reference to the prevailing
market price of comparable products negotiated and provided by at least two independent suppliers in the same or
surrounding areas; (ii) if the Relevant Products are only available from specific suppliers due to content, special requirement or
market resource limitations, reference shall be made to the price offer of suppliers and book comparable price; and (iii) under
the premise of equal quality, the price to be paid by the Group for the procurement of the Relevant Products shall not be higher
than that available from independent third parties for similar products, or higher than the market price, whichever is the lower.

The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the Master Procurement Agreement for the
three years ending 31 December 2022 are RMB270,000,000, RMB320,000,000 and RMB370,000,000, respectively. Please refer to
the announcements dated 16 October 2019 and 16 December 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 31 October 2019
published by the Company on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company for details.

In 2020, the purchase of Relevant Products by the Group from the Tong Ren Tang Group under the Master Procurement
Agreement amounted to RMB114,585,000, which did not exceed the relevant annual cap.

Advertising Agency Framework Agreement

On 28 February 2020, Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, renewed the Advertising
Agency Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Holdings for a term of three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2022.

Pursuant to the Advertising Agency Framework Agreement, Tong Ren Tang Holdings entrusted Tong Ren Tang Century
Advertising as a non-exclusive advertising agent, to provide advertising agency services to the Tong Ren Tang Group. The fees
for the provision of advertising agency services by Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising to the Tong Ren Tang Group shall be
determined with reference to the actual quotation offered by third-party advertising providers on the basis of their published
price lists, plus a reasonable fee for the advertising agency service provided by Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising (generally
not higher than 10% of the quote offered by third-party advertising providers).

The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the Advertising Agency Framework Agreement
for the three years ending 31 December 2022 shall be RMB28,000,000, RMB28,000,000 and RMB28,000,000, respectively. Please
refer to the announcement published by the Company on 28 February 2020 on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company for details.

In 2020, total advertising service fee paid by the Tong Ren Tang Group to Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising under the
Advertising Agency Framework Agreement was RMB22,619,000, which did not exceed the relevant annual cap.
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Continuing Connected Transactions with Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine/Tong Ren Tang Ltd.

As at 31 December 2020, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is the immediate controlling shareholder of the Company, which holds 46.85% direct

interest in the Company, and 33.62% direct interest in Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine which is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of

the Company. According to the Listing Rules, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine are both connected persons
of the Company. As such, all the continuing transactions between Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group and the Group and all the
continuing transactions between Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group and Tong Ren Tang Ltd., Group constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The existing continuing connected transactions between the Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group and the Group and the relevant

agreements are as follows:

(i)

46

TRTCM Advertising Agency Framework Agreement

On 28 April 2020, Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Tong Ren Tang Chinese
Medicine entered into the TRTCM Advertising Agency Framework Agreement, for a term from 1 May 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to the TRTCM Advertising Agency Framework Agreement, Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine entrusted Tong Ren Tang
Century Advertising as a non-exclusive advertising agent, to provide advertising agency services to the Tong Ren Tang Chinese
Medicine Group in Mainland China. The fees for the provision of advertising agency services by Tong Ren Tang Century
Advertising to members of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group shall be determined and agreed upon between the parties
for each specific transaction via arm’s length negotiations in accordance with the following pricing mechanism: (i) the fee
proposal shall be made by Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising with reference to the actual quotation offered by the advertisers
who are third parties, which is on the basis of its published price list, and a reasonable fee for the advertising agency service of
Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising; and (i) for the same or similar types of services in the same or similar locations of the
services being provided, the fees shall be determined with reference to the market price, which is based on the quotations and
terms obtained by the members of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group from at least two advertisers who are independent
third parties within Mainland China markets when an implementation agreement is entered into. The service fees and terms to
be charged by Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising shall be comparable to the service fees and terms which members of Tong
Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group can be obtained from other advertisers who are independent third parties under the same
condition and which Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising can be obtained from other advertising purchasers who are
independent third parties under the same condition.

The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions under the TRTCM Advertising Agency Framework Agreement for the
eight months from 1 May 2020 to 31 December 2020 and each of two years ending 31 December 2022 are RMBS5,600,000,
RMB6,850,000, and RMB8,000,000, respectively. Please refer to the announcement published by the Company on 28 April 2020
on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company for details.

For the period from 1 May 2020 to 31 December 2020, the total advertising service fee paid by the Tong Ren Tang Chinese

Medicine Group to Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising under the TRTCM Advertising Agency Framework Agreement was
RMB1,098,000, which did not exceed the relevant cap.
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Tong Ren Tang Technologies PRC Distribution Framework Agreement

On 13 May 2020, the Company and Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine entered into the Tong Ren Tang Technologies PRC
Distribution Framework Agreement, for a term from 13 May 2020 to 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to the Tong Ren Tang Technologies PRC Distribution Framework Agreement, the Group as the non-exclusive
distributor of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group may purchase the Chinese medicine and healthcare products from the
Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group, including Chinese medicine and/or healthcare products researched, developed and
manufactured by the Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group ("Relevant TRTCM Products’) and then sale the same to,
among others, distributors, retailers or end users in Mainland China or for the purpose of production. The price to be paid for the
Relevant TRTCM Products procured by the Group from the Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group shall be determined based
on: (i) a reasonable cost plus a fair and reasonable profit margin: (a) the reasonable cost shall be determined by reference to the
cost of the raw materials, the cost of labour and the manufacturing expense, etc.; and (b) the profit margin shall be determined
by reference to the average gross profit rate of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group in the previous years, which shall not be
less than 50%; and (ii) the prevailing market price, which is with reference to the price and sale terms of similar products in the
industry and in Mainland China market at the time when a separate implementation agreement is entered into. The price and
supply terms of the Relevant TRTCM Products provided by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group to the Group shall be
comparable to those provided by the Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group to other independent third parties under the
same condition.

The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the Tong Ren Tang Technologies PRC
Distribution Framework Agreement for the period from 13 May 2020 to 31 December 2020 and each of two years ending 31
December 2022 are RMB45,640,000, RMB52,030,000 and RMB59,340,000, respectively. Please refer to the announcement
published by the Company on 13 May 2020 on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company for details.

For the period from 13 May 2020 to 31 December 2020, the purchase of Relevant TRTCM Products by the Group from Tong Ren
Tang Chinese Medicine Group under the Tong Ren Tang Technologies PRC Distribution Framework Agreement amounted to
RMB?7,704,000, which did not exceed the relevant cap.

Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreement

On 8 November 2017, the Company renewed the Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreement with Tong Ren Tang Chinese
Medicine, for a term of three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. On 6 November 2020, the Exclusive
Distributorship Framework Agreement was renewed for a term of another three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreement, Beijing Tong Ren Tang International Natural-Pharm Co., Ltd.
(“TRT International Natural-Pharm’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine, as the sole overseas
distributor of the Group outside Mainland China (for the purpose of the Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreement,
excluding Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and its subsidiaries and associates), may procure from the Group relevant “Tong
Ren Tang” branded products produced by the Group outside Mainland China, for the purpose of the distribution of such
products outside Mainland China. The Group shall provide trainings on such products to Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine
Group which shall be responsible for the registration and promotion of such products for markets outside Mainland China. The
price of such products supplied by the Group to TRT International Natural-Pharm shall not be higher than the wholesale price of
such products sold by the Group to its wholesale customers in Mainland China. TRT International Natural-Pharm shall obtain an
updated wholesale price list and payment terms of such products which the members of the Group have offered to
independent third parties from members of the Group on a quarterly basis so as to determine whether the price and terms
offered to TRT International Natural-Pharm are fair and reasonable when compared to the price and terms that members of the
Group offered to their unrelated wholesale customers in Mainland China. Members of the Group shall also notify TRT
International Natural-Pharm in case there is any material update of the said wholesale price list and payment terms of such
products from time to time.
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The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the Exclusive Distributorship Framework
Agreements for the year ending 31 December 2020 and the three years ending 31 December 2023 are RMB84,200,000,
RMB47,000,000, RMB54,100,000 and RMB62,200,000, respectively. Please refer to the announcements published by the Company
on 8 November 2017 and 6 November 2020 on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company for details.

In 2020, the purchase of the relevant “Tong Ren Tang"” branded products produced by the Group by TRT International Natural-
Pharm from the Group under the Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreement amounted to RMB32,622,000, which did not
exceed the relevant annual cap.

The existing continuing connected transactions between the Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group and the Group and the relevant agreements

are as follows:

(i)

50

TRT Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreement

On 8 November 2017, Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine renewed the TRT Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreement with
Tong Ren Tang Ltd,, for a term of three years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. On 6 November 2020, the TRT Exclusive
Distributorship Framework Agreement was renewed for a term of another three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023.

Pursuant to the TRT Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreement, TRT International Natural-Pharm, as the sole distributor of
the Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group outside Mainland China (for the purpose of the TRT Exclusive Distributorship Framework
Agreement, excluding the Group), may procure from the Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group relevant “Tong Ren Tang” branded products
produced by the Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group, for the purpose of the distribution of such products outside Mainland China. The
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group shall provide trainings on the such products to Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Group which shall
be responsible for the registration and promotion of such products for markets outside Mainland China. The price of such
products supplied by the Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group to TRT International Natural-Pharm shall not be higher than the wholesale
price of such products sold by the Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group to its wholesale customers in Mainland China. TRT International
Natural-Pharm shall obtain updated wholesale prices and payment terms of such products which the members of the Tong Ren
Tang Ltd. Group have offered to independent third parties from members of the Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group on a quarterly basis
so as to determine whether the price and terms offered to TRT International Natural-Pharm are fair and reasonable when
compared to the price and terms that members of the Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group offered to their unrelated wholesale
customers in Mainland China. Members of the Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group shall also notify TRT International Natural-Pharm in
case there is any material update of the said wholesale price list and payment terms of such products from time to time.

The annual caps for the continuing connected transactions contemplated under the TRT Exclusive Distributorship Framework
Agreement for the year ending 31 December 2020 and for the three years ending 31 December 2023 are RMB126,300,000,
RMB75,600,000, RMB86,900,000 and RMB100,000,000, respectively. Please refer to the relevant announcements of the Company
dated 8 November 2017 and 6 November 2020 for details.

In 2020, the purchase of the relevant “Tong Ren Tang” branded products produced by the Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group by TRT
International Natural-Pharm from the Tong Ren Tang Ltd. Group under the TRT Exclusive Distributorship Framework Agreement
amounted to RMB44,224,000, which did not exceed the relevant annual cap.

The Company has confirmed that the execution and enforcement of the implementation agreements under the continuing

connected transactions set out above in the year of 2020 has followed the pricing policies of such continuing connected
transactions.
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Annual Review of Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company's overseas auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The overseas auditor has issued
unqualified letter in accordance with Rule 14A.56 and 14A.57 of the Listing Rules, containing the findings and conclusions in respect of
the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions for the year of 2020 as disclosed by the Company:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board;

(i) fortransactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not, in any material respect, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in any material
respect, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the amount of each of the continuing connected transactions has exceeded the annual cap set

by the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors has reviewed the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
in the year of 2020:

(i) these continuing connected transactions were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) these continuing connected transactions were entered into on normal commercial terms;

(i)  these continuing connected transactions were entered into according to the relevant agreements governing each of these
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv)  the aggregate amount of each of these transactions did not exceed the annual caps as set out in the relevant announcements
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party transaction or continuing related party transaction set out in Note 35 to the financial
statements that falls into the category of connected transaction or continuing connected transaction that needs to be disclosed under
the Listing Rules. The Company has fully complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with
respect to the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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COMPETING INTERESTS
Competition with Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and Tong Ren Tang Holdings

Both the Company and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. engage in the production and sale of Chinese patent medicines, but the principal products
of each of them are different. Tong Ren Tang Ltd. mainly produces Chinese patent medicines in traditional dosage forms such as
honeyed pills, powder, ointment and medicinal wines. Tong Ren Tang Ltd.'s main products include Angong Niuhuang Pills (&= 4 &
A1), Tongren Niuhuang Qingxin Pills ([EM{=4- &5 A1), Tongren Dahuoluo Pills (E{Z A& #1.), Tongren Wuji Baifeng Pills ([E){=
5 # 3 B A1) and Guogong Wine (B 2 J). It also has some minor production lines for the production of granules and water-
honeyed pills. These products do not compete with the Group in terms of their curative effects. The Company focuses on
manufacturing products in new dosage forms which are more competitive as compared with western medicine. The Company’s main
products include Liuwei Dihuang Pills (7B 308 A1), Niuhuang Jiedu Tablets (R & f2 2 1), Ganmao Qingre Granules (R 5 /A 208 H1)
and Jinkui Shengii Pills (& [& B & A1), etc. Tong Ren Tang Holdings is an investment holding company.

To ensure that the business classification between the Company, Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. is properly
documented and established, Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. undertake, pursuant to an undertaking dated 19
October 2000 committed by Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. in favor of the Company (the “October Undertaking”),
that other than Angong Niuhuang Pills (%= 4% #1), Tong Ren Tang Holdings, Tong Ren Tang Ltd. and their respective subsidiaries
will not produce in future any products that bear the same names or bear the same names with different dosage forms as those
pharmaceutical products produced by the Company, which may compete directly with those pharmaceutical products of the
Company.

Save as mentioned above, the Directors confirm that none of the other products of the Company is in direct competition with Tong
Ren Tang Ltd. or Tong Ren Tang Holdings.

Right of First Refusal

To procure that the Company focuses on the development of the four major forms of products (namely granules, water-honeyed pills,
tablets and soft capsules), Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. have granted the Company, pursuant to the October
Undertaking, a right of first refusal to manufacture and sell any of the new products which is developed by Tong Ren Tang Holdings,
Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or any of their respective subsidiaries and which is one of the four main forms of products of the Company. Upon
exercise of the right of first refusal, both Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or their respective subsidiaries are not
allowed to manufacture any of such new products. In the event that the Company develops any new product based on the existing
products of Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or their respective subsidiaries, and such new product is one of the
major forms of products of the Company, the Company will be entitled to manufacture such new product and none of Tong Ren Tang
Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. or their respective subsidiaries will be allowed to manufacture such new product. The Directors
believe that the above undertaking would clarify that both Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. would support the
Company in its development of the four major forms of products in the future.

In the event that the Company refuses the right of first refusal offered by Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd., the terms
of the option to be offered to an independent third party should not be more favourable than those originally offered to the Company,
failing which the Company should be given an opportunity to reconsider the option under the new terms. The above undertaking
would no longer be valid in the event that the direct or indirect aggregate shareholdings of Tong Ren Tang Holdings or Tong Ren
Tang Ltd. in the Company fall below 30%.

The Company and the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed upon the review: during the year of 2020, Tong Ren Tang
Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. have provided all information necessary to the independent non-executive Directors for their annual
review and report on their fulfillment on the October Undertaking. Tong Ren Tang Holdings and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. have fulfilled their
undertakings on the relevant right of first refusal granted to the Company on their existing or future competing businesses. The details
of the annual declarations in compliance with the non-competition undertaking which have been made by Tong Ren Tang Holdings
and Tong Ren Tang Ltd. are set out below.
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DECLARATION

To: TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.LTD.
No. 20 Nansanhuan Zhonglu
Fengtai District, Beijing, the PRC

Dear Sir or Madam,

In order to ensure the interests of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its shareholders as a whole, we, China

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co., Ltd. and our subsidiaries (excluding the Company and its subsidiaries) make the following

confirmations:

1. On 19 October 2000, the Company and Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited entered into an agreement with us to regulate
the non-competition undertaking ("Non-competition Undertaking”), which include but not limited to the options, pre-

emptive rights or right of first refusal provided by us on our existing or future competing businesses;

2. We have provided to the independent non-executive directors of the Company with all the necessary information in order for
them to conduct review on the enforcement of the Non-competition Undertaking;

3. We confirm that we have fully complied with the Non-competition Undertaking for the year 2020;

4. We also agree this confirmation to be disclosed in the Company’s 2020 annual report.

We further undertake that if we become aware of any data or information in the future which causes any doubt on the truthfulness,
accuracy or completeness of the data or information provided by this confirmation, we will notify the Company in writing on such

data or information as soon as possible.

China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd.
26 March 2021
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DECLARATION

To: TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO.LTD.
No. 20 Nansanhuan Zhonglu
Fengtai District, Beijing, the PRC

Dear Sir or Madam,

In order to ensure the interests of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its shareholders as a whole, we, Beijing
Tong Ren Tang Company Limited and our subsidiaries (excluding the Company and its subsidiaries), make the following confirmations:

1. On 19 October 2000, the Company and China Beijing Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd. entered into an agreement with us to
regulate the non-competition undertaking ("Non-competition Undertaking’), which include but not limited to the options,

pre-emptive rights or right of first refusal provided by us on our existing or future competing businesses;

2. We have provided to the independent non-executive directors of the Company with all the necessary information in order for
them to conduct review on the enforcement of the Non-competition Undertaking;

3. We confirm that we have fully complied with the Non-competition Undertaking for the year 2020;

4. We also agree that this confirmation to be disclosed in the Company’s 2020 annual report.

We further undertake that if we become aware of any data or information in the future which causes any doubt on the truthfulness,
accuracy or completeness of the data or information provided by this confirmation, we will notify the Company in writing on such

data or information as soon as possible.

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Company Limited
26 March 2021
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profiles of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management are set out on pages 98 to 103 of this report.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

On 30 March 2020, Mr. Huang Ning and Mr. Wu Le Jun tendered their resignations from positions of executive Directors due to work
changes with effect from upon the new executive Directors being appointed at the 2019 AGM. On the same day, the Board proposed
to appoint Mr. Jin Tao and Mr. Ma Guan Yu as executive Directors, which was approved by the Shareholders at the 2019 AGM dated 18
June 2020. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 30 March 2020 and 18 June 2020 and the circular dated 29 April
2020 for details.

On 8 May 2020, Mr. Li Yuan Hong was elected as an employee representative supervisor of the Supervisory Committee at the
employee representatives group leaders’ joint meeting of the Company. Mr. Dong Ke Man resigned as an employee representative
Supervisor of the Supervisory Committee due to work changes with effect from 18 June 2020. Please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 27 May 2020 and 18 June 2020 for details.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and the Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term commencing on their
respective appointment dates to the date of the 2020 AGM.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract with the Company that cannot be terminated by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Directors and Supervisors are subject to the election at the general meeting or the election by employees. The Board is authorized by
the general meeting to fix the remuneration of every Director or Supervisor when the general meeting appoints Directors and
Supervisors. The Directors or Supervisors who do not hold any management position in the Group will not receive any remuneration
from the Group. The Directors or Supervisors who also hold management positions in the Group will receive salaries corresponding to
such management functions. The independent non-executive Directors and external Supervisors are paid in line with the prevailing
local market rate by the Company.

In 2020, all executive Directors did not receive any remuneration as the Directors. In particular, Mr. Wang Yu Wei and Ms. Fang Jia Zhi,
each as an executive Director, received remuneration for the management positions they held in the Company. In addition, Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen, Ms. Chan Ching Har and Eliza, Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, each as an independent non-executive Director, received
directors’ fees at the amount of HKD240,000 (tax inclusive), HKD240,000 (tax inclusive) and RMB100,000 (tax inclusive), respectively.

In 2020, Ms. Su Li, Mr Li Yuan Hong and Mr. Dong Ke Man, each as a Supervisor, did not receive any remuneration as the Supervisor. In
particular, Mr Li Yuan Hong and Mr. Dong Ke Man, as a Supervisor, received remunerations for the management positions they held in
the Company. In addition, Mr. Wu Yi Gang, as the Supervisor, received supervisor's fee at the amount of RMB100,000 (tax inclusive).

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ salaries or salaries received corresponding to their management positions in the Group for the
years of 2020 and 2019 are set out in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in the non-exempt continuing connected transactions and the non-exempt connected transactions as set out in
this report, none of the Directors and Supervisors or their connected entities (within the meaning under section 486 of the Company
Ordinance) still had or has had any material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any material transactions, arrangements or contracts
relating to the business of the Group, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and which was subsisting on the
balance sheet date of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short position in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the requirements in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the Reporting Period, the Company had not entered into nor was there any contract relating to the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws and the coverage of the director liability insurance the Company placed for the Directors, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him or her in the execution and
discharge of his or her duties or in relation thereto. Such provisions were in force during the course of the year ended 31 December
2020 and remained in force as of the date of this report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 3,882 employees (31 December 2019: 3,913 employees), of which are 1,950
employees of the Company (31 December 2019: 1,931 employees). Besides, the Company had a total of 92 dispatch staff (31
December 2019: 106). Remunerations of the employees of the Company are determined with reference to the prevailing market level
as well as the performance, qualification and experience of individual employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual
performance will be paid to the employees as a recognition of and a reward for their contributions to the Company. Other employee
welfares include contributions by the Company to the endowment insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund.

EMOLUMENTS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments before tax paid to the senior management of the Company whose names are listed in this report are set out by band

as follows:

RMB0-500,000 A R # 0-500,000 7T
RMB500,001-1,000,000 A B #& 500,001-1,000,000 7T
RMB1,000,001-1,500,000 A R ¥ 1,000,001-1,500,000 7T
RMB1,500,001-2,000,000 A R ¥ 1,500,001-2,000,000 7T
RMB2,000,001-2,500,000 A R ¥ 2,000,001-2,500,000 7T

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of staff retirement scheme of the Group are set out in Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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STAFF QUARTERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020:
1. the Company did not provide quarters to any of its staff (2019: nil);

2. the Company made annual contributions to the housing fund based on certain percentages of the salaries for employees in
compliance with relevant regulations; and

3. the Company provided housing allowance to its staff at an average of RMB80 per person per month (2019: RMB80 per person
per month) in compliance with relevant regulations.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The accompanying financial statements of this report were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company did not change its
independent auditors in any of the past three years. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the work of the independent auditors,
their independence and objectivity. PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP were proposed by the
Board to be respectively reappointed as the overseas auditor and domestic auditor of the Company for the year of 2021 which is
subject to approval at the 2020 AGM.

By the Order of the Board
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.
Gu Hai Ou
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
26 March 2021
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To the Shareholders:

The supervisory committee of Tong Ren Tang Technologies (the “Supervisory Committee”) has executed its duties and powers
earnestly, safeguarded the rights and interests of the shareholders as well as the interests of the Company, complied with the principle
of good faith, took the initiative in carrying out its work in a reasonable, cautious and diligent manner pursuant to the provisions of the
Company Law of the PRC, relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the Articles of Association.

During the year, the Supervisory Committee reviewed cautiously the operation and development plans of the Company and put
forward reasonable suggestions and opinions to the Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised the significant
policies and specific decisions made by the management of the Company to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws and
regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association, and in the interests of the Company's shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee have reviewed earnestly and approved the report of the Board, audited financial statements and the
dividend payment proposal to be presented by the Board at the forthcoming 2020 AGM. We are of the opinion that the Directors,
general manager and other senior management of the Company have strictly complied with the principle of good faith, and have
worked diligently, exercised their authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company, and executed various tasks pursuant to the
Articles of Association so that the Company is operated within the regulatory framework, and the internal control regime is
increasingly improving. The transactions between the Company and associated companies were executed on terms in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole and at fair and reasonable prices. Up till now, none of the Directors, general manager or
senior management of the Company has been found to have abused their authority, damaged the interests of the Company or
infringed upon the interests of the shareholders and employees of the Company, or to have been in breach of any laws or regulations
or the Articles of Association.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the various tasks carried out by the Company in 2020 and the economic benefits
generated therefrom. It has full confidence in the future development outlook of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory
Committee
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.
Su Li
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
26 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report
i Fealch: 8

The Board believes that a good and steady framework of corporate governance is extremely important for the development of the
Company. The Company has adopted the principles and standards contained in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as the Company's standards, and combined them with its own experience, aiming to establish
a good corporate governance structure.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company's business and operation are led and authorized to be managed by the Board. Several powers shall be entrusted by the
Board to the management, so that the management can formulate and implement the Company’s scheme and operational planning,
as well as conducting the Company’s daily operation. The Board tries its best to monitor the performance of the management, while it
is the management's responsibility to conduct the daily operation of the Company.

The Board has established four special committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Strategy and Planning Committee, to supervise the specific affairs of the Company. According to the requirements
of the Listing Rules and other related laws, the Board and the special committees shall discharge their respective duties in accordance
with the well-established written terms of reference.

The Board convenes meetings regularly and when significant decision has to be made. The Board convened ten meetings in 2020 to
discuss and decide major operational matters, financial matters and other matters of the Company as stipulated under the Articles of
Association. Unless specifically noted, all of the Directors have attended the Board meetings, committee meetings, general meetings,
and conferences between the Chairman and independent non-executive Directors during their tenures of office in the year of 2020.
The attendance of Directors to the relevant meetings is set out as below:

Directors

gz

Executive Directors $11TE%

Gu Hai Ou (Chairman) BB B8 (B ER)
Jin TagMere2 4 fzﬁ(ﬁfz}

Ma Guan Yu®oe? BB F (42

Huang Ning*2 & & (2

Wu Le Junete2 ﬁ%ﬁ{ﬁy

Wu Qian Rf&

Wang Yu Wei T/8J2

FangJia Zhi ER &

Independent non-executive Directors B FHTEE
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen T R 18

Chan Ching Har B B

Zhan Yuan Jing R

Note 1: All of the Directors attended in person rather than by proxy during the term of office.

Note 2:  During the Reporting Period, Mr. Huang Ning and Mr. Wu Le Jun resigned as executive Directors of the Company, and Mr. Jin Tao and Mr. Ma
Guan Yu were appointed as executive Directors with effect from 18 June 2020.
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Composition of the Board of Directors

The Directors are elected at the general meetings for a term of office of three years, and can be re-elected when the term expires. The
seventh session of the Board was first elected at the 2017 AGM with the term of office ending upon the conclusion date of the AGM to
be convened in 2021. The Board has formulated the Board Diversity Policy. All appointments of the members of the Board are made
on merit, in the context of the talents, skills and experience required for the Board to function as a whole. Every member with his/her
own strengths are able to coordinate with each other and help strengthen the effectiveness of the Board.

Details about the resume of the Directors are set out on pages 98 to 101 of this report.

The independent non-executive Directors are independent from the management with solid experience in business or finance. They
make recommendations to the Board and management on the strategic development of the Company, and provide balancing
mechanism to protect the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.

One of the independent non-executive Directors has been serving for more than nine years. In a circular dispatched to the
shareholders on 25 April 2018 regarding the re-election of the independent non-executive Director, the Company has confirmed the
independence of the one person and set out the reason for his re-election pursuant to the provision of the Listing Rules. He was re-
elected as the independent non-executive Director at the 2017 AGM by a separate resolution. Please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 25 April 2018 and the announcement of the Company dated 12 June 2018 for details.

According to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation of the independence from each
of such independent non-executive Directors for the year of 2020. The Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent from the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had complied with the minimum requirement of the Listing Rules in relation to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors and the number of independent non-executive Directors being at
least one-third of the members of the Board of Directors, as well as the requirement of having one independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

As is known to the Company, the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company do not have any relationship among
themselves in financial, business, family or other material aspects other than working relationship in the Company.
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Board Diversity

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage. Since 2013, the Company adopted and has been complying with the Board Diversity
Policy.

A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender
and other qualities of the members of the Board. In determining the optimum and balanced composition of the Board, the Company
will consider the above factors. All appointments are made on merit, in the content of the talents, skills and experience the Board as a
whole requires to be effective.

The Nomination Committee of the Company reviews and assesses the composition of the Board and makes recommendations to the
Board on appointment of new Directors. In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will
consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity (including but not limited to the aforementioned) in order to maintain an appropriate

range and balance of talents, skills, experience and background on the Board.

Responsibilities of the Board and the Management

According to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the Board is responsible to the general meeting and exercises the
following powers:

. to convene general meetings and report its work to the general meeting;

. to implement the resolutions of general meetings;

. to determine the Company'’s business plans and investment plans;

. to formulate the Company’s plans on annual financial budgets and final accounts;

. to formulate the Company’s profit distribution plans and plans on making up losses;

. to formulate the plans for increase or decrease of the registered capital of the Company and issue of corporate bonds;
. to formulate plans for merger, division and dissolution of the Company;

. to determine the establishment of the Company’s internal management structure;

. to appoint or remove the manager of the Company and to appoint or remove the deputy manager and chief financial officer of
the Company based on the nomination by the manager and to determine their remunerations;

. to formulate the basic management system of the Company;
. to formulate proposals for amendment to the Articles of Association; and

. to determine the establishment of specific committees and to appoint and remove the relevant persons in charge.
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Pursuant to the provisions of the Code, the Board exercises the following powers in respect of corporate governance:

to formulate and review the principles and policies of the Company’s corporate governance;

to review and monitor the implementation of corporate governance policies by the Company as a whole and to ensure
compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements;

to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and other rules applicable;

to approve the Company's annual corporate governance report and its publication on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Company;

to formulate, review and monitor the shareholder communication policy to ensure its effectiveness;
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and senior management; and

to handle other corporate governance issues that the Board shall be responsible for.

According to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the management is the executives of the Company, shall be accountable
to the Board and exercises the following powers:

76

to lead the Company's production, operation and management, and to organize the implementation of the Board’s resolutions;
to organize the implementation of the Company’s annual business plans and investment plans;

to draft plans for the establishment of the Company’s internal management structure;

to draft the Company’s basic management system;

to formulate the basic rules and regulations of the Company;

to propose the appointment or dismissal of the Company’s deputy manager(s) and chief financial officer;

to appoint or dismiss management personnel other than those required to be appointed or dismissed by the Board; and

to exercise other powers conferred under the Articles of Association and by the Board.
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Chairman of the Board and General Manager

Mr. Gu Hai Ou is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Wang Yu Wei is the general manager of the Company. The Chairman of the Board
and the general manager of the Company are two clearly defined positions. The Chairman of the Board is responsible for the operation
of the Board while the general manager is in charge of day-to-day operational management. The Board formulated and approved the
Terms of Reference of Chairman and General Manager, which sets out their respective duties and powers in written form.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

The Directors should participate in continuous professional development to develop and update their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that they continue making contributions to the Board in an informed and appropriate manner. The Company is responsible for
arranging appropriate training and providing relevant funding with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a
director of the Company. During the Reporting Period, all Directors were arranged to learn about the ongoing obligations of the
Directors, laws and regulations, ESG regulations, corporate governance and other requirements, and gained a deeper understanding
of supervision and standardized operations of listed companies. The Company also published appointment rules and memorandum
of duties to all new Directors so as to ensure continuous compliance in their performance of duties. In addition, the Directors also
participated in relevant training or studied reading materials according to their actual needs for performance of duties. These materials
included information in respect of Communist Party construction, safe production and risk prevention, etc., which effectively facilitated
the improvement of duty performance.

Directors’ Training

EEFIIER

Directors

BE=x

Executive Directors 1 {TE =
Gu Hai Ou (Chairman) BE)8 B (EF <)

Jin TaoMete ) 4322 GGE1)

Ma Guan Yuore ! B #3757 (5 1)
Huang Ning®ete ) & &8 (1)
Wu Le Jun®ore ) 53 G2 (1)
Wu Qian R1&

Wang Yu Wei £ I21&

Fang Jia Zhi BRE

Independent non-executive Directors B I {TEE
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen T R #8

Chan Ching Har FR/& &

Zhan Yuan Jing B R #%

Note 1: During the Reporting Period, Mr. Huang Ning and Mr. Wu Le Jun resigned as executive Directors of the Company, and Mr. Jin Tao and Mr. Ma
Guan Yu were appointed as executive Directors with effect from 18 June 2020.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management provides members of the Board with updated information on a monthly basis, setting out relevant accounts data
and financial position of the Company. This is to ensure Directors have sufficient information and knowledge about the Company’s
affairs to effectively fulfill their responsibilities and obligations.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparation of financial statements which shall give a true and fair view of the
Company’s financial situation, business performance and cash flows for the year. In preparing the financial statements for the year, the
Directors have:

1. approved the adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards;
2. selected and applied appropriate accounting policies;

3. made reasonable judgments and estimates; and

4. prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance, transparency and its accountability to shareholders, and it has
presented a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the annual and interim reports and other financial disclosures of the
Company as required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks the Group is able to take in achieving its
strategic goals, so as to ensure that the Group establishes and maintains reasonable and effective risk management and internal
control systems, and oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. Meanwhile, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover its duties in respect of risk
management, including supervision of relevant risk management system to ensure that the system conforms to the strategies and risk
tolerance of the Group.

The Group has established its risk management and internal control system and issued relevant reports with reference to regulations
and requirements including the Code of Corporate Governance, Corporate Risk Management Framework, Basic Rules for Enterprise
Internal Control, the Guidelines for Corporate Internal Control Assessment, and the Supplementary Guidelines for Corporate Internal
Control.
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The Group has internal audit functions. A dedicated internal audit department will independently review the operation of each
department of the Group on a regular basis to identify violation and risk, if any, and propose suggestions therefore to cope with the
identified risks. The internal audit department organize comprehensive risk identification and streamline countermeasures within the
scope of the Group, updates the Group's risk list and countermeasures on a semiannual basis, evaluates the overall effectiveness of risk
management of the Group, suggests solutions accordingly (if necessary) and explains the critical findings and internal audit process
and results to the Audit Committee with an independent report.

The Group adopts a three-level risk management and monitoring model comprising risk management, risk supervision and
independent review, in order to identify, assess and manage material risks with the following procedures including formulation and
implementation of strategy; risk identification, assessment and response; risk monitoring report and early warning; risk treatment; and
supervision and evaluation of risk management. In case of material risk or serious internal monitoring omission, relevant units shall
immediately report to the internal audit department and members of corporate management, who shall promptly hold a meeting to
discuss treatment methods and finally approve the solutions for material risk or serious internal monitoring omission.

The Group has formulated a series of risk management and internal monitoring systems and relevant supporting operation guidelines.
For instance, the Company has promulgated the Risk Management System, which institutionalized the operation of risk management
system, and regulated and standardized the risk management. The Internal Audit System has been also in place to standardize internal
audit work, improve internal control monitoring system, strengthen the mechanism for preventing risks in economic operations and
foster the healthy and sustainable development of the Group. The Company enacted the Information Disclosure Management System
to regulate the disclosure procedure of inside information and other types of information. With the aforesaid monitoring systems and
guidelines, the Group has established a standard and effective risk management and internal monitoring systems so as to safeguard
the assets of the Group and interests of shareholders.

MA]JOR RISKS AND RESPONSE MEASURES

In 2020, the material risks listed by the Group included policy risk and operational risk. For the identified material risks, the Group has
taken proactive measures to cope with various risks.

For the contingent risks from the emergencies in relation to “Tong Ren Tang” brand, the Group established a good brand protection
emergency mechanism, in which the brand management department will cooperate with all relevant departments in monitoring and
collecting information about the emergencies in relation to the “Tong Ren Tang” brand and set up countermeasures in a timely
manner to effectively maintain the brand image.
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For the increase in investment cost arising from safe production management and uncertainty risks due to potential safety hazards
and safety accidents, the Group continued to strengthen safety training to enhance safety awareness of all employees, increased the
frequency and intensity in elimination of potential hazards and supervision, ensured explicit division of labour and improved the
effectiveness of potential hazards management; stepped up the input in fire safety and other areas, actively purchased liability
insurance of safe production, so as to ensure both prevention and post-handling.

For the risks such as reduction in harvest of production materials, decline in quality of raw materials and market price fluctuations
brought about by significant climate change or extreme disastrous weather, the Group has strengthened identification, assessment
and supervision of impacts and risks of significant climate change on different businesses. Meanwhile, the Group pays close attention
to the changes in market conditions and related industrial policies, and has built closer connection between procurement and
production and sales, and maintained a reasonable inventory structure and appropriate strategic reserves to ensure maximum supply
of required materials and avoid the risk of continual increases in prices brought about by an imbalance between supply and demand.

In view of the impact of the Epidemic on the production and operation, the Group strictly implemented the requirements for the
Epidemic prevention and control issued by the nation and local government, timely guided and made deployment according to the
Epidemic prevention and control situation, and ensured the safety and stability of production. Meanwhile, with the market demand
and characteristics of the Group's products under the normalization of the Epidemic prevention and control, the Group actively
formulated sales policies and put efforts in reducing the operational risk caused by the Epidemic.

The Board has reviewed the risk management and internal control system for the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 at
the Board meeting held on 26 March 2021. The special internal audit department and Audit Committee have reviewed the
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries covering financial, operational, compliance and risk
management procedures.

In addition, the review of the Directors also took into account the adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience, and
training programs and the relevant budgets of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Board is satisfied that the
risk management and internal control system of the Group are working effectively, adequate and implemented on an ongoing basis
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group will continue to improve the internal control system and strengthen the risk
management function as necessary, so as to continuously optimize the risk management and internal control system.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee with specific written terms of reference and duties pursuant to the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules and “A Guide For The Formation of An Audit Committee” complied by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Its primary duties are to review and monitor the completeness and effectiveness of the Company's
financial information, risk management and internal control system, and review the Company’s annual and interim results and other
related documents.

The Audit Committee comprises the independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Ms. Chan Ching Har,
Eliza and Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, of which Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, the Chairman of the committee, possesses appropriate
professional qualification and financial experience, which is fully complied with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

During the year of 2020, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The first meeting was held on 20 March 2020 to review and
discuss the operating results, financial position and major accounting policies contained in the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 as well as matters in relation to risk management, legal compliance and internal audit,
and to listen to the result of audit reported by the auditors. The Audit Committee concluded the meeting with agreement to the
contents of the 2019 annual report. The second meeting was held on 24 August 2020 to review and discuss the operating results,
financial position and major accounting policies contained in the unaudited financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 as well as matters in relation to risk management, legal compliance and internal audit. The Audit Committee
concluded the meeting with agreement to the contents of the 2020 interim report.

In addition, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk management;
made recommendation to the Board on matters relating to the reappointment of the auditors; and held separate meetings with the
auditors to discuss matters relating to its audit fees and other issues arising from the audit.

At the meeting held on 23 March 2021, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the operating results, financial position and
major accounting policies contained in the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, as well as
matters in relation to risk management, legal compliance and internal audit, and reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems as well as internal audit, and to listened to the results of audit reported by the auditors. The Audit Committee
concurred in the contents of the 2020 annual result and annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee according to the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules with specific
written terms of reference and duties. Its primary duties are to make proposals to the Board with respect to the overall remuneration
policy and framework for Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company and the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for formulating the remuneration policy.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, an independent non-executive Director and the members comprise
an executive Director, Mr. Gu Hai Ou, and an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, which is in
compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules that independent non-executive directors shall form the majority of the
remuneration committee.

According to Rule B.1.2 of the Code, the Remuneration Committee of the Company makes proposals to the Board with respect to the
remuneration packages for individual executive Directors and senior management, including non-monetary benefits, pension rights
and compensation (including the compensation for the loss or termination of office or appointment). The exact amount shall be
determined by the Board according to the general meeting’s authorisation.

During the year of 2020, two meetings have been held by the Remuneration Committee. At the meeting held on 20 March 2020, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed and discussed the matters including the Directors’, Supervisors’ and senior management’s
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2019 as well as the Directors’ and Supervisors' relevant service contracts. At the meeting
held on 18 June 2020, the Remuneration Committee discussed matters including the remuneration and related services contracts of
newly appointed Directors, and made recommendations to the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference and duties according to the
relevant provisions of the Listing Rules. Its primary duties include (among others):

reviewing the framework, size and composition including skills and professional knowledge of the Board on a regular basis and
making proposals to the Board in respect of any proposed change;

ii. reviewing the Board diversity policy regularly, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background as
well as professional experience, and reviewing any measurable objectives that it has set for implementing the Board diversity

policy and progress on achieving those objectives; and

ii. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
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The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Gu Hai Ou, the executive Director and the Chairman of the Board and the members
comprise two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza and Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, which is in compliance
with the requirement of the Listing Rules that independent non-executive directors should form the majority of the Nomination
Committee.

Factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules shall be considered by the Nomination Committee while assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors.

During the year of 2020, one meeting was held by the Nomination Committee. At the meeting held on 20 March 2020, the
Nomination Committee reviewed and discussed the structure, size and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
nominate candidates for Directors to the Board. The Committee nominated Mr. Jin Tao and Mr. Ma Guan Yu as executive Directors of
the Company to the Board for it to consider and make recommendation for election as an executive Director of the Company at the
general meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommends candidates for nomination to the Board, which approves the final choice of candidates, and
the Board submits to the general meeting of shareholders for approval. The Board has adopted written policy for the nomination of
new directors. In evaluating and selecting candidates for directorship, the criteria to be taken into account when considering the
suitability of a candidate shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute
to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities.

In addition, the Nomination Committee assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; and reviewed the
adequacy of time devoted by Directors in performing their duties.

The Nomination Committee also attaches importance to the diversity of Board composition, which is believed to be beneficial for the
Board as well as the Company. The Company established a policy in respect of the diversity of the Board Composition. In reviewing
and evaluating the Board composition and making recommendations to the Board on appointment of new Directors, the Nomination
Committee shall take account of the benefits of diversity in various aspects as well as the factors including integrity of relevant persons,
their accomplishments and the time they can devote to the Company, in order to maintain an appropriate scope and the balance
between expertise, skills, experience and background of the Board members. The Nomination Committee will make discussion to
agree upon all the measurable targets to realize the diversity of Board composition each year, including but not limited to genders,
ages, culture and educational backgrounds and professional experiences, and propose relevant targets to the Board for adoption.
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STRATEGY AND PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Strategy and Planning Committee, with specific written terms of reference and duties. Its primary duties are
to conduct research and evaluation on the performance of the strategic planning of the Group’s mid-and-long-term development,
investment and financing plans, comprehensive budget management, brand protection, legal construction and product safety, and to
make recommendations to the Board.

The Strategy and Planning Committee is chaired by Mr. Gu Hai Ou, the executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, and the
members comprise one executive Director, namely Mr. Wang Yu Wei, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen, Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza and Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing.

During the year of 2020, two meetings have been held by the Strategy and Planning Committee, which was on 20 March 2020 and 25
August 2020, each meeting reviewed and discussed matters on strategy and planning, legal system, brand protection and other
special matters of the Group for annually and semi-annually work plan and reports, respectively.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had always strictly complied with the code provisions contained in the Code.

During the year of 2020, the Board reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and other related rules, formulated and revised
the rules in respect of the corporate governance, and approved the Company’s annual corporate governance report and its
publication on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct formulated on the basis of the Model Code regarding securities transactions by the
Directors and Supervisors on terms no less exacting than the required standards contained in the Model Code. Having made specific
enquiry to all the Directors and Supervisors, all of them confirmed that they had strictly complied with the required standards set out
in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct of the Company in the year ended 31 December 2020.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP were the overseas auditor and domestic auditor of the
Company respectively for the year ended 31 December 2020. Other than annual auditing services, they also provided non-audit
services for the other members of the Group.

The independent auditors’ remuneration in respect of its audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
in Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board and senior management recognise that they represent the interests of all shareholders and that they need to enhance the
value of the Company in full force. The major rights enjoyed by shareholders and how to enforce them are highlighted in the chapters
of “Shareholders’ Rights and Obligations” and “Shareholders’ General Meetings” of the Articles of Association.

The Company attaches great importance to the communication with the shareholders and investors. The Company uses a number of
channels to account for the performance and operations of the Company to shareholders, particularly our periodical reports such as
annual and interim reports. In addition to delivering circulars, announcements and financial reports to our shareholders, the Company
also publishes its corporate information on its website (http://www.tongrentangkj.com) by electronic means. The general meeting
provides a good opportunity for the communication between the Board and Company’s shareholders. The Company regards the
general meeting as an important event and all Directors, Supervisors, senior management and the Chairmen of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee should make an effort to attend and answer questions raised by the
shareholders. The Company made great efforts to hold conferences and/or conference calls, as well as arranged field trips for investors.
In the meantime, the Company organized non-trading road shows at least twice a year after releasing the results announcement and
answered questions about the results and business development of the Group.

The Company encourages the shareholders to involve in the Company’s affairs and to discuss the business and prospects of the
Company directly at the AGMs or extraordinary general meetings.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, two or more shareholders together holding 10% or more of the shares conferring the right to
vote at extraordinary general meeting can sign and submit one or more written requests in the same format and content to the Board
to request the convening of an extraordinary general meeting, with the issues to be discussed clearly stated. The Board shall convene
an extraordinary general meeting as soon as possible upon receiving such written request(s). If the Board fails to issue a convening
notice within 30 days after the receipt of such written request(s), the shareholders making the request may convene an extraordinary
general meeting on their own within four months after the Board's receipt of such request(s). The procedure for convening the
meeting shall be consistent with that for convening shareholder meetings by the Board to the greatest extent possible.

At the AGM convened by the Company, shareholders holding 5% or more of the total voting shares shall have the right to make new
proposals to the Company in writing. The Company shall incorporate the issues raised in the proposal that fall within the terms of

reference of the general meeting into the meeting agenda.

Enquiries may be made to the Board either by contacting the Company Secretary through office and mailing address (No. 20
Nansanhuan Zhonglu, Fengtai District, Beijing, the PRC) or directly by raising questions at the AGMs or extraordinary general meetings.
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Dividend Distribution Policy

The Company has formulated a dividend distribution policy, which aims at providing sustainable and stable dividends to the
shareholders of the Company, and sets out the principles and guidelines for the Board of the Company in determining dividends.

The Company may distribute semiannual or annual dividends to shareholders in such form as the Board deemed appropriate (e.g, cash
or stocks), and shall maintain the continuity and stability of the dividend distribution policy. At the same time, the following factors of
the Company should be taken into account:

a) operations and profits;

b)  actual and expected financial position;

c) cash flow;

d)  capital expenditure;

e) future development needs;

f) any other conditions or factors that the Board may consider relevant.

Sticking to the principle of sustainable returns to the shareholders, the Company has been distributing cash dividends each year since
its listing. As at 31 December 2020, the Company has distributed cash dividends totaling over RMB2.4 billion. Set out below are the net
profits attributable to owners of the Company (as previously stated) and the total amount of cash dividends since the Company’s

listing.
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ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, the Board of the Company, in accordance with relevant requirements and the actual
situation of the Company, and in order to further improve the level of corporate governance,amended the Articles of
Association. The related amendments were reviewed and approved at the shareholders’ general meetings of the
Company held on 17 February 2020 and 18 June 2020. For details, please refer to the announcements dated 4 November
2019, 17 February 2020, 28 April 2020, and 18 June 2020, the circulars dated 31 December 2019 and 29 April 2020 and
the Articles of Association of the Company dated 17 February 2020 and 18 June 2020 published by the Company on the
websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

HE - BREARHEMAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gu Hai Ou, aged 55, is a licensed pharmacist and a researcher with a master's degree in medical science. He was formerly the
director of the Company, the vice general manager, the chief engineer, the chairman and director of the Board of Tong Ren Tang Ltd..
Mr. Gu Hai Ou is currently the vice general manager and member of Standing Committee of Party Committee of Tong Ren Tang
Holdings, and the vice president of the China Association of Traditional Chinese Medicine. Mr. Gu was appointed as a Director at the
2018 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Jin Tao, aged 52, holds a postgraduate degree. Mr. Jin successively served as the deputy director of the Administrative Office of
the General Office of the People’s Government of Beijing Municipality, the chief of the Confidentiality Department and the chief of the
Conference Department. Mr. Jin currently serves as the general manager assistant of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Mr. Jin was appointed
as a Director at the 2019 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Ma Guan Yu, aged 39, holds a postgraduate degree and is a second-level legal adviser to state-owned enterprises. Mr. Ma
successively served as chairman assistant of Beijing Bohuai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Beijing Boyu Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd,, corporate legal consultant of Beijing Uni.-Construction Group Co., Ltd., general manager assistant and general
counsel of Beijing Uni-Construction Sixth Development Construction Co,, Ltd., general counsel of Beijing Uni-Construction Landmark
Co,, Ltd. and Beijing Uni-Construction Real Estate Co., Ltd. Mr. Ma currently serves as the deputy director (department head) of the
Legal Affairs Department (Brand Risk Control Department) of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Mr. Ma was appointed as a Director at the 2019
AGM of the Company.

Ms. Wu Qian, aged 47, is a pharmacist-incharge and licensed pharmacist with a bachelor’s degree. Ms. Wu formerly served as a
deputy office director of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Medicinal Materials Co., Ltd., a deputy director of the general office of the Party
Committee and a deputy head of the publicity department, a deputy director of the office of labour union of Tong Ren Tang Holdings,
the office director, deputy secretary of the general Party Branch at the head office, the secretary of the general Party Branch at the head
office of Tong Ren Tang Ltd., the director of the general office of Tong Ren Tang Holdings. Ms. Wu currently serves as the Dean of
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Institute of Education, the Party Branch secretary and the Party Committee secretary of China Beijing Tong Ren
Tang (Group) Company of the Communist Party of China. Ms. Wu was appointed as a Director at the 2017 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Wang Yu Wei, aged 54, is a senior engineer with a postgraduate qualification. He formerly served as the deputy officer of the new
technology development center and the deputy factory manager of Factory 2 of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pharma, the assistant to the
general manager and the deputy general manager of the Company. He is currently the general manager of the Company, the
Chairman of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan, Tong Ren Tang Tangshan Healthcare and the director of Chinese Medicine
Group. He is also a member of the 14th, 15th and 16th NPC of Fengtai District, Beijing. Mr. Wang was appointed as a Director at the
2008 AGM of the Company.

Ms. Fang Jia Zhi, aged 54, is a senior auditor and a senior economist with a university qualification. She formerly served as the deputy
head and head of audit department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings, the deputy chief accountant of the Company. She is currently the
chief accountant of the Company, the director of Tong Ren Tang Yanbian, Tong Ren Tang Hebei, Tong Ren Tang Xing An Healthcare,
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Tangshan and Tong Ren Tang Liaoning. Ms. Fang was appointed as a Director at the 2008 AGM of the
Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Continued)

wHE - BHEARGHEEAR (M)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, aged 67, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD. He is a non-executive director of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and an independent non-executive director of other six listed companies namely Tongda
Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited Company Limited, Computer and Technologies Holdings Limited,
Texhong Textile Group Limited, Dongyue Group Limited and China SCE Group Holdings Limited, respectively. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice and a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). Mr. Ting has
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 11 October 2000.

Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza, aged 64, JP, SBS, LL.D. (Hon), holds the qualifications of Barrister & Solicitor of British Columbia Supreme
Court, Canada, Solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales and Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong.

Ms. Chan is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC"), a standing
member of the CPPCC Tianjin Committee, Foreign Economic Affairs Legal Counsel to the Tianjin Municipal People’s Government, an
arbitrator of China International Economic and Trade and Arbitration Commission (CIETAC).

Ms. Chan previously served as a member of the Selection Committee for the selection of the First Chief Executive of Hong Kong SAR,
and member of the Election Committee for the selections of the Chief Executive of Hong Kong SAR and the Hong Kong SAR delegates
to the National People’s Congress. She was Chairman of Hong Kong CPPCC (Provincial) Members Association and now serves as
Honorary Chairman. She is Vice-president of Hong Kong Friendship Association and Honorary President of Hong Kong China Chamber
of Commerce.

She also served at a number of Hong Kong Government appointed positions, notably as a member of the Hong Kong Hospital
Authority, member of Hong Kong Public Service Commission, member of the Hong Kong Board of Education, member of Hong Kong
Examinations and Assessment Authority, Chairman of Public Complaints Committee, Chairman of Kowloon Hospital, Chairman of
Hong Kong Eye Hospital, Chairman of Tseung Kwan O Hospital, member of the governing committee of Queen Elizabeth Hospital,
member of the Medical Council of Hong Kong, Chairman of Pensions Appeal Panel, member of Administration Appeals Board,
adjudicator of Hong Kong Immigration Tribunal, member of Disciplinary Panel of Institute of Accountants, Council member of The
University of Science & Technology and Board member of Hong Kong Science and Technology Park Corporation.

She is Senior Consultant of Yang Chan & Jamison and Senior Advisor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and an independent Director of
Bank of Communications (HK) Limited Ms. Chan was appointed as a Director at the 2017 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing, aged 77, is a senior engineer. Mr. Zhan previously served as the chairman, general manager, deputy Party
Committee of Tianjin Zhongxin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd,, vice president of China Association of Traditional Chinese Medicine,
vice president of Tianjin Medical Association, vice president of Tianjin Association of Traditional Chinese Medicine; and a visiting
professor of Tianjin University. From June 2009 to May 2015, Mr. Zhan served as an independent director of Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. Mr.
Zhan was appointed as a Director at the 2017 AGM of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (Continued)

wHE - BHEARGHEEAR (M)

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Su Li, aged 40, chief supervisor, is an accountant with a bachelor’s degree. Ms. Su previously served as the finance supervisor of
Tong Ren Tang Holdings. She currently serves as the deputy head of financial management department of Tong Ren Tang Holdings.
Ms. Su was appointed as a Supervisor at the 2017 AGM of the Company.

Mr. Wu Yi Gang, aged 62, holding a bachelor degree of law, was admitted as a solicitor in 1984 and started practice in the same year.
Mr. Wu founded Wu Luan Zhao Yan Law Firm in Beijing in 1994 and has been the managing partner of the firm since then. He served
as one of the arbitrators of the first session of the Beijing Arbitration Commission in 1995. He currently serves as the deputy director of
Dedicated Working Committee for Reexamination of Disciplinary Actions Against Members of Beijing Lawyers Association, and
member of the First Council of Beijing Club of Non-Party Senior Intellectuals. He was appointed as a Supervisor at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 22 October 2003.

Mr. Li Yuan Hong, aged 57, has a bachelor’s degree. Mr. Li previously served as a staff member of the manufacturing department of
Tong Ren Tang Holdings, a deputy business supervisor of medicinal materials department of the Company, a business supervisor of
purchasing department, a deputy director of purchasing business department and a business director of medicinal material
department of the raw material branch. Mr. Li currently serves as the vice chairman of labour union and director of administration
department.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang De Chun, aged 58, is a Pharmacist-incharge with a postgraduate qualification. He formerly served as the assistant to the
factory manager and the deputy factory manager of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pharma, the deputy factory manager in charge of
production and the deputy manager of southern branch factory, the deputy factory manager, the factory manager and the secretary
to the Party Committee of northern branch factory of Tong Ren Tang Ltd, the deputy secretary to the Party Committee, the secretary
to the Disciplinary Inspection Committee and the chairman of the labour committee of the Company. He is currently the deputy
general manager of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Feng, aged 56, with a university qualification, formerly served as the secretary to the Party Committee and the manager of
a logistics distribution center of the Company and the assistant to the general manager of the Company. He currently serves as the
deputy general manager of the Company.

Mr. Dong Ling Yun, aged 47, is an engineer with a university qualification. He formerly served as the secretary to the Party Committee
and the factory manager of Yi Zhuang branch factory of the Company and the assistant to the general manager of the Company. He
currently serves as the deputy general manager of the Company.

Ms. Wang Yue, aged 52, is a senior engineer with a university qualification. She formerly served as the head of the product quality
department of the Company, the secretary to the Party Committee and the factory manager of Liujiayao branch factory of the
Company and the assistant to the general manager of the Company. She currently serves as the deputy general manager of the
Company.

Ms. Zhang Jing Yan, aged 47, is a licensed pharmacist with a master degree in economics. She formerly served as a securities
representative of Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. She is currently the secretary to the Board and the Company secretary.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD.
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the “Company”’) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 114 to 232, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. (Continued)
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to realisability of inventories:

Key Audit Matter

Realisability of Inventories

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Refer to Note 2.13 “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies — Inventories”, Note 4 “Critical Accounting Estimates
and Judgements” and Note 15 “Inventories” to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the gross balances of inventories
were RMB2,837,809,000, against which provision of
RMB104,477,000 were set aside. Inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value, and the latter is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs to completion and those necessary to make
the sale.

We focused on this area given the significance of inventories
at 31 December 2020 and that management applies
significant judgements in determining the appropriate level
of provisions for inventories based on inspections and
analyses of degree of obsolescence on various categories and
types of inventories, pricing plans for different products, etc.

106

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD.

*

We obtained evidence over the appropriateness of management's
assumptions in determining the net realisable value of inventories
by:

— evaluating and testing the Group’s controls over analysing
slow-moving indicators of raw materials and finished goods,
such as turnover ratios and aging structures on monthly
basis, as well as comparing sales budget with production
plan;

— verifying the effectiveness of inventory controls being
operated across the Group, including inspection of raw
materials and products by quality control officers, as well as
notification for products near expires;

— attending physical observations at production premises and
warehouses to identify any obsolescence and damages on
the Group's inventories;

— assessing the appropriateness and consistency of
management’s judgements and assumptions applied in
estimating the net realisable values; and

— comparing the net realisable values, to the carrying cost of
inventories to check for adequacy and calculation of
provisions.

Based on the above, we found that the assumptions and
judgements applied by management on their assessment of the
realisability of inventories were supported by the evidence we
obtained.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. (Continued)
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the

directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. (Continued)
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the

audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. (Continued)
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is LEONG Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021

(If there is any inconsistency between the English and Chinese version of the independent auditor’s report, the English version shall
prevail.)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

aEEAER

Asat 31 December2020 R-ZE_ZT#F+—-HA=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREFT
Assets EE
Non-current assets JE T EN & E
Property, plant and equipment 5 & MiZEEY) - S MR 1HE 6 2,649,350 2,301,261
Right-of-use assets {3 FA#E & & 7(a) 657,316 403,999
Intangible assets & &= 8 59,448 66,152
Investments accounted for using the equity method IZ A ABRRIIRE 10 24,242 25,678
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
NAREEFEEEZS T AEMEERENeREE 12(a) 5,140 9,839
Prepayments for purchase of non-current assets 3 7t ) & &= 1+ 3K 39,935 41973
Deferred income tax assets IEIEFT15 1 & & 16 51,883 40,771
3,487,314 2,889,673

Current assets B & &

Inventories & 15 2,733,332 2,321,784
Trade and bills receivables fE U BR 7 & & 14 1,044,856 1,194,589
Other financial assets at amortised cost LAk SRR ANGT 2R E M S L E E 31,918 35,773
Prepayments and other current assets TBA5H 5k &2 B (iR BV & 2= 190,201 119,061
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
NARBEAESEAREEHTABENEHEE 13 - 31,680
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
NAREBEAEAHESG AR MEGEARENERHEE 12(b) 50,824 27,311
Short-term bank deposits 48 HI$R 1717 3¢ 34(b) 454,395 859,454
Cash and cash equivalents IR & MR EEY) 34(b) 2,947,958 2,990,645
7,453,484 7,580,297
Total assets & E 45+ 10,940,798 10,469,970

Equity and liabilities #E% & & &

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 58 ER A QA A fiE &

Share capital B&Z< 17 1,280,784 1,280,784
Reserves f# 18 4,450,765 4,246,471
5,731,549 5,527,255

Non-controlling interests £ 12 &l M 5 9 2,019,956 1,887,319
Total equity fE#= & 5 7,751,505 7414574
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Asat 31 December2020 HR-ZE-—FTF+=-HA=+—4

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HteE ARBT T ARETT

Liabilities & &

Non-current liabilities JE R B & &

Borrowings & 5% 20 483,227 1,223,571
Lease liabilities 10 & & (& 7(b) 94,895 59,649
Deferred income tax liabilities #& T Fr 155t & & 16 5,842 6,022
Deferred income — government grants & SEH A — ER T 7 B 19 150,405 76,492

734,369 1,365,734

Current liabilities R B & &

Trade and bills payables &1 BR 3k & 4% 21 717,825 682,312
Salary and welfare payables f&{+ T & K 1@ 5| & 23 52,619 63,283
Contract liabilities & A & & 24 3,142 1,934
Current income tax liabilities & Bi P55 B (& 36,225 132,600
Other payables E th &1~ 5% 22 536,121 629,013
Borrowings &7k 20 1,056,299 140,198
Lease liabilities FA & & & 7(b) 52,693 40,322
2,454,924 1,689,662

Total liabilities & & & & 3,189,293 3,055,396
Total equity and liabilities = & & &4 5 10,940,798 10,469,970

The notes on pages 121 to 232 are an integral part of these financial 55121 =232 AWM 3T A& MBI G RF A BEE LD -
statements.

The financial statements on pages 114 to 232 were approved by the F114E 232 BN KRR HESTEN T - —
Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf. FZAZ+ AE IRKRESSEHEE -

Gu Hai Ou B8 & Fang Jia Zhi ER&

Chairman ZEF K Director 2%
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Consolidated Income Statement

o BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AREFTT

Revenue A 24 4,607,369 4,476,449
Cost of sales 4 X A 26 (2,539,659) (2/421,954)
Gross profit £ X 2,067,710 2,054,495
Distribution expenses $H% 2 F 26 (699,931) (718,684)
Administrative expenses & I & 26 (402,521) (397,551)
Net impairment losses on financial assets & &l & 2= JF I (B 18 %k 26 (22,296) (20,113)
Other income and gains, net E b iz X 715 + JF58 587 -
Operating profit & % 758 943,549 918,147
Finance income B % i &% 25 48,085 47,839
Finance costs 17 & A 25 (51,564) (41,025)
Finance (costs)/income, net B4 75 (B ),/ Uizk + /$%58 25 (3,479) 6,814

Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method

ZEREDEANRNRENEBENHRA 10 (451) (1,456)
Profit before income tax B F7 5% 51 K| 8 939,619 923,505
Income tax expense FT15: & 28 (153,112) (182,115)
Profit for the year £ £ FI;8 786,507 741,390

Profit attributable to: RE5E B :

Owners of the Company AR GIFT A & 467,553 417,650
Non-controlling interests FE45° Il 1t 4 7% 318,954 323,740
786,507 741,390

Earnings per share for profit attributable to owners
of the Company during the year
FANEBRUEFEBREAQXRAMEE
— Basic and diluted EA& L #5E & A Y s 29 RMBO0.37 RMB0.33

The notes on pages 121 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated 55 121 & 232 B WM BA HEF SRR A ZEIH -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GRSl EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFFE

2020 2019

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ftiE ARMF T ARETT

Profit for the year F E FI;& 786,507 741,390

Other comprehensive (losses)/income E 434 (18%) Wi

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss B 1% A] fE 44 B 7 X8 2 18z 1) TE H

Foreign currency translation differences MNE 37 & 2= 8
— Group (£ (153,484) 59,344
— Joint ventures and associates & % % it & (b 2 (898) (181)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 14 TEERE S M= B as 1A H
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income A A7 BEFTE B EEB)it AL MRS W

MEemEENBEES 12 (4,332) (3,947)
Other comprehensive (losses)/income for the year, net of tax

KEFHMERS (BKX) W MRBIR (158,714) 55216
Total comprehensive income for the year 7~ £ [E & 42 & I 25 627,793 796,606
Attributable to: FFEB R :

Owners of the Company A A RIFTA & 409,219 441,144

Non-controlling interests FE4% Il 14 4 2 218,574 355,462
Total comprehensive income for the year 7~ & E & 4R 4 W 75 627,793 796,606

The notes on pages 121 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated 55 121 & 232 AWM A& MBI BM R BEIH -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

5 DERE fR 52 B 3%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

Statutory

public

Share Capital

Capital

Balance as at 1 January 2019
RZF-NF-A-RHE 1,280,784 412245 492112 45455 102,043 32690 546 156,851

Comprehensive income 4 3%
Profit for the year £ 78 - - - - - - - -
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI')

IRA BfE E BEEHH AR BERA RGN

SREENNNBEED - - - - - - (1502 -
Foreign currency translation differences

INEEEE

—Goup 58 - - - - - 25,065 - -

— Joint ventures and associates & & R4 1% - - - - - (69) - -

Transactions with owners in their capacity

as owners

SEHAEEULREENIHETHRS
Appropriation from retained eamings RN BEAATE - - 55,246 - - - - -
2018 dividends distributed to shareholders

of the Company

ARARARR=Z-\FERE - - - - - - - -
2018 dividends distributed to non-controlling interests

AERFEHIMER T \FERE = = = = = = = =
Capital injection from non-controlling interests

FEEI RGN - - = = - - : .

Retained

earnings

2793926

417650

(55,246)

(230541)

417650

(1502)

25065
(69

(230541)

FEEER

i

1960,197

323740

(2449)

34279
(12)

(470970)

42,630

7,276,849

741,390

(3947)

59,344
(181)

(230,541)

(470970)

42630

Balance as at 31 December 2019
RZZ-NE+-A=+—-H4E 1,280,784 412,45 547358 45455 102,043 57686 (956) 156,851

2,925,789

5527255

1887319

7414574
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

o OF B 43 52 B 3% (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

Non-
Attributable to owners of the Company controlling
BRERADFFEE interests
FERM
i

Statutory  Statutory Foreign  Financial

surplus public currency assets

Share Capital reserve welfare Tax translation  atFvOCI Other  Retained

Capital Reserve fund fund reserve  differences reserve reserve  earnings
EERB EE M SHEE KOR
LT N i ] RS Mi¢  RHEE  FHEE EfRR  HftRk A
(Note17)  (Note 18(a)) (Note 18(b)) (Note18(b)) (Note 18(c)) (Note 18(d)) (Note 18(e))
(Wat17) (Batisa) (Hia1sb) (Hia18b) (B 18(c) (K 18(d) (Kt 18(e))
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTZ ARMTT ARMTR AR%TR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

Balance as at 1 January 2020
RZZ-EE-f-AKE 1,280,784 412,245 547,358 45,455 102,043 57,686 (956) 156,851 2,925,789 5,527,255 1,887,319 7,414,574

Comprehensive income & 3
Profit for the year £ 78 - - - - - - - - 867,553 467,553 318954 786,507
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI
DA BEERRETH AR A RN
SREENDNERED - - - - -
Foreign currency translation differences
INEERE
—Group & = o = = = (56,344) = = = (56,344) (97,140)  (153,484)
— Joint ventures and associates & & R & 5 = = = = = (342) = = = (342) (556) (898)

(1,648) - = (1,648) (2,684) (4,332)

Transactions with owners in their capacity

as owners

ERBFEENAFEENGHEANRS
Appropriation from retained eamings 2R ATE - - 38,172 - - - - - (38,172) - - -
2019 dividends distributed to shareholders

of the Company

AEARIRR-_B-NEERS = = = = = - - - (204925)  (204,925)
2019 dividends distributed to non-controlling interests

DGR RE_F-NEERE - - - - - - - - - - (130527)  (130,527)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests

SRR = = - - - - - - - - M50 4459

(204,925)

Balance as at 31 December 2020
R-E-Z5+-_A=1-H#%E 1,280,784 412,245 585,530 45,455 102,043 1,000 (2,604) 156,851 3,150,245 5,731,549 2,019,956 7,751,505

The notes on pages 121 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated 55 121 & 232 B Ml 3T A& GBI G SRR A BREL 2E 5 -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

LIRS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF T ARBTT

Cash flows from operating activities: ‘L& ZEHELNRERE :

Cash generated from operations A% & /& B) U Bl AV IR & 34(a) 758,742 1,194,049
Interest paid Sz 15 B 71| & (63,518) (44,224)
Income tax paid 2 1< B FT 15 F4 (259,414) (98,050)
Net cash generated from operating activities &4 E BN EIFY IR & R 25 58 435,810 1,051,775

Cash flows from investing activities: R EFHELNBRESRE :

Purchase of property, plant and equipment i B B & & EEY) - BE K& E (545,902) (210,423)
Purchase of land use rights & & = 3 57 F 4 (226,347) (58,136)
Purchase of other long-term assets i B E b R Hi & &= (9,053) (7,395)
Proceeds from government grants relating to property, plant and equipment

WEIEREE [Z IR EEY) - BB MR @18 B 80 UM /8 BY 4,011 5,669
Proceeds from government grants relating to land use rights

Wi 3] E8 + 3 {5 P A AEL B N BT 4R B 74,545 -

Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment and

other long-term assets f& & 5 [E B EEY) - BFE L& EH

Hih REABEEMKIIME S 3,003 153
Proceeds from disposals of land use rights Bz & 1= #0{ FA 4 AT IR B M IR & 11,341 -
Increase in short-term bank deposits £ HiR 1T 7 ZIEMET L IR & (454,395) (859,454)
Decrease in short-term bank deposits %2 i8R 1717 FUR D FTI E B3R & 859,454 1,534,407
Proceeds from wealth management products $81738 B & fa 3R & i A 95,518 466,290
Increase in wealth management products $R173E 81 & SR IR € 7 (63,838) (468,970)
Dividends received Y E K9 3% 2. 147 171
Interest received U EI| /) F1| 2. 56,076 54,590

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

REES (), WENR e REFHE (195,440) 456,902
Cash flows from financing activities: E&EEBHELNHRESRE
Proceeds from borrowings & 2T UL ZI|#938 & 236,237 435,000
Repayments of borrowings 8 & {8 KT (S BIIR & (50,148) (200,146)
Principal elements of lease payments T8 &1 FREEM AN & E0 5 (56,480) (45,343)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests FE4ZE HI 1 #E 25 H & 44,590 42,630
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company 142 A1A% B 32 < % & (204,925) (230,541)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [A] FE4% i 14 #E 25 2 1< A% 8. (133,787) (467,710)
Net cash used in financing activities £ & E &) ¥ (FHIR & R E/F5 (164,513) (466,110)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 38 & & 38 & S8 ¥/ 0 75,857 1,042,567
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Re LB SEYNFIIRE 2,990,645 1,904,036
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
EXFHHIRSRREFEMNTE (118,544) 44,042
Cash and cash equivalents at end of theyear RE R RS ZE YN ERBE 340 2,947,958 2,990,645
The notes on pages 121 to 232 are an integral part of these consolidated 121 2232 BT A HTIERERNEEITS

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o BF B 5 e 3 B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated
as a joint stock limited company in Beijing, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC" or “China”) on 22 March 2000. The address of its registered
office is No. 16 Tongji Beilu, Beijing Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Beijing, the PRC.

The Company and its subsidiaries are hereafter collectively referred to as
the “Group”. The Group is principally engaged in the production and
distribution of Chinese medicine and primarily operates in Mainland
China and Hong Kong.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider China Beijing
Tong Ren Tang Group Co,, Ltd, a limited liability company incorporated
in Beijing, the PRC, as the ultimate holding company.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(the "GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 31 October 2000. On 9 July 2010, the Company
transferred the listing from GEM to the Main Board (the “MB”) of the Stock
Exchange.

These financial statements are presented in RMB unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021.

RN EBERREBARAA o

1. —RER
TRECEREERROBER B[R
Al RR_ZEETF=A_F+_HEHEA
REME([HFE IR IZRNDERAE] ©
AN B E M A A AR B 4L SR b AR E Rl
FERREILK 1655

RRABREFRBATGHES[AEEH] - K
SEIZXGRATHEREMPE  TEEEH
AP EAREE o

ARFEE ((HE)RA - £ EILRKLL
BEIERC % (RE) EREEAR - AR
AT o

ARRIEZZEZFT A=+ ARBEHA
RBBERAR ([BARAT])BIZER £ - K=
Z-TFLANE  ARBHBZAEIFERE
EXfREme

RPBHRERAAREIIR (BRIEASBHRA) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. —RER @)

TXHIARE—NFR_ZE_FTF+_A
=T —HAMERTAFA

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 and
2020:

Place/date of
incorporation/

kind of legal entity

Effective equity
interest held

Issued/registered/
paid-up capital

Principal activities/
place of operation

B3 - B BRfT/E2f/
REAEH FEERER BREX FEXBENELH
2020 2019
Subsidiaries:
FAA
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Henan Henan, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB4,000,000 Cultivating, selling and
Technological development of Chinese 24 October 2001 AR 40000007T  technological development
Medicinal Raw Materials Co,, Limited Limited liability company of Chinese medicinal raw
(‘Tong Ren Tang Henan’) H Bl materials
ERACEABPENRRRR 2001F10A 244 Henan, PRC
AR BREERT g - HE -
((BfEmE]) th B BRI B
hEAE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Hubei Chinese Hubei, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB3,000,000 Cultivating, purchasing and
Medicinal Raw Materials Co, Limited 26 October 2001 AEH30000007C  selling of Chinese medicinal
(‘Tong Ren Tang Hubei’) Limited liability company raw materials
ERACERIPERBRRF aliible Hubel, PRC
([REME]) 2001F10A26H hEMEE - WE -
BREERT HE
FEL#L
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Zhejiang Chinese Zhejiang, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB10,000,000 Cultivating, purchasing and
Medicinal Raw Materials Co,, Limited 31 October 2001 ARE100000007T  selling of Chinese medicinal
(‘Tong Ren Tang Zhejiang’) Limited liability company raw materials
TRACERTIFENBRAH HELHTT Zhejiang, PRC
([REWT)) 20015108318 hEMEE - W -
BREERH HE
th BT
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Hebei Technological  Hebei, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB48,000,000 Cultivating, purchasing and
development of Chinese Medicinal 19 November 2001 AR 480000007 selling of Chinese medicinal
Raw Materials Co,, Limited Limited liability company raw materials
(‘Tong Ren Tang Hebei') B L Hebei, PRC
I RRIC E AL B R R B 200111 A19A hEMEE - W -
AR BREERH HE
((R{=Em]) HEDT L

= Effective equity interests directly held by the Company
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

— & B a0

—EFEL A=+ —HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1.

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

Ry E - A5
REAEH

Effective equity Issued/registered/
paid-up capital
BB/
BWEX

interest held

GiEsd Gl 34
2020 2019

Principal activities/
place of operation

FERBENCE

Subsidiaries: (Continued)

FRA (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tongke
Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(‘Tong Ren Tang Tongke")

ERRCERMEREREER
((RACEEN])

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies
(Tangshan) Co, Ltd
(‘Tong Ren Tang
Technologies Tangshan’)
ﬁﬁﬂfiﬂ&%@ﬂ%M)
BRA
GEtﬁﬂﬁEmD

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies
Chengdu Co, Ltd
(‘Tong Ren Tang Chengdu’)
ERRACERMRBERKBERR
(TRM=ER#))

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional
Chinese Medicine Hospital Co, Ltd
(‘Tong Ren Tang Second Traditional
Chinese Medicine Hospital’)

ERRACEE_PEBREREER
(IFM-EE=hEER])

Beijing, PRC

4 November 2003
Limited liability company
HELR

2003E 11 H4R8
BREAEAF

Hebei, PRC

17 June 2015

Limited liability company
RED L

2015F6 7178
BREERT

Sichuan, PRC

26 February 2003
Limited liability company
FR e )|
20032 A 26 H
BREERF

Beijing, PRC

12 September 2000
Limited liability company
HREER
200069 A 128
BREERAH

* Effective equity interests directly held by the Company

95%* 95%* RMB75,000,000

AR 75000000 7T

100%* 1009%* RMB850,000,000

AR 850,000,000 7T

51%* 51%* RMB53,061,200

ARH530612007C

100%* 1009* RMB10,492,914

ARE104929147C

* HAR
Ao R A B B B8 R I AR A R

o CECFEEH

Production of cintment, medical
research and development
Beijing, PRC
SEEH

HELR

BERAS

Production (including
extraction) of Chinese
medicine, food and
healthcare products

Hebei, PRC

HERER S (F g
B - RBK
RiEm

FRET L

Production and processing of
biochemical products and
Chinese medicine, extraction
and processing of plants

Sichuan, PRC

HE - MIEEAH
th BB R ASAEY T
B

FRE )|

Internal and external surgery,
medical examination,
traditional Chinese medicine
department and hospital
management

Beijing, PRC

AsMRE - BBmER - PER
R ERER

HElE R

AEZE BB e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. —RER @)

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

Effective equity Issued/registered/
paid-up capital
BB/
BlEX

Principal activities/
interest held place of operation
RIS - B
REAEH FEERES

2020 2019

FEEBNEED

Subsidiaries: (Continued)

FARA (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Hong Kong, PRC 38.05%* 38.05%* HKD938,789,000 Manufacturing, retail and
Company Limited @ 18 March 2004 71 0938,789,0007T  wholesale of Chinese
('Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine’)  Limited liability company medicine products and

TRRCEREERAR REEE healthcare products and
((R-EEE]) 200438180 provision of Chinese medical

BREEAA consultation and treatments
Hong Kong, PRC
hEEMMRERNEE -

TERBBWRME
hEDE
hEEE

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Nansanhuan Zhonglu  Beijing, PRC 100%* 100%* RMB500,000 Sales of medicinal products
Drugstore Co, Limited 28 April 2004 ARH5000007C Beijing, PRC
(‘Nansanhuan Zhonglu Drugstore’)  Limited liability company EREE

TRRCEE=RPREERRAR  PELER hELR
(=BT REE]) 200464 28R

BREERH

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Yanbian Chinese Jilin, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB4,000,000 Cultivating and selling of
Medicinal Raw Materials Co, Limited 24 September 2004 AR#40000007C  Chinese medicinal raw
(‘Tong Ren Tang Yanbian) Limited liability company materials

TRACEEEFENEMBRAR  REEHK Jilin, PRC
(TR-ZER)) 200494248 hEMBE - HE

BREERH AR A

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Anhui Chinese Anhui, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB24,000,000 Cultivating, purchasing and

Medicinal Raw Materials Co,, Limited 18 October 2004 ARE240000007c  selling of Chinese medicinal

(‘Tong Ren Tang Anhui’)

Limited liability company

raw materials

TRRCELRERENFRAR REZH Anhui, PRC
((RCEZ#]) 2004F10A 18R B TR - I
BRETAT HE
REZH

- Effective equity interests directly held by the Company
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. —REB @

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

Ry E - A5
REAEH

Effective equity Issued/registered/
paid-up capital
BB/
BWEX

interest held

GiEsd Gl 34
2020 2019

Principal activities/
place of operation

FEEBNEE R

Subsidiaries: (Continued)

FRA (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang WM Dianorm Biotech  Beijing, PRC 60%* 60%* USD3,000,000 Technological development and
Co, Limited 20 February 2001 EJL3,0000007C  sales of biological products,
(‘Tong Ren Tang WM’) Sino-foreign equity joint Chinese and western

T RACEERFEYRMERAA) venture medicines, cosmetics and
((RE-E2EmS)) REER healthcare products

20012/ 208 Beijing, PRC
PHNEELE EEm  PEE (s
MR R B0 BB 3
RHE
FEE R

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Hong Kong, PRC 53.09%* 53.09%* HKD75,000,000 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Group Co, Ltd. 1 March 2012 7B 750000007 Hong Kong, PRC
("Chinese Medicine Group ") Limited liability company WEER

ERRECEZRE(FE)SBERAR  HEEE REER
W=E 00 201293818

BREFAF

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Xing An Healthcare  Beijing, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB69,000,000 Cultivating, purchasing and
Technologies Co. Limited 14 April 2004 AR 690000007 selling of Chinese medicinal
("Tong Ren Tang Xing An Healthcare’)  Limited liability company raw materials, production and

TRACERZREMREREELA  RELER selling of tea drinks product
((REERZRRE]) 20044148 series and foot care product

BREFEAF series
Beijing, PRC
hEpEE W HE;
rPERRTARER
KE - HE
hEILR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising  Beijing, PRC 100%* 1009%* RMB1,000,000 Advertisement services
Co, Limited 25 September 2013 AR 1,000,0007C Beijing, PRC
(‘Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising’) Limited liability company B3R EIRTS

TRACEHLEEARAR HEER HEER
(IR-EtLES]) 2013F9A25R

BREERAH

* Effective equity interests directly held by the Company

* AR FEEF B B

Ao R A B B B8 R I AR A R

o CECFEEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. —RER @)

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

Effective equity Issued/registered/ Principal activities/
paid-up capital place of operation
BRfT/#R/
BWESR TeXRANTE

interest held
Ryt - A

REAER Fris Bk R

2020

2019

Subsidiaries: (Continued)

FARA (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Tangshan) Nutrition  Hebei, PRC 74%* 74%* RMB170,000,000 Production and sales of
and Healthcare Co, Ltd 13 September 2010 AREE1700000007C  healthcare products and
(‘Tong Ren Tang Tangshan Healthcare") Limited liability company Chinese medicine

ERRCE (B EERERBBAF  HETL Hebei, PRC
(TRM-EEWLRER]) 201069A138 FRiEmRTPELER

BREERT HE
BT 4L

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies Liaoning, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB136,000,000 Production and sales of deer
(Liaoning) Pharmaceutical Company 25July 2018 AR 13600000070 series Chinese medicine and
Limited Limited liability company healthcare food
(‘'Tong Ren Tang Liaoning’) hEEE Liaoning, PRC

TRACE (EB)MBEXARART  2018F7A25H BERIPRERRRR M
((AEERZ]) BREERF EEREE

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Technologies Hebei, PRC 51%* 51%* RMB66,000,000 Cultivation technology
(Xingtang) Donkey Industry Company 15March 2019 AR 660000007C  development, production
Limited Limited liability company and sales of food
(‘'Tong Ren Tang Xingtang’) FELA L Hebei, PRC

ERACEREER (TR E% 201943158 RERMAE  REMIR
BRAH BREEAH HE
((BEESTED BT

Beijing Tong Ren Tang International Beijing, PRC 100%%** 10096** HKD10,000,000 Sales and distribution of Chinese
Natural-Pharm Co, Ltd. 6 March 2006 B 10,0000007C  medicine products and
(‘Tong Ren Tang Limited liability company healthcare products
International Natural-Pharm’) FREE R Beijing, PRC

ERACEZRREXERAA 200653 A6H HERDHPEERR
((RERBRER]) BREEAH REEm

hEILR
3 Effective equity interests directly held by the Company o HA RN BB EEE R
**  Fffective equity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine »  AECEEEEERA BN E R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. —REB @

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

Effective equity

interest held paid-up capital
RIS - B
REAER FrisBERER

2020 2019

BEREAX

BRI/

Issued/registered/ Principal activities/

place of operation

FEEBNEE R

Subsidiaries: (Continued)

FAA: (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Australia Pty. Ltd. Sydney, Australia 75%%** 75%** AUD1,000,000 Wholesale and retail of Chinese
(‘Tong Ren Tang Australia’) 20 May 2004 BAFTZIL  medicine products and
LIRECE(RBAFE) BRAF Limited liability company 10000007 healthcare products and
((REEERAFE]) BAFRER provision of Chinese medical
2004F5H 208 consultation and treatments
BREEANA Sydney, Australia
HERTEREERERRER
N RERRBEDBERS
RAFBER
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Science Arts Singapore 51%%** 519%** SGD857,000 Wholesale and retail of Chinese
(Singapore) Co Pte. Ltd. 1 December 2003 HT7T857,0007C  medicine products and
(‘Tong Ren Tang Singapore’) Limited liability company healthcare products and
LRECERME (RE)LABRAR  #% provision of Chinese medical
([R=EHmE ) 200312818 consultation and treatments
BEREAAT Singapore
HERTEREERERRER
DA KRt B2 B IRTS
GRIbs
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Toronto) Inc. Toronto, Canada 51%%** 519%** CAD497300 Retail of Chinese medicine
(‘Tong Ren Tang Toronto’) 24 June 2010 INEAIL4973007T  products and healthcare
IRACE(ZR%)ERAR Limited liability company products and provision of
((R-E%m%]) NEX%RE% Chinese medical consultation
201046 A 24H and treatments
BRELAA Toronto, Canada
ZEREERERERAR
REFBLERE
NeEX%H%
** Fffective equity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine R EEEE R B s

Ao R A B B B8 R I AR A R

o CECFEEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. —RER @)

Place/date of
incorporation/ Effective equity Issued/registered/ Principal activities/
kind of legal entity interest held paid-up capital place of operation

R B8 BB/
SEIN i FrisEmRREs BEREX TERBNLEH
2020 2019

Subsidiaries: (Continued)

FARA (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Macau) Company Macau, PRC 51%** 519%* MOP1,000,000 Wholesale and retail of Chinese
Limited 28 October 2002 SBPI7L1,0000007C  medicine products and
("Tong Ren Tang Macau’) Limited liability company healthcare products and

I RELCE (R BRAH LR provision of Chinese medical
([EM=ZRM ) 200210 A 28R consultation and treatments

BREMERT Macau, PRC

HERFETEERERRE
A R R BD B RS

R ER M
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Gulf FZ-LLC Dubai, United Arab Emirates 51%%** 519%** AED1,920,000 Retail of Chinese medicine
(‘Tong Ren Tang Gulf) 8June 2011 PIEEPS A products and healthcare
ERACEFEERAT Limited liability company 19200007 products and provision of
((REsE]) PR & B RE ST Chinese medical consultation
011F6A8H and treatments
BREFAA Dubai, United Arab Emirates

TETEERAREMIAR
REPEDERG

WA R A REBE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Poland sp.zo.o. Warsaw, Poland 100%** 10096** Zloty130,000 Retail of Chinese medicine
(‘Tong Ren Tang Poland’) 26 July 2012, WEZER  products and healthcare
IRACE (KB BRAF Limited liability company 1300007C  products and provision of
((R-ZKE]) N E Chinese healthcare treatments
2012%78 268 Warsaw, Poland
BREFAH TEREERERRERIAR
Rt E D BRE
KRED
**  Fffective equity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine »  AECEEEEE AN e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. —REB @

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

B bR - A
REAEH

Effective equity

Issued/registered/
paid-up capital
BB/
BhER

interest held

FrisERELR

2020 2019

Principal activities/
place of operation

FEEBNEE R

Subsidiaries: (Continued)

FAA: (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Canada Co. Ltd. Vancouver, Canada 51%** 519%* CAD1,000,000 Retail of Chinese medicine
(‘Tong Ren Tang Canada’) 11 January 2002 MEARTL  products and healthcare
LRRECE(NER)BERAH Limited liability company 10000007 products and provision of
([REEmzX]) MERRFE Chinese medical consultation
002F1H118 and treatments
BREEANA Vancouver, Canada
TEFEERERERAR
REPBDBRG
MeXRTFE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Seoul) Company Seoul, South Korea 51%%** 51%*  WONT,052,000,000 Wholesale of Chinese medicine
Limited 10 March 2014 8711,052,0000007C  products and healthcare
("Tong Ren Tang Seoul’) Limited liability company products
IRACE(ER) Rt ZFEER Seoul, South Korea
(IF-ZE®]) 2014F3A108 HEPEERARER
BREAAF BEER
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Auckland) Company  Auckland, New Zealand 51%** 519%** NZD2,000,000 Retail of Chinese medicine

Limited 2 May 2014 BT products and healthcare
(‘Tong Ren Tang Auckland") Limited liability company 2,0000007C  products and provision of
IRACE(RRE) BRAR FRERRE Chinese medical consultation

((RCER%H]) 2014%F5828 and treatments
BREAAT Auckland, New Zealand

3 Effective equity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine

TETEERAREMAR
Rt ED RS
HEHRRH

* HFCEEEEEF A B ER

Ao R A B B B8 R I AR A R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1.

— & B

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

Effective equity Issued/registered/
paid-up capital
BB/
BlEX

interest held
RIHE - B
RAEAER BN ER

2020 2019

Principal activities/
place of operation

FEEBNEED

Subsidiaries: (Continued)

FARA (&)

Retail of Chinese medicine
products and healthcare
products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation

TETEEREREMAR
RUPELRRG

Wholesale of Chinese medicine
products and healthcare

HEPEERERER

Retail of Chinese medicine
products and healthcare
products and provision of
Chinese medical consultation

TETEERBREMAR
R EDRRG

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Tong Le Hong Kong, PRC 100%** 10096** HKD10,000
Company Limited 19 May 2014 B 100007T
(‘Tong Ren Tang Tong Xin Tong Le") Limited liability company
IRRACERLRLERAF REEE
((EM=ZRIDEE]) 2014F5819A8 and treatments
BREEAA Hong Kong, PRC
HEER
Honour Essence Trading Limited Hong Kong, PRC 51%** 519%** HKD2,000
("Honour Essence’) 10 March 1997 I 2,000 7T
REESHBERRA Limited liability company products
([XEE%)) REER Hong Kong, PRC
199763 A10R
BREFLNA HEER
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Vancouver Vancouver, Canada 51%%** 519 CAD750,000
Healthcare Center Co, Ltd 19 January 2016 INE AT 750,000 70
(‘Tong Ren Tang Vancouver’) Limited liability company
TRACERFEREROERAR MERRTFE
((REERFE]) 2016%1 4198 and treatments
BEREARAA Vancouver, Canada
neRREE
** Fffective equity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine »  HECEEEEESR R ER s
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. —REB @

Place/date of
incorporation/ Effective equity Issued/registered/ Principal activities/
kind of legal entity interest held paid-up capital place of operation

Rt B8 BRI/
IV GiEsd Gl 34 BEREX TERBNLEEH
2020 2019

Subsidiaries: (Continued)

FAA: (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Melbourne Pty Melbourne, Australia 38%*** 389 AUD100,000 Retail of Chinese medicine
Limited 9 April 2014 BAFIZET  products and healthcare
("Tong Ren Tang Melbourne’) Limited liability company 1000007T  products and provision of

LTRRACE(RRER)BRATH BAFDREAR Chinese medical consultation
((REEEEA]) 2014F439AR and treatments

BREEANA Melbourne, Australia

TETEEREREMIAR
RUPEDERG

BAFIREAA
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Pudu Health Den Haag, the Netherlands 45%%*** 4596%** Euro650,000 Retail of Chinese medicine
Centre BV. 17 August 2015 BA7T650,0007C  products and healthcare
("Tong Ren Tang Pudu’) Limited liability Company products and provision of
IRACELEREROERAF wEBT Chinese medical consultation
([R-E2EE) 2015F8 7178 and treatments
BEREAAT Den Haag, the Netherlands

TETEERERERIAR
REFEDERG

wHET
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Czech Republic SE Prague, the Czech Republic 45%%*** 45%*** (ZK3,296,400 Retail of Chinese medicine
(‘Tong Ren Tang Czech’) 11 December 2015 #RRM  productsand healthcare
IRACE () BRAR Limited liability company 3,2964007C  products and provision of
((Rf-EER]) BRmAE Chinese medical consultation
2015612411 H and treatments
BRELAA Prague, the Czech Republic

TETEEMERRERAR
RUPBELRRG

Ermaug
***  [ffective equity interests indirectly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine we f [T B B R B ) B R e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. —RER @)

Place/date of
incorporation/ Effective equity Issued/registered/ Principal activities/
kind of legal entity interest held paid-up capital place of operation

R B8 BB/
SEIN i FrisEmRREs BEREX TERBNLEH
2020 2019

Subsidiaries: (Continued)

FARA (&)

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Sweden AB Stockholm, Sweden 45%%*** 459%** SEK50,000 Retail of Chinese medicine
(‘Tong Ren Tang Sweden’) 9 September 2015 IRERAIS00007  products and healthcare
IRACE(RR)BRAH Limited liability company products and provision of
([E=E2Hma]) T E A Chinese medical consultation
2015F9H9H and treatments
BEREEAT Stockholm, Sweden

TETEEREREMAR
RUPELRRG
A ETRE

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Los Angeles Los Angeles, United States 519%%*** 5190 USD600,000 Retail of Chinese medicine
Healthcare Center LLC 18 November 2015 EJT6000007C  products and healthcare
(‘Tong Ren Tang Los Angeles’) Limited liability company products and provision of

LRACEREBERLBRAF BRI B Chinese medical consultation
([R=ERPH)) 2015%F11 A18H and treatments

EREAAT Los Angeles, United States

TETEERAREMIAR
REPEDERG

BRI
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Concord New York, United States 519%%*** 519 USD800,000 Wholesale and retail of Chinese
New York LLC 13 June 2016 %708000007T  medicine products and
(‘Tong Ren Tang Concord’) Limited liability company healthcare products and
ERRCERMANER AT ZEAL provision of Chinese medical
([RM=EiHA ) 20166 4138 consultation and treatments
BREFAT New York, United States

HERTETEERE
{RiEm A R R B D&

R
***  [ffective equity interests indirectly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine xR B R ) B R
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Subsidiaries: (Continued)

FAA: (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

Ry E - A5
REAEH

1. — &R @

Effective equity Issued/registered/
paid-up capital
BB/
BWEX

interest held

GiEsd Gl 34
2020 2019

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

Principal activities/
place of operation

Wholesale and retail of Chinese
medicine products and
healthcare products

New York, United States

HERTEPEERERRED

Provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

Wholesale and retail of Chinese
medicine products and
healthcare products and
provision of Chinese medical
consultation and treatments

Los Angeles, United States

HERTEPEEMERER
IR SRt o B8 20 B AR

Beijing Tong Ren Tang Ming New York, United States 60%*** 6006 * USD200,000
Qi Group, LLC 22 April 2005 37020000075
(‘Tong Ren Tang Mingqi’) Limited liability company
T RACEREERAT EEAH
(TR WBi]) 2005F4 8228
BRELAF ES
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Swiss SA Geneva, Switzerland 45%%*** 459%%** CHF500,000
(‘Tong Ren Tang Swiss’) 8 September 2017 B 1 AE8 500,000 7T
IRACERIRHERAT Limited liability company Geneva, Switzerland
(IBEHL]) WTBRE REHBORRG
017%59A8H mtAARR
BREFAF
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Los Angeles, United States 51%*** 519*** USD600,000
(San Gabriel CA) LLC 15 June 2017 77600000 7T
(‘Tong Ren Tang San Gabrieal CA”) limited liability company
ERECE (BERMM) BR AR EBRIHE
(IREEZEHMM]) 2017F6A158
BREERF
EBRIH
Effective equity interests indirectly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine *x h[E]{C BB B A A BN A

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine was incorporated in Hong Kong in 2004,
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange in May 2013, and transferred to
the MB of the Stock Exchange in May 2018 (stock code: 3613.HK). Beijing
Tong Ren Tang Company Limited (“Tong Ren Tang Ltd.") held 33.62%
equity interest of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine. Although the Group
owns less than half of the equity interest, it has secured 71.67% of the
voting rights of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine by virtue of a concert
party agreement with Tong Ren Tang Ltd.. Consequently, the Group

consolidates Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine.

13 1N 50%

Ao R A B B B8 R I AR A R

FCEESERN T NFEREEBEMAL - R
—E - —FRAEBRAAIEREE LT YR
T \FRAEBEHIMER EM(BRENRE
3613HK) c It RACEROBER A ([EZERS])
B A EC 2B 33,620 HIARHE - HEARNEBFTIFR
BRASEARCERHNERS
TEWE AL NS 71.67% KR RIE » FTAKREE
BRI EEEEMNA S HFEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (cONTINUED) 1. — &R @
The following is a list of principal joint ventures and associates as at 31  NXHIR —_E—HNER T _FTF+ A
December 2019 and 2020: =S t—HRNEESEDEMBE M

Place/date of

incorporation/ Effective equity Issued/registered/ Principal activities/
kind of legal entity interest held paid-up capital place of operation
R - A BRI/ G/
REANER FRERER BRER FEEBANLE
2020 2019
Joint ventures:
REPE:
Peking Tongrentang (M) SDN. BHD. @ Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 60%** 60%** MYR1,900,000 Retail of Chinese medicine
(‘Tong Ren Tang Malaysia’) 19 January 2001 SRFADBMER  products and healthcare
IRACE(E)BRARC Limited liability company 19000007 products and provision of
((R-EBERAEE]) SRATEREYE Chinese medical consultation
2001F1 /8198 and treatments
BREFAF TEPEEMEREDIAR
Rt ED BIRE
Beijing Tong Ren Tang (Thailand) Co,, Ltd.”  Bangkok, Thailand 49%** 49%** THB38,000,000 Wholesale and retail of Chinese
(‘Tong Ren Tang Thailand) 23 March 2000 Z2#£38,0000007C  medicine products and
TRECE (GE)ERRE Limited liability company healthcare products and
((R-E2%E]) ZEEA provision of Chinese medical
200063 A 23H consultation and treatments
BEREERAT HERTEPEEMARED
MR AR EDBRS
Union Health International Limited Hong Kong, PRC 50%** 50%** HKD10,000 Retail of Chinese medicine
(‘Tong Ren Tang Fook Ming Tang’) 3 May 2004 100007 products and healthcare
EREBRARAR Limited liability company products and provision of
([R-ERHE ) REAS Chinese medical consultation
200445H3H and treatments
BREFAH TEPEEREREDUR
Rt E D BRG
*  Fffective equity interests directly held by Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine = HECEEEEERFE N ER D
@ Although the Company owns more or less than 50% of the equity interests @ BEARRAFAEZSZERE NN DR 50%RE - 16
in these entities, the directors of the Company consider that these entities BERBEEE s ZSERNLE  KEXHBE
are joint ventures of the Company because decisions about their operating, TEEVATEHBARA T RE SR LRIES] - mIEh
investing and financing activities are jointly controlled by the Company and RAARIBHEZEGSBEEATZE  WARRES
the joint venture partners in accordance with the joint venture agreements REZEBTREBTIANANTEEDE -
rather than under the unilateral control or significant influence of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Place/date of
incorporation/
kind of legal entity

Ry E - A5

Effective equity
interest held

FrisERELR

1. — &R @

Issued/registered/ Principal activities/
paid-up capital place of operation
BRI/
BWER TeXRANTE
2019

& INil
2020
Associates:
BELE:
Tong Ren Tang Shanxi Sheye Co,, Ltd. Shanxi, PRC 29%*
(‘Tong Ren Tang Sheye’) 14 December 2015
IRRACERAEEERAA Limited liability company
(IRCERX]) i EIBR T
0155124148
BREERF

* Effective equity interests directly held by the Company

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Tong Ren Tang Technologies
Co. Ltd. have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of financial assets at FVOCI and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL").

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

RN EBERREBARAA o

29%* RMB30,000,000 Manufacturing and breed of musk,

AREE300000007T  production and sales of related
products

HWREE  ZERERER
LEHE

*

AR FE R R B
2. HEEFHBORTR

AR APV RRIXANEZ SRR
TX - BRAAHBAIN - WEBERES R
BFEERERER -

2.1 HRILHE

ERFACERRERERDER QBN A FIIH
BRERBERM B RELERMEB (R AE
PR ERERE - BHPBHRRRBES
AL RS WERNRAEBEFEEEE
AtARMERA W EN S BEEMA R EEF
EREEHTABENSREENSHIELE
HI

BT A BRSSP BRI T EE
METRRE G -  ENFTREEBERR
AEBEN ST BRBIETITEELHE - P RS
EmHE R EEME - S REEHI R
RIFLERBRMGNEE - ERE4P R

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
2.1.1.1 Adoption of new standards and amendments to standards

The Group has adopted the following new standards and amendments
to standards which are mandatory for the financial year beginning on
January 2020:

2. HREFHBORNE w0

2.1 SR )

Q1S BERNKENRE

21.1.1B IRV BIHT =T R R 2R 2 55T
AEBARMN —_T_TF—-A—BRBIY
Eﬁ}iﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ“ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ KR 2 ERTIN

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

Definition of Material

BIRR & 5T RIS 1 SRANEE 8 5% (182k) BANER

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business
B B B 75 s 5 2 A1 3B 3 5% (1824 TENTER

Amendments to IFRS 7, IAS 39 and IFRS 9 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
BIPR BT S 22 RIS 7 5% - BIPR = ET 4R Fl AL E

55 39 5% I B B 75 e o E R 58 9 5% (1B 250)
Amendments to IFRS 16
RN B 5 R 5 2R RIS 16 5% (12250
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

MmE cBOERE

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions ™
BV TSR = b R ABRAE £ RE O
Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

MBREZBOEREZER

o Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 June 2020

The Group has early adopted Amendment to IFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions” retrospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendment
provides an optional practical expedient allowing lessees to elect not to
assess whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease
modification. Lessees adopting this election may account for qualifying
rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease
modifications. The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if
all of the following conditions are met: (a) the change in lease payments
results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments due
on or before 30 June 2021; and (c) there is no substantive change to
other terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19-
related rent concessions. Rent concessions have been accounted for as
negative variable lease payments and recognised in administrative
expenses and distribution expenses (Note 26) in the consolidated income
statement for the the year ended 31 December 2020, with a
corresponding adjustment to the lease liability. There is no impact on the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2020.

The other amendments listed did not have material impact on the
Group’s accounting policies and did not require retrospective
adjustments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

—EFEL A=+ —HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Continued)
2.1.1.2 Standards and amendments which are not yet effective

The following are new/revised standards and amendments to existing
standards that have been published and are relevant and mandatory for
the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, but

have not been early adopted by the Group.

2. BHEGFIBORTEEw

2.1 BRI )

21N BHENEENEE @
2.1.1.2/a 7K £ 3 Y 2E B RASET
THEBmHFE] BRI ER MR AR 2

Vg ﬁ%?&ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ?ﬁ%llﬁﬁ
B

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, \FRS 4 and IFRS 16
BIPR A TS S5 22 RIS o5 ~ BUBR = 5T 42 ZE 3955 -
BIR BA TS 3R 5 LE RIS 7 5% Iﬁfﬁﬁaﬁ%aﬁ&%@iﬂu

5455 I BIRR B s S 22 RS 16 5% (1B 250
Amendments toIAS 1
SERTERIE 5 (BR)
Amendments to IAS 16
BB & =R 16 5% (1B 20
Amendments to IAS 37
B & SRS 37 5% (1820
Amendments to IFRS 3
IR B 75 e o5 A2 AU S8 3 5% (18240
IFRS 17
BB B 7 i 5 A RIS 17 5%
Narrow-scope amendments to IAS 1,
IFRS Practice Statement 2 and IAS 8

B e ERE 15 REMEHREEREHA
FE2RABEBR S ERF SR/ N EE N

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (Amendments)
B B B S SR A5 2E B S5 1057 R BB 2 5T 4B R 55 28 5 (15240

Amendments to IFRSs

BB B 15 R 5 AR Bl 2 1B 5T

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 "
FEEERE — F[EEO

Classification of Liabilities as Current/Non-current @

B, FERBABEN DAY

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use @

M - B MR E — BEBE AP SHOR

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract @

BiEaR — BITEREHKA

Reference to the Conceptual Framework @

BaiERe

Insurance Contracts

(3=

D|sclosure of Accounting Policies and definition of
Accounting Estimates ©

SHRENEENSH T tEEo

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture ©

KEEREBEaS a2 hbENEELHESIHRAC

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 ©@

20182020 £F B R B 75 S 25 £ Bl 2 6F [ B @

RIEAEERN T - —F—HF—Hs iZfé:F%ﬂﬁ‘*
HEZR SR B3 42

0 Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2021

@ Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2022

O Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2023

& Originally effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1
January 2022, but extended to 1 January 2023

o Originally effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1
January 2021, but extended to 1 January 2023

© Effective date to be determined

These new standards or amendments to existing standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

RN EBERREBARAA o

R-T——F— A— AR RFARN ST HREER
R-T - —F— A B2 RABN S ML
R=F_=F—HF— EiZfﬁlﬁﬁA\EﬁHﬁF‘ﬁixﬁl

E 8 8 =

¢ RERZZTEZZF—A—BEBER GRERZE
Z=F—-A—Bgz BRI BEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE=—F-FF+=-HA=+—HIFFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(a) Merger accounting for common control combinations

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities or businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling parties’ perspective.
No amount is recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the controlling
party’s interest.

The consolidated income statements include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party, whichever is shorter.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration fees, costs of
furnishing information to shareholders, costs or losses incurred in
combining operations of the previously separate businesses, etc., incurred
in relation to the common control combination that is to be accounted
for by using merger accounting is recognised as an expense in the year in
which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Acquisition method for business combinations other than
common control combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations other than common control combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are measured at either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by IFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date, any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in through profit
or loss.

RN EBERREBARAA o

2. HEGFIEORHE @

2.2 TAW @)
22 1586tRE @)
(b) FEE—EHTEBEGEEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—F_-ZFF+_-H=1—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Acquisition method for business combinations other than
common control combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

(c) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change
of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiaries in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or
loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group's share of the net fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for
as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of profit/
loss of investments accounted for using the equity method” in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

2.3 Associates (Continued)

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in
the income statement.

In the balance sheet of the Company, its investments in associates are
stated at cost less provision for any impairment losses. Income from
associates is recognised by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

In the balance sheet of the Company, impairment testing of the
investments in associates is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the associates in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.4 Joint arrangements

The Group has applied IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under IFRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations
or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in
other comprehensive income. The Group's investments in joint ventures
include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of
the joint venture and the Group's share of the net fair value of the joint
venture's identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
When the Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interests in the joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in joint ventures are
stated at cost less provision for any impairment losses. Income from joint
ventures is recognised by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.4 Joint arrangements (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investments
in joint ventures is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the joint venture in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency’). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in other comprehensive income as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and financial
assets that are held for cash management purposes are presented in the
income statement within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the income statement on a net basis within
“Other income and gains/losses, net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in other
comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

144 TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. o

2. HREFHBORNE w0

2.6 AP w0

(b) RERE&R@®
WARBEFENINEIEEEMIEE - RAA
AEERTHMEERTE - FE¥teREE
(Bl EAARAR BB AEEEH T AH
iR e RN ER) NITE ER e EEE ML
Bz o

(¢ EEAT
HIEEEAREENTIREETRMNAESE
N TER(ERIEEHBEENRSENSE
B B MBS AR R IR T AR E AR
Bk

. ERNBMEEERENNEENAR
B EEAERABNKTESREY

- BRMBRANKZENERIRFHEX
BB (BRIFUERI IR SZ HHEER
MRFFENREOHN  EHBERT -
WXIBER R ZAHNERKRE) : &

. FARLEENEN EEE R
AR -

o

=i

Sk

BERIIRELNBHELRARNBEARES
ZENTBNEEMEE  WIRHIREXK
B -EAMEXEBREEMES MaPARK -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. All property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 8-50 years
Equipment and machinery 3-15 years
Motor vehicles 4-10 years
Office equipment 2.5-15 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income statement.

Construction in progress (“CIP") represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less any recognised impairment losses. Cost includes the
costs of construction of property, plant and equipment, and interest
charges arising from borrowings used to these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

2.8 Research and development costs

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
incurred in development projects (relating to the design and testing of
new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when it is
probable that the project will be successful considering its commercial
and technical feasibility and its costs can be measured reliably. Other
development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are expensed
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as expenses are
not recognised as assets in subsequent periods. Capitalised development
costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at
which the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful life,
not exceeding five years; and tested for impairment according to Note
2.10.

2.9 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Contractual customer relationships and other intangible
assets

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The contractual
customer relations have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method by ten years over the expected life of the contractual
customer relationships.

There are two types of other intangible assets: management contract and
exclusive supply contract. These intangible assets acquired have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over their
expected useful lives.

(c) Patented technology, trademark licence and computer
software

Costs associated with maintaining patented technology, trademark
licence and computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to
the design and testing of identifiable and unique patented technology,
trademark licence and software products controlled by the Group are
recognised as intangible assets where the following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the product so that it will be
available for use;

management intends to complete the product and use or sell it;
there is an ability to use or sell the product;

it can be demonstrated how the product will generate probable
future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the product are available; and

the expenditure attributable to the product during its development
can be reliably measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Patented technology, trademark licence and computer
software (Continued)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the patented
technology, trademark licence and software product include the
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Patented technology, trademark licence and computer software
development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives, which does not exceed ten years.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill or
intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
Odl, or through profit or loss), and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded
in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business
model for managing those assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in “Other income and gains/losses, net”. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the income statement.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the income statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group's management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other gains when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

(d) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. The details of impairment
methodology refer to Note 3.1(b).

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated cost to completion and applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.14 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. They are generally
due for settlement within 120 days and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. See Note 3.1(b) for a description of the
Group's impairment policies.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.17 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Currentincome tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—F_-ZFF+_-H=1—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and where the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.21 Employee benefits

(@) Short-term compensation

Short-term compensation includes salaries, bonuses, allowances and
subsidies, staff welfare etc. When an employee has rendered service to
the Group during the reporting period, the Group shall recognise the
short-term compensation actually incurred as a liability and charge to the
cost of an asset or to profit or loss in the same period.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined contribution plans in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. The pension plans are generally funded
by payments from employees and relevant group companies. The Group
pays contributions to the pension plans which are calculated as a certain
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to make further
payments once the required contributions have been paid, even if the
plans do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

(c) Other employee benefits

Other employee benefits include termination benefits which are payable
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than
12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

2.22 Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.23 Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring control over a product or service to a customer.

(a) Sale of goods — wholesale

The Group manufactures and sells a range of healthcare products and
Chinese medicines to wholesalers. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and
price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the wholesaler's acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and
either the wholesaler has accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in
the contract, net of the estimated discounts. And revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Sale of goods — retail

The Group also sells products to individual customers through its retail
outlets. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer.

For retail sales, the Group operates a chain of retail outlets for selling
products. Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity sells a
product to the customer. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately. Retail sales are usually in cash or by credit card.

(c) Advertising services

Revenue from providing advertising services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price
contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to
the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be
provided, because the customer receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously. This is determined based on the stage of completion of
service according to contractual agreement or by the reference to the
percentage of completion method. Under this method, the percentage
of completion is identified with proportion of incurred contract costs to
estimated total cost. Advertising services have been completed within
the reporting period.

(d) Servicesincome

The Group provides Chinese medical consultation and treatments in
retail outlets. Service income is recognised over-time in which the service
is provided to the customer and it is settled in cash or by credit card.

(e) Royalty fee income

Royalty fee income is based on pre-determined rates on the total
turnover of entities outside Mainland China for them to use the “Tong
Ren Tang” brand name. Royalty fee is recognised on an accrual basis
upon sales recognised by the entities outside Mainland China.

(f) Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer
and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.24 Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the company, excluding any
costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination
of basic earnings per share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.25 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at FVPL and at
FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other income and gains, net in profit
or loss when the right to receive payment is established.

2.26 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss as part of finance
income, net. Any other interest income is included in other income and
gains, net.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.27 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

The Group leases various property, plant and land use rights. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 6 months to 20 years, but
may have extension options as described in Note 7(d) below.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these
as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date
amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual

value guarantees

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options
are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cONTINUED)

2.27 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the
case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not
have recent third party financing, and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.
The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease
liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received

any initial direct costs, and

restoration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

2.27 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
without a purchase option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. The Group
did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held
as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on
or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end
of the reporting period.

2.29 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
income statement over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income —
government grants and are credited to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management of each individual entity
within the Group.

(a) Marketrisk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and foreign exchange risk arises from
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations, primarily with respect to the Hong
Kong dollar ("HKD").

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.

The foreign exchange is mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of HKD-denominated financial instruments held by
PRC entities whose functional currency is Renminbi and translation of
Renminbi-denominated financial instruments held by Hong Kong entities
whose functional currency is HKD. If the respective functional currency of
the Group's entities had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the
relevant foreign currencies, with all other variables held constant, the
profit before income tax for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
would increase/decrease as follows:

2020

Increase/(decrease)
on profit before income tax
if exchange rates change by

il ER BT 528 -
BRATSBLAT R AG B 0, (R D)

+5%
RMB’000
AR¥ TR

25,127

HKD 7B %

3. B E B A Bl
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B & T 5 A9 S A TRAIE - /5?><m

SEMBRENETTNEE

%IW#MEEWEE%Emo

L TS
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l:l_l_glJﬂ—/Eb_A
MESEEEEK

(a) WEHEE

(i) SHERE
REBERREEANFREL TS - SNERE R
KEEBEHER  CHERNEEME BN NIFEI
EFIRE  TEPRAE -

RE BRI EAE M IMNE P BOR - REEE
ZRBTYBIERSERELIMNERR

SNERBEEZERHANBERBEAMAF (KL
REEKABARB)HEETIENERIAR
BAERR(HNEEE BB IR ARKBE
BN T EMNINERES TBRFTE - W%
EERSANEER S EBINEAE A
5% MATEEMEERFIAE  ABE_Z
—EF+-_A=+—HBk=ZZE—-NF+=A
=+—BIEFENBRATSHEATFELE M, B
BEWT :

2019

Increase/(decrease)
on profit before income tax
if exchange rates change by
i PEE 3= (1138 R 71| 2 &) -
BRETS B AT AR 3 00, Ol 4)
+5% -5%
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
30,309 (30,309)

-5%
RMB’000
ARBT R

(25,127)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)
(ii)  Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates.
Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The interest rates and repayment terms of the Group's
borrowings are disclosed in Note 20. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
most of the non-current borrowings were at fixed interest rates and the
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The current debt level of the Group is relatively low and the
exposure to the fair value interest rate risk is limited.

The management of the Group monitors the interest rate exposure
regularly. The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

(b) Creditrisk
(i) Risk Management

Credit risk is managed on group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and
cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as
well as credit exposures to wholesale and retail customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed transactions.

Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits are deposited with high-
credit-quality financial institutions. The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any financial institution. As at 31 December
2020, majority of the bank deposits are placed with state-owned banks
and listed financial institutions, which are at lower credit risk.
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As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—8

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET T

State-owned banks and listed financial institutions B4 $R17 & & RIS 3,263,751 3,733,484

Other banks E #8717 137,676 115,519
Total cash at bank and short-term bank deposits (Note 34(b))

SRITVE BT R IR RE B R 1T 47 5K (BT % 34(b)) 3,401,427 3,849,003
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE_—F_-ZFF+_-H=1—HIFFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii)  Impairment of financial assets

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
and bills receivables.

Based on shared credit risk characteristics, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the expected loss rates are based on the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis
The trade receivables relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or with significant doubt on collection of receivables are
assessed individually for provision for impairment allowance. As at 31
December 2020, the balance of loss allowance in respect of individually
assessed receivables was RMB9,507,000 (2019: RMB10,434,000).

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for the likelihood of loss allowance for each group. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, the impairment provision of bill
receivables is immaterial, because they have a low risk of default and the
issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term. Taking into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category, the remaining trade
receivables are grouped to the following classes and applying expected
credit loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of the trade
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. I B A PR w0
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B R B P a0
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) f=HARER @
(ii)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) LHEEERRHE =)
Trade and bills receivables (Continued) JEUBR N N Z 15 (4%)
Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis (Continued) . REBEEGERBEREX®

Expected Loss
At 31 December 2020 loss rate allowance

R-FB-_BF+-A=+-—H B LR BRERE
RMB’000
ARBTR

The Company and domestic subsidiaries X2 T KRR F 2 7

Within 4 months PH1E A AR 1.8% 5,934
Over 4 months but within 1 year PU1E B & —F 8.8% 2,828
Over 1 year but within 2 years —HF % —4F 29.5% 4,841
Over 2 years but within 3 years — & & =4 54.6% 22,582
Over 3 years —4F LA | 100.0% 21,428

57,613

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and its subsidiaries F{—ZBZ & H ¥ A 7
— third parties £= 7

Within 4 months PU1{E A LA 0.0% =
Over 4 months but within 1 year PU1E B = — 4 4.0% 96
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F % —4F 4.0% 20

116

Note: Given there is no history of significant defaults from related parties of Tong Mzt - ER B E R EBIEE % B+ A R B 5 EED

Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and its subsidiaries and insignificant impact BRATIEM AN ETER - Bt B YRR
from forward-looking estimates, the assessed expected credit losses are not MEREABARTER - R_ZE-_FTF+_A
material. As at 31 December 2020, the loss allowance for Tong Ren Tang =+—B RCEREZERETFARBE L EKER
Chinese Medicine and its subsidiaries in respect of the trade receivables BREBEHEAARK 947000 (ZE—NF : &) -

due from related parties was RMB947,000 (2019: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. I B A PR w0
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 W R B P a0
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) =R @
(ii)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) LEEERRHE =)
Trade and bills receivables (Continued) JEWBR N N2 Z 15 (4)
Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis (Continued) . RERBEEGFEEHERELX®

Expected Loss
At 31 December 2019 loss rate allowance

R-E-NF+-_H=1+—H BHBRE BAREE
RMB'000
ARET T

The Company and domestic subsidiaries X2 B8] KR A F 2 7

Within 4 months P91 A AR 03% 1,048
Over 4 months but within 1 year PU1E A & —F 3.3% 3,734
Over 1 year but within 2 years —HF % — 4 15.0% 11,043
Over 2 years but within 3 years —&F 2 =4 42.6% 9,266
Over 3 years —F LA | 100.0% 9,875

34,966

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine and its subsidiaries F{—EB &R H ¥ A F)

Within 4 months P9 & A LA 0.0% -
Over 4 months but within 1 year PU1{E A 2= — 4 4.0% 344
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F % — 4 4.0% 215
559
Please refer to Note 14 for details. FIEBE2EMTE 140
Other financial assets at amortised cost AR AT E R A2 & E

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the Group recognises a loss HRAERK AT ENHMEREE - A58
allowance equal to 12-month expected credit losses unless there has BEN2EABHRERBRETE  KRIERE
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial assets since initial R B ViR EEIL N - BiRREET
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured at an amount EHMTEHIBAGHIRELABE B2 T - F
equal to lifetime expected credit losses. During the year ended 31 FT+_A=1+—HLFE  BEREBERE2
December 2020, the impairment provision is determined based on the B AR E K ETAIE - BHIEAEXT
12-month expected credit losses which is immaterial. BEKX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Bill receivables at FVOC]

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for bills receivables at FVOCI. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the impairment provision of bill receivables at
FVOCI is immaterial.

(iii)  Financial assets at FVPL

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to wealth management
products that are measured at FVPL. No financial assets at FVPL is held by
the Group at the end of the reporting period (2019: The maximum
exposure is the carrying amount of these investments is RMB31,680,000).

() Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents or
have available funding through adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet its working capital requirements. The amounts of
borrowings and undrawn credit facilities at the balance sheet date are
disclosed in Note 20 and Note 36 respectively.

Trade and bills payables and other payables are normally expected to be
settled within one year after receipt of goods or services, while generally
no specific credit period is granted by the suppliers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Within
1year
—FHR
RMB'000
ARBETTT

As at 31 December 2020
ZE-EF+=-HA=+—H

but within

3. R B A B ()

3.1 B B R w0

() B R B an)
TRETMEENSREE  LRRABHOIIHE
MR BEREEABRAZARIEAMNE
BREARTETT DN - ERABREN SR A ARLRL
iﬁﬂ’]éﬂiﬁimi °©

Over

2 years

but within
5years
—FEEF
RMB'000
ARBTT

Over
1year
Over

PACET
—FE-F
RMB'000
ARETT

5 years Total
BEFENE CLl
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AR%TT

Trade and bills payables F& 1 BR 3 & =& 717,825 - - = 717,825
Other payables F At J& < 5% 498,175 - - - 498,175
Borrowings f& X 1,089,046 396,723 94,632 5,535 1,585,936
Lease liabilities & & & 58,407 47,254 50,053 5,458 161,172
2,363,453 443,977 144,685 10,993 2,963,108
As at 31 December 2019
—2-NF+=RA=t-—H
Trade and bills payables & {< BE 32 & Z 45 682,312 - - - 682,312
Other payables £ {th FE < 3% 560,043 - - - 560,043
Borrowings f& X 192,124 937,355 259,635 50,488 1,439,602
Lease liabilities THE & & 43,684 24,104 33,194 7174 108,156
1,478,163 961,459 292,829 57,662 2,790,113

Except for the bonds included in borrowings, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial liabilities approximate their fair values as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, provide returns for
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to repay borrowings.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity. Total borrowings
included “current and non-current borrowings” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet. Total equity was shown in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Total borrowings & X 4858
Total equity #4258
Gearing ratio & f& [k %

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

—EFEL A=+ —HILFE

3. R B A B ()

3.2 B4 EBEE
}ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ@%fﬁk% eREAREEEEE

AR REHERD RN BE MDA A

%E':T M BBER  RARERRENERGEEN
BIEE R

BT SR RAEANER - ARET LR AR
S FRERORFEEE - ARREREER - %

TR EEEARIKER -

AEBAARELFEFHEAR SR ER
tEREER ARG AR E - BRAEEREA
HEEBBRMINN RBMIERBERK]
REBBESAHEEREBRMAS -

As at 31 December

R+=-—BA=+—8H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREEFIT
1,539,526 1,363,769
7,751,505 7414574
19.9% 18.4%

RN EBERREBARAA o

—gogesn 169



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation

The Group's financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits, receivables, financial assets at FVOCI and FVPL. Financial
liabilities include payables, short-term borrowings and long-term
borrowings. Except for long-term borrowings, the carrying amount of the
financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values due to
their short maturities.

Below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy
as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Details on the fair value measurement for bonds, financial assets at FVOC|
and FVPL are set out in Note 20(b), Note 12 and Note 13 respectively.

3. R B A B ()

3.3 A A

AEECRHEENEHERRREMRCEE
Y~ REIRITE - BUGIR - AR BEE

2 A HB B AR MEA ot RIAR L BES
BEEBHHARRNSHEE  MEBARE

BIEENFIE - EHRERMREER - REH
BN  ARENEMEEN SR A EHNEE
B BEAEE  AtEmEEIEEA AR EE
AT

T REEFE AR BENGERTPATER
B AMELR  DMAEEIZRARBEAR
MERTE G| ARBARBEBRSRE
ABINT=/E:

AR A S B DR B TR M B Ghis
BE)(H1E) o

BT E1ERBERNREN  ZEENA
BENRAERNEMEA - 7] BEE (B
B s (BRBER) (E2/8) -

BEMBEYIFMKEAIBRE TS EIEN
WA BEATBRBA) (F3E)

BE% UAREBEAEEEZHARLMES
WHNEMEEMARREBEFEBEZE S

ABHENERMEENAABEFBY &R
BEE20(b) ~ BHRE 12 FOBIFE13 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in consumer
preferences and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimations by each balance sheet date.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note
3.1(b).

(¢) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in
the period in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Board of Directors is the Group's chief operating decision-maker. The
Board of Directors has determined the operating segments for the
purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The Board of Directors considers the business from an operational entity
perspective. Generally, the Board of Directors considers the performance
of business of each entity within the Group separately. Thus, each entity
within the Group is an operating segment.

The reportable operating segments derive their revenue primarily from (i)
the manufacture and sale of Chinese medicine of the Company in
Mainland China (“The Company” Segment), and (ii) Tong Ren Tang
Chinese Medicine and its subsidiaries engaged in manufacturing, retail
and wholesale of Chinese medicine products and healthcare products,
and provision of Chinese medical consultation and treatments outside
Mainland China and wholesale of healthcare products in Mainland China
(“Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine” Segment).

Other companies are engaged in processing and purchasing of Chinese
medicinal raw materials, sales of medicinal products, medical services and
advertising, etc. They do not form separate reportable segments as they
do not meet the quantitative thresholds required by IFRS 8.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on revenue and profit after income tax of each segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. EblE R @

The segment information provided to the Board of Directors forthe HE_—_ZE-_ZTF+_A=1+—HIFE RE
reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows: %Aﬁﬁi\ﬁfa WMES I D EEEROT -

Tong Ren
The Tang Chinese All other

Company Medicine Segments Total

N B -ERE HihEKoI - H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®TR AR®TxR

Segment revenue 73 &FULA 3,058,737 1,170,364 1,001,970 5,231,071
Inter-segment revenue %3 3B U A (140,549) (7,704) (475,449) (623,702)

Revenue from external customers 2 B 7B % B IR A 2,918,188 1,162,660 526,521 4,607,369

Timing of revenue recognition YA #5289 B ]

Ata point in time £ 3 — 5 BhT# R 2,918,161 1,128,213 502,832 4,549,206
Over time fE X — R RN TER 27 34,447 23,689 58,163
2,918,188 1,162,660 526,521 4,607,369

Profit for the year 5 /& #) ) 276,512 504,685 5,310 786,507
Interest income A1 21 A 24,356 18,509 6,253 49,118
Interest expense F.8 3 H (46,302) (3,821) (1,441) (51,564)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
BENEEY BEMRETE (91,773) (14,857) (77,022) (183,652)
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 1§ F 1 & = #4 £ (18,055) (49,371) (5,645) (73,071)
Amortisation of other long-term assets F it &= Hi & EE 85 (3,946) (5,167) (4,417) (13,530)
Provision for impairment of inventories 17 & Bk (B 2512 (14,506) - (8,302) (22,808)
Provision for impairment of receivables I BR “E B 5112 (14,122) (2,948) (5,226) (22,296)
Provision for impairment of goodwill 725 (B %12 (1,235) = = (1,235)

Share of profit/(losses) of investments accounted
for using the equity method

FEREREARNRENKS (BB HE 314 (765) - (451)
Income tax expense P58 & A (52,613) (104,879) 4,380 (153,112)

Segment assets and liabilities 73 S3 & EF & &

Total assets 28 & & 5,780,240 2,872,702 2,287,856 10,940,798

Investments accounted for using the equity method

RS EANRNRE 9,293 14,949 - 24,242

Additions to non-current assets  3E 7t E) & 2= HY3E H1 O 687,732 58,170 149,238 895,140

Total liabilities #2 8 & 2,423,474 228,452 537,367 3,189,293

o Excluding investments accounted for using the equity method, financial TEFERERFEAENIRE 2 T ANELERS
instruments and deferred income tax assets. TREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (contiNUED) 5. ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁ“ B
The segment information provided to the Board of Directors for the EHZE__ZE—NF+_A=+—HBIFFE  [&E

reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2019 is as follows: %ﬁhﬁi\ﬁ FARE DB D B ERI N T -

Tong Ren

The  Tang Chinese All other
Company Medicine Segments Total
ARF  RECEEZE HEtRBDH #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TE
Segment revenue 73 ZFUTA 2,798,841 1,262,714 1,064,585 5,126,140
Inter-segment revenue 73 & fE KA (93,600) - (556,091) (649,691)
Revenue from external customers 28 B 7MNEBE P BY A 2,705,241 1,262,714 508,494 4,476,449

Timing of revenue recognition 48 A FERR 89 85 ]

At a point in time fE 3 — B BhFERR 2,705,158 1,212,240 476,373 4,393,771
Over time £ 3 — R ER A TER 83 50,474 32,121 82,678
2,705,241 1,262,714 508,494 4,476,449
Profit for the year & /Z F1| )8 231,858 507,630 1,902 741,390
Interest income F1 2 1A 10,545 37,905 1,309 49,759
Interest expense F.8 3z (33,427) (3,702) (3,896) (41,025)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
FEXZEY) - BB MRETE (43,986) (14,197) (32,639) (90,822)
Amortisation of right-of-use assets {8 FB 4 & 7= # 5 (3,940) (45,155) (5,806) (54,901)
Amortisation of other long-term assets Eth & B & = 54 § (1,627) (10,382) (2,330) (14,339)
Provision for impairment of inventories 17 & BB XE#ET1E (24,165) 6,319) (18,130) (48,614)
Provision for impairment of receivables 2 BR 2 5118 (12,146) (2992) (4975) (20,113)

Share of profit/(losses) of investments accounted

for using the equity method
FHEEEREARNRENKE (BB HE 279 (1,735) - (1,456)
Release of foreign currency translation differences upon

liquidation of a joint venture

BEPEBFEMBEL 2 INEHRRITEER - 846 - 846
Income tax expense FT{S 4 & F (77,268) (98,886) (5961) (182,115)
Segment assets and liabilities 2 S8 & EF & &

Total assets 8 & & 5,545,840 2,812,631 2,111,499 10,469,970

Investments accounted for using the equity method

EREEARNRE 9,066 16,612 - 25678

Additions to non-current assets  3Et ) & 2 BV IE N0 206,991 34,205 303,747 544,943

Total liabilities #88 {& 2,264,221 328,404 462,771 3,055,396

o Excluding investments accounted for using the equity method, financial ~ ® TEFEEERAEAENRE - €T AMELEMSE
instruments and deferred income tax assets. HEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Sales between segments are carried out at arm’s length. The revenue
from external parties reported to the Board of Directors is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the income statement.

The amounts provided to the Board of Directors with respect to total
assets and liabilities are measured in @ manner consistent with that of the
financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations
of the segment and the physical location of the asset.

Revenues from external customers are derived from the sales of medicine
and provision of services. The breakdown of sales of medicine by region
is provided in Note 24.

The total of the non-current assets other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets located in Mainland China is
RMB3,045,147,000 (2019: RMB2,415,712,000), and the total of these non-
current assets located outside Mainland China is RMB385,144,000 (2019:
RMB423,351,000).

During the 2020 and 2019 financial year, revenue from two customers

each accounted for ten percent or more of the Group's total external
revenue. These revenues are mainly attributable to the Company
Segment and Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Segment. The revenues
from these customers are summarised below:

5. rEbfE B

DELZENHEERERAARZRANET - WE
G E MSMBURAIR B A R A E A —E
WZETTR -

AESERHEABREENERENTE &
HREPHHRR —BNZESTN - WFEER
B B S E E PR IRETT R -

KEIBEFPHWAIRE BEmiHE R RB R
1 o BEAR $HE 0 M & 0 AT QAR RE 24 PR o

VAP EA R e EEMEERSHERE
2N IER BB ERTE A A R 3,045,147,000
T(ZE—NF: ARM24157120007T) * M
FE AN EIERBEELEIA
AR #385144000c( —ZFE—hF: AR¥
423,351,000 7T) ©

“ECEER_T-NFRA-BEFPHRA
BIEAREERBINBEFPHBWABT D Z T
toRERAETRREARAD B RFACER
BOEl - REZFEPHBABMLIT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETTT

Entities under control of ultimate holding company & 445 J& 22 &) B #1l 1) & 42 1,284,781 959,408
Customer A Group P A% E 683,078 540,294
1,967,859 1,499,702
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings and
freehold land

RMB00O
ARETT

Asat1January 2019 R=E—NFE—F—H

6.

Equipment
and
machinery

RMB'000
ARBTTE

bo 2 B RS ~ W K s i

Motor
vehicles

EHTA
RMB'000
ARETTT

Office
equipment

ARETR

AFt
RMB000
ARETL

Cost AR 655,629 574,715 35,381 67827 1,339,894 2673446
Accumulated depreciation 25T #T& (241,052) (386,036) (26,055) (47812) - (701,155)
Accumulated impairment (B £ (5223) (12,028) - (634) - (17,885)
Net book amount BRI /FE 409,154 176,651 9,326 19,381 1339894 1954406
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE—E-NE+-A=+t-HLEE

Opening net book amount EA¥IEE T F (& 409,154 176,651 9,326 19,381 1339894 1954406
Additions &0 3217 7395 1210 4068 421706 43759
Transferred from CIP EZ L7288 A 1,086,336 627,843 5973 16473 (1736,625) -
Disposals )& 2 (819 (1,459) (183) (1,042) - (3,503)
Depreciation #T& (28,380) (51,554) (3,105) (7,783) - (90,822)
Exchange differences [& 5 Z %8 3,097 254 16 217 - 3,584
Closing net book amount i SR EHE 1472,605 759,130 13237 31314 24,975 2,301,261

Asat31December2019 R=ZE—- N &E+=-A=1+—H

Cost XA 1733657 1,183,409 41462 85234 24975 3,068,737
Accumulated depreciation 25T #T& (261,052) 412,161) (28225) (53518) - (754,956)
Accumnulated impairment il (B2 - (12118) - (402) - (12520)
Net book amount BR l/F{E 1,472,605 759,130 13,237 31314 24975 2,301,261

176 TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. o ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6. mREKEEY - BFE K& @

(CONTINUED)

Equipment
Buildings and and Motor Office
freehold land machinery vehicles  equipment cip Total

BFREKA
Eft  HHERE BEHTA HARE EEIR A%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARMTR AR®TR AREMTR ARETR AR%TR

Year ended 31 December 2020 52— E-FF+-_A=+—-HILFE

Opening net book amount B ¥ (& 1,472,605 759,130 13,237 31,314 24,975 2,301,261
Additions 3% A1 371,239 31,944 15,478 18,481 105,672 542,814
Transferred from CIP R T 728 A 8,855 26,026 910 3,798 (39,589) =
Disposals )& 12 (3,102) (668) (41) (150) = (3,961)
Depreciation #T & (58,656) (106,100) (5,052) (13,844) - (183,652)
Exchange differences [ 7 Z 28 (5,945) (744) (81) (342) = (7,112)
Closing net book amount £ BRI HE 1,784,996 709,588 24,451 39,257 91,058 2,649,350

Asat31December2020 A= E=ZF+_-A=1+—H

Cost XA 2,094,521 1,226,631 56,340 104,483 91,058 3,573,033
Accumulated depreciation 25T #T& (309,525) (505,829) (31,889) (64,846) - (912,089)
Accurnulated impairment JE{E £ - (11,214) - (380) - (11,594)
Net book amount BRI F{E 1,784,996 709,588 24,451 39,257 91,058 2,649,350

Depreciation expenses were charged to the consolidated income  tFE & BESHFEEDT|RAOT
statements as follows:

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARBT T

Cost of sales $H & B4 153,081 69,049
Distribution expenses #4 & & 7,713 7,995
Administrative expenses & 12 & Fj 22,858 13,778
183,652 90,822
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T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group has no capitalised borrowing costs (2019: the
Group had capitalised borrowing costs amounting to RMB20,617,000 at
the weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 3.06% on
qualifying assets).

As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowings are secured by land and
buildings with carrying amount of RMB9,472,000 (2019: RMB9,438,000)
(Note 20).

7. LEASES

(@) Right-of-use assets

6. BplE B EEY - Wb K S o

EARFER  AEEEERLER(ZZE—N
& : $$@mA§W§FE§$Mﬁ*ﬁ$H
AE%m&mmn BB — R E R INEF
HFF R 3.06% KRETEARL) o

N -FF+ - A=+—H  BITERUE
HEEBARKEI472000L(ZFE—NF: AR
#9,438000 70 ) B L 30 M AE F1E B IE R (K&
20) °

7. HME
(@) ERIBERE

Leasehold

Buildings ET | Total

BF HE ik &5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBT T ARETT

Asat1January2019 R —Z—hF—HF—H 119,628 243,407 363,035

Year ended 31 December2019 B E=-E—hE+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount EAfJ8R T /F{E 119,628 243,407 363,035
Additions 3 20,866 72,520 93,386
Disposals J& 2> (414) (538) (952)
Depreciation #T& (46,286) (9417) (55,703)
Exchange differences [ 3, Z= &8 2,299 1,934 4233
Closing net book amount i & iR H F B 96,093 307,906 403,999
Year ended 31 December2020 BE—E-_ZEF+_-_A=1+—HILEFE

Opening net book amount i #BR & F A 96,093 307,906 403,999
Additions 3 i1 80,681 259,535 340,216
Disposals J& 2> (3,272) (405) (3,677)
Depreciation T & (61,042) (13,605) (74,647)
Exchange differences FE 3, %= 58 (3,382) (5,193) (8,575)
Closing net book amount £ K BR [ 7F & 109,078 548,238 657,316
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFFE

7. LEASES (coNTINUED)

(b) Lease liabilities

7. ME @
b) M AN

As at 31 December

n+=—B=+—8H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Current i &) 52,693 40,322
Non-current JEi B) 94,895 59,649
147,588 99,971

(c)  The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was RMB83,640,000 (2019:
RMB95,921,000).

(d) Extension options

Extension options are included in some property leases across the Group.
These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
the assets used in the Group's operations. The majority of extension
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective
lessor.

(c) JNFERBEEANESRLEAETA
A B #836400007C (20194 : A R ¥
95,921,000 7T) ©

d) AR

AEENHOIFERERSEREEE Uk
$E@N“%%m§34ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfmh
SEEMNEEN ARERAHNARI D EHE
&%EEK%IH@ mIF R A ATT
& o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Asat1January2019 R=—ZE—h&E—F—H

8.

Goodwill

A

RMB'000
ARBTT

Contractual
customer
relationships
and others

EF &R
BRR A
RMB'000
ARBETT

Patented
technology,
trademark
licence and
computer
software
BRI EAM
BEER
HEEL Lt
RMB'000
ARETT

Total

2
RMB'000
ARETTT

Cost A A 46,434 30,583 15,947 92,964
Accumulated amortisation 2511 £ - (10,371) (8,603) (18,974)
Net book amount R H /FE 46,434 20,212 7344 73,990

Year ended 31 December 2019 B Z—ZE— N E+=-A=+—HILFE

Opening net book amount B8R EF & 46,434 20212 7344 73990

Additions 50 - - 3,695 3,695

Disposals J&, - - (37) (37)
Amortisation # $H 2 F - (10,381) (2,330) (271
Exchange differences [ i,z 58 968 247 - 1215

Closing net book amount £ R BR S &E 47,402 10,078 8,672 66,152

Asat 31 December2019 R=ZE— N E+=-A=+—H

Cost A AR 47402 31,136 19,596 98,134

Accumulated amortisation 2511 £ - (21,058) (10,924) (31,982)
Net book amount BR T /F{E 47,402 10,078 8,672 66,152

Year ended 31 December2020 BZE—E-FF+-A=+—HLEE

Opening net book amount HA ¥ 8R EFE 47,402 10,078 8,672 66,152

Additions 30 - - 6,752 6,752

Amortisation 245 & - (5,167) (4,024) (9,191)
Impairment charge J5i{E 18 2k (1,235) - - (1,235)
Exchange differences M 5, X8 (2,678) (352) - (3,030)
Closing net book amount i & BR i /HE 43,489 4,559 11,400 59,448

Asat 31 December2020 R—ZE=-ZE&+=-A=+—H

Cost A 44,724 29,167 26,348 100,239

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 514 $5 F1 8 B 2 & (1,235) (24,608) (14,948) (40,791)
Net book amount BREl/F{E 43,489 4,559 11,400 59,448
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The goodwill acquired in the acquisitions of Honour Essence and Tong
Ren Tang Chengdu during 2015 is allocated to each unit respectively. As
at 31 December 2020, goodwill allocated to Tong Ren Tang Chinese
Medicine Segment and other segments is RMB41,591,000 and
RMB3,133,000 respectively. The recoverable amounts of these CGUs are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using estimated growth rates of 3% and 0%
for Honour Essence and Tong Ren Tang Chengdu respectively. Other key
assumptions used for value-in-use calculations include 16% (2019: 16%)
and 12% (2019: 12%) discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
of Honour Essence and Tong Ren Tang Chengdu respectively.

Management determined annual volume growth rate for Honour Essence
ranging between 0% to 21% (2019: -7% to 12%), covering over the five-
year forecast period to be a key assumption. The volume of sales in each
period is the main driver for revenue and costs. The annual volume
growth rates are based on past performance and management’s
expectations of market development. The discount rates used are pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant business.

During the year, the impairment loss on goodwill of Tong Ren Tang
Chengdu amounted to approximately RMB1,235,000 was recognised in
the consolidated income statement (2019: Nil).

Amortisation expenses were charged to the consolidated income
statements under administrative expenses and cost of sales.

RN EBERREBARAA o

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

—EFEL A=+ —HILFE

8. HEIEEREw

B -hAFUBAREZNRACEXRTESE
MNEHEENRIRESEREELET - K=
E-TFE+-_A=t+—H sRIECEHE
”‘*B%DE@%%“*BE’JW@ DRl R AR

41,591,0007C f1 A R #31330007C - IRE& E
BRI RO eREBEFEREEE T8

AFARSREED - KIFEEBSZNAF
HPREE - AZE SR EXRIBBEEZR
FHIME 2 RE D B 3% K 0% M EFHE K
T’{’Eﬁ?& o RERE S MEUZZREEE R E

BERETEHREFER E’JEW%%UEX;&%%@%E 5]
ShREEAISAFER16%(ZF—IF : 16%)
B 12% (ZZE— N4 : 2%>Eﬁﬂﬁiﬁ$°

EEEBRTALRE S AFHUHBENFIHEE
iE“A”?%O%im% TENF T%E12%)

— AR R - FHMEERWANMK AR
Iﬁ[@)l% HEREREZIREBARIRM
EREYMSEREMNTBEME - FIERAMNEL
WRABALR > WMABITENSETR

4 o
AA

RFEE - FCEKEBNEEREBRINHARE
1,235,000 JLE FEREFER A (20194F : £) o

BEEREAHNBRAGTATEEAME?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ

9. SUBSIDIARIES

Material non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2020, the total non-controlling interest is
RMB2,019,956,000 (2019: RMB1,887,319,000), of which RMB1,667,509,000
(2019: RMB1,570,962,000) is for Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine. The
non-controlling interest in respect of others is not material.

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Tong Ren

9. HFRAFEMZE
LWNGE Syl ko

R_E_ZTF+_A=+—8 - FEEHiEER
Y 4 %E%Aﬁﬁgzows’seooom_? ni-
A R #1887319000T ) H A AR
1667509000 ( — & — h &F: A R &
1,570,962,0007T) BRARICEE % - B HEN
ISR TER o

AT sl A AR E B AR SEEH| s R

Tang Chinese Medicine that has non-controlling interests that are = B ZK) B BB E
material to the Group.
Summarised balance sheet %Eﬁlﬁ‘i’%i‘iﬁ%
Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine
EM-—E %
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETT
Current i &)
Assets & E 2,468,368 2,369,653
Liabilities & f& (182,303) (276,406)
Total current net assets i B)F & EE 4B 58 2,286,065 2,093,247
Non-current JE7 B
Assets & EE 407,352 442,978
Liabilities & f& (59,621) (58,767)
Total non-current net assets FF7t )% & EE 4258 347,731 384,211
Non-controlling interests FE4% ] |4 48 25 (94,277) (95,076)
Net assets )5 & &= 2,539,519 2,382,382
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

9. SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED) 9. HTYAFMBEE m
Summarised statement of comprehensive income %’ﬁ' l&%ﬁi@iﬁ%

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine

E{-EEz
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETTT
Revenue YZ A 1,170,364 1,262,714
Profit before income tax Bk FT1S &4 311 %1 609,555 606,516
Income tax expense FT{S 74 & F (104,879) (98,886)
Profit for the year 7 /& F|)& 504,676 507,630
Other comprehensive (losses)/income E 4R & (38k), Wz (157,617) 49,104
Total comprehensive income 43 & Wz & & 347,059 556,734

Total comprehensive income allocated to non-controlling interests

AW E D BLE JEE S RS 222,163 352,677
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests A% 8 37 1~ F JE1R #I| M hE 25 125,616 462,825
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ
9. SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED) 9. HFAFMKE w0
Summarised statement of cash flows ﬁ%‘iﬁﬁi@iﬁ%
Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine
E{-EEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Cash generated from operations 484 & Eh Uk EI| )38 & 291,128 490,297
Income tax paid 1< I FT1SHR (187,991) (5,/408)
Net cash generated from operating activities &£ & E R EIMIR &R EF 58 103,137 484,889
Net cash generated from investing activities 1% & /& B) N B M IR &7 2 /F 58 450,329 735,277
Net cash used in financing activities & /EE) 2 MR &R E/F 5 (234,882) (773,230)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 33 & & 3R & S B ¥R F 18 N 318,584 446,936
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 38 & &3R8 & S B K F ¥)5458 946,602 481,762
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
EXFEHHRe MRS FEMNTE (65,031) 17,904
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year I & K38 & L EY I F KRR 1,200,155 946,602

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations. A FBAFSEIEE E AN rIB KSR S %E o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFFE

10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 10. R ARNIRE
THE EQUITY METHOD

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—8
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Joint ventures (Note(a)) % (Bﬁ @) 14,949 16,612
Associates (Note(b)) B & % (P 5E () 9,293 9,066
24,242 25,678
(a) Interests in joint ventures @ REBLEZHER

The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint  RNREBHEAE FEBTE RN S E D ERE

ventures. The following table analyses, in aggregate, the movement of 2§ o TR O ANEF S EIFZESZEN

the carrying amount of the Group's interests in these joint ventures, and  #EzSRREE S B MBS ES LD ERELS -
its share of results, other comprehensive income and commitments of  H {43 & Wk K 7 HE o
these joint ventures.

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB T ARETT
Asat1January ®R—H —H 16,612 17,682
Share of losses for the year 1 F E 1B 1H 58 (765) (1,735)
Release of foreign currency translation differences upon liquidation of a joint venture
BEMNEBFEMBE 2 INERKRER - 846
Exchange differences F& i, Z= X8 (898) (181)
As at 31 December R+ =—HA=+—H 14,949 16,612
The Group's share of joint ventures' commitments A5 [ fE (5 & & (b S AGE (D 38 467 =
Notes: BisE -
(i) The joint ventures are private companies and there are no quoted market 0) EEMEAIELFTAR HIRMSEMSRE -

prices available for their shares.

(i) There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in the (i) WEBEAAEEFGA LALLM BEARE -
joint ventures.

(i) Details of the joint ventures are set out in Note 1 to the consolidated (i) AXNENFMAEREDESHPBHRENT 1RF
financial statements. LA FE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (conTinuED)

(b) Interests in associates

The Group has interests in a number of individually immaterial associates.

10. #EHE 48 ¥ AN IR BB & 0

b) RBBELEZNERR
AREBHALE TERTE R Z QA /R

N s
Z5 o
anl

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETTT

Asat1January R—H —H 9,066 8,787
Share of profits for the year JEA & fE FI BRI D B8 314 279
Dividends proposed [ 4 i &, (87) -
Asat31December R+ —HA=+—H 9,293 9,066

Notes:

(i) The associates are private companies and there are no quoted market
prices available for their shares.

(i) There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in the
associates.

(iii) Details of the associates are set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

e
() BECEAKELTAT - HRGRETSRE -

(i) VYEAHMARERAHZCEESZNRBAEE -

(i) BECENFABEHCERHPBREME 1T T
LABEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 11. 4@t T H (FBEH)
CATEGORY

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARET T

Financial assets £ Bl & &
Financial assets at amortised cost LA gk At E RIS REE B

Trade and bills receivables & U BR 7 & S i& 1,044,856 1,194,589
Other financial assets at amortised cost LAk SRR ANGT 2 E & B E E 31,830 35,773
Short-term bank deposits 52 HA$R 1T 7F 3¢ 454,395 859,454
Cash and cash equivalents IR & M IR & ZEW 2,947,958 2,990,645
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
UARnBEFEEEEH T ABSNEREE - 31,680
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
NAnEBEFEAEEHT AR MEE KGN ERHEE 55,964 37,150
4,535,003 5,149,291

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T

Financial liabilities £ B & (&
Liabilities at amortised cost AB SRk At ER B &

Trade and bills payables &1 BR 3k & = 4% 717,825 682,312
Other payables £ fib &1~ 5% 498,175 560,043
Borrowings & 5K 1,539,526 1,363,769
Lease liabilities T & & & 147,588 99,971

2,903,114 2,706,095
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ
12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 12. LA s fEME 52 H 2 85t A K
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE b 5 5 WL i ) 4 T
INCOME
Financial assets at FVOCI comprise: NAREBEE8EEI T AEMEEWER
TREERE
(@)  Equity securities which are not held for trading, and which the (@) ZANEBEEYIIEIERE D TNl Bt iRIE
Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise in ERSEP FUERNIER FEERE
this category. These are strategic investments and the Group 5oz RMEEBREKMERE I
considers this classification to be more relevant. BAREERBE—DEBEERE -
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
At1January A— A —H 9,839 13,553
Loss recognised in other comprehensive income B85t A E E (424 W (4,332) (3,947)
Exchange differences [& %, = &8 (367) 233
At31December A+ =A=+—H 5,140 9,839

The equity investments at FVOCl is denominated in HKD. The fairvalueis LA AR (BEETE B EE# T A EMir S5 WE

within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). RIS EUEBEAE - A BEEALBEE
ML —EBA(HIFE33) °

(b)  Part of bills receivable where the contractual cash flows are solely () A REIRESREEABAEL B RAEFBEGE

principal and the objective of the Group's business model is XNAEEEUNERARRESR=ELNHEEDN
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling of HAEINERE -

these assets.

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARET T

Bills receivable FEUX Z 15 50,824 27311

The bills receivable at FVOCl is denominated in RMB. The fair value is I A R BET2 B &8 i A 454 U

within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). FEIMEEDUARKEEE - AR BEEALEBE
BRNE=ER (KE33)

188 TONG REN TANG TECHNOLOGIES CO. LTD. o ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

13. DA s fE {8 st & H 352 Bt A48

13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H

Wealth management products 3 B = &

2020

RMB’000
ARBT T

2019

RMB'000
ARET T
31,680

Guaranteed wealth management products held by the Group mainly
with floating rates bear expected interests at approximately 2.9% per
annum as of 31 December 2019. The underlying investments were mostly
debt instruments with AA above credit ratings.

The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using the expected

returns based on management judgement and are within level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy.

14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables &Y BR 7X

AEEBENRNIBNSBEVESR 82
TE-NFT+ A=+ —HIEWFRIFIRY
20%° WEEMAZ BERAFREANU LR

EFRETA -

N EEREEEEHE ARKIR S RARE
EBRARBEERNE=4 -

14, WEWOIR wk B 52 9%

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8

2020

RMB’000
ARBT T

2019

RMB'000
ARBTT

— third parties B=77 561,719 660,253

— related parties (Note 35(d)) BgH 77 (Fff 3£ 35(d)) 353,888 187,898

915,607 848,151

Bills receivables & = 4% 197,432 392,398

1,113,039 1,240,549

Less: provision for impairment J& : JR{EZE#S (68,183) (45,960)

Trade and bills receivables, net FEU AR S R =45 + /5HE 1,044,856 1,194,589
The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables approximate their fair ~ FEUWRBE N R ZEMBEBMEERIE AL BE

values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ
14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Retail sales at the Group’s stores are usually made in cash or by debit or
credit cards. For wholesale to distributors, the Group normally grants a
credit period ranging from 30 days to 120 days. As at 31 December 2020
and 2019, the ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based on
invoice date was as follows:

14. FEWOIR 3 & 18 w0

AEBTEUE DS  BERAEAR
B HRLEERRA T 308 E 120 AWK
e N -—F-FET-A=+-BR-FAN
F+-A=+—0  BRERRERRERE
AR T ¢

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—8H

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETFT

Within 4 months PU1E H AR 831,424 939,715

Over 4 months but within 1 year PR & A & —4 128,243 175,443

Over 1 year but within 2 years —HF & — 4 81,665 81914

Over 2 years but within 3 years ZF & =F 42,238 32,251

Over 3 years —4F A 29,469 11,226

1,113,039 1,240,549
As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables of RMB68,183,000 (2019: MR-ZE-_ZTF+_-_H=+—H EWEZIDT
RMB45,960,000) were provided for impairment. Movements in the 12 7 AR# 68,183,000 T (ZFE—NF : AR
provision for impairment of receivables were as follows: 45,960,000 7T ) R (B &4 © ENFURBEEENE

ELUNNE

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREFTT

Asat 1 January ®—H—H 45,960 25,837

Provision for impairment Ji B 7T 1¢ 22,296 20,113

Exchange differences [& % = %8 (73) 10

As at 31 December R+ =—A=+—H 68,183 45,960
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying 734 HER » EERBR AN SSRGS AE & it

value of trade and bills receivables mentioned above. The Group does
not hold any collateral as security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

14. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

—EFEL A=+ —HILFE

14. JFE WA B 3k B B2 U8 (m)

REEE AR
HEHE -

AR BENEREEENL NINE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®Tx ARETIT
RMB AR 980,224 1,112,981
HKD 3 & 125,046 120,219
United States Dollar 7T 7,053 6,229
Others Efth 716 1,120
1,113,039 1,240,549

15. INVENTORIES

15. 78

As at 31 December

R+=-—HA=+—H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETTT
Raw materials JR 71 %} 1,466,566 1,089,113
Work-in-progress £ & i 571,442 507,516
Finished goods X 799,801 817,979
2,837,809 2,414,608
Less: provision for impairment J& : Ja{EZE# (104,477) (92,824)
2,733,332 2,321,784

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of
sales” amounted to RMB1,512,788,000 (2019: RMB1,517,416,000).

The impairment loss on inventories and written off of inventories
included in the “cost of sales” amounted to RMB22,808,000 (2019:
RMB48,614,000) and RMB11,155,000 (2019: RMB25,716,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2020, respectively.

RN EBERREBARAA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 16. &4t P 15 B

Deferred income tax is calculated on temporary differences under the  ERIERTS T I B EE N EEZ R AT HE
liability method using the tax rates which are expected to apply at the — BEETRFZERFFEHR AR RTH -
time of reversal of the temporary differences.

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax BB EERELMEHREBEN DTN
liabilities is as follows:

a

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T

Deferred income tax assets: IELEFTS T & & :
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered after 12 months

FRE+ 1 A &I e B IR EFT S T A B 20,497 16,132
— Deferred income tax assets to be recovered within 12 months
FE+ {8 B MU @ B9 RRE PR S 15 & 2 56,946 45,228
77,443 61,360
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions
RIBEEAEFEENETEREHaE (25,560) (20,589)
Deferred income tax assets, net /FiE LTS E & 51,883 40,771

Deferred income tax liabilities: IEEFT ST & & :
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled after 12 months

BB+ _EARINNECHEHAE (21,213) (17,759)

— Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled within 12 months
E+ZEARNZNHRERSHAE (10,189) (8,852)
(31,402) (26,611)

Set-off of deferred income tax assets pursuant to set-off provisions
RRIE R EFEENBRERSHERE 25,560 20,589
Deferred income tax liabilities, net JFIEEFTS T B & (5,842) (6,022)
Deferred income tax assets, net IR IEFTIS T B E @ FE 46,041 34,749
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 16. ELE P 15 Bt 0

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the FERIELEFRESHEEMNABE(CREBZEEEHT]
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within ~ 7£ [&] —{iEf: & MK ) A9 Z &0 T -
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets %ﬂmﬁﬁﬁ%
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Beginning of the year F #J#4 %8 61,360 62,486
Credited/(charged) to income statement B2,/ (f&52) 825 17,101 (1,764)
Exchange differences [ 5, = &8 (1,018) 638
End of the year &F R #: 58 77,443 61,360
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (coNTINUED) 16. EHEFr 15 B8 (w0
Deferred income tax assets (Continued) ﬁﬂyf ﬁﬁﬁ E (49
Other Unrealised
provisions, profit
Provisionfor  depreciation resulting from
termination and intragroup Lease
benefits amortisation transactions liabilities
SR
BEETI ZEREER REEEH
HEER R EHH AERFE HEAHE Hit At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARBTT
Asat1January 2019 R=E— L F—A—AH 184 14,59 22312 24619 775 62486
(Charged)/credited to income statement
(f§%)/EiEm (55) 7563 (8618) (4,270) 3616 (1,764)
Fxchange differences [ i, % & - 5 161 463 9 638

As at 31 December 2019

RZE-NFE+=-A=+—8 129 22,164 13,855 20812 4,400 61360
(Charged)/credited to income statement
(f§32)/EnEs 61) 8,269 2,730 6,074 89 17,101
Exchange differences [& J{ % 38 - (3) (549) (471) 5 (1,018)
Asat 31 December 220 R—E-FF+-A=+—H 68 30430 16,036 26415 4,49 77443
Deferred income tax liabilities BT R AN
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Beginning of the year F #]f#4 &8 26,611 30,580
Charged/(credited) to income statement f& 2,/ (B52) 1828 5,559 (4,532)
Exchange differences [& %, = &8 (768) 563
End of the year FF R #r %58 31,402 26,611
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFFE

16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred income tax liabilities (Continued)

Accelerated

16. EEE P 5B a0
Y %2 97 - B 14K )

Deferred
income tax

liabilities arising

tax depreciation from business Right-of-use
allowance combination assets
XBAEH
Bl 2 Ik EEMELT
HERE FrisBasE EREEE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETFT ARET T ARETFT
Asat1January 2019 R =ZE— N FE—A—H 4,262 1,699 24619 30,580
Charged/(credited) to income statement f& &2,/ (E50) B2 695 (505) 4,722) (4,532)
Exchange differences [ i, Z= %8 107 1 455 563
As at 31 December 2019
RZZE-AF+A=+—H 5,064 1,195 20,352 26611
Charged/(credited) to income statement & &2,/ (E50) 825 391 (154) 5322 5,559
Exchange differences M 5,7 §8 (313) - (455) (768)
Asat 31 December 200 RZZE=ZEF+=-A=+—H 5,142 1,041 25219 31,402

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of RMB13,013,000 (2019: RMB15,376,000) in respect of losses
amounting to RMB73,146,000 (2019: RMB74,467,000) at 31 December
2020. As at 31 December 2020, these tax losses have no expiry dates
except for the tax losses of RMB35,590,000 (2019: RMB29,356,000) which
will expire between 2021 and 2040 (2019: between 2020 and 2039).

S ENEEERAETEMSHEENSEE

RIRBBRAEELENRKERRFEMER
RSN EMER R_E-_FF+_-A4
Tt B AEETERBEEBRARE
73,146,000 T ( =& — L F : A K ¥ 74,467,000
TO) ERIEEFT SR & E AR 13,013,0007T(=
T—hF: AR¥153760007T) c R-_ZT -
F+-—A=+—8 ' BRAR¥35590,0007T(=
T—NF AR 29356000 7T) RIS E 18 15
RIEBE-Z—FE_FTNZEF(ZZE—NF: =
TE_DFEE_T=NF) DI EBRBBEE
BIWER|EAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

17. SHARE CAPITAL 17. A

As at 31 December

W+=B=+—8
2020 2019
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
R E 47 EE BHEE & EE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFTT
Total share capital FEP N 1,280,784,000 1,280,784 1,280,784,000 1,280,784
Issued and fully paid B 217 B 12 2 fR A
— Domestic shares with a par value of RMB1 per share
NER  BREBEAREIT 652,080,000 652,080 652,080,000 652,080
— H shares with a par value of RMB1 per share
HR - SREABARE 1T 628,704,000 628,704 628,704,000 628,704
1,280,784,000 1,280,784 1,280,784,000 1,280,784

Domestic Domestic
shares H shares Total shares H shares Total
RER HE i T HE Gl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®T ARET ARETTL ARETT ARETT
At 1 January R—H—H 652,080 628,704 1,280,784 652,080 628,704 1,280,784
At31 December R+ ZF=+—H 652,080 628,704 1,280,784 652,080 628,704 1,280,784
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

18. RESERVES

(a) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the amount of share
capital issued by the Company and the historical net value of the assets,
liabilities and interests transferred to the Company upon its establishment
and net premium on issue of shares upon listing of the Company and
issuance of additional shares.

(b) Statutory reserves

The Company sets aside 10% of its net profit after income tax, before
distribution of dividend to shareholders, as stated in the financial
statements prepared under PRC accounting standards to the statutory
surplus reserve fund. Approximately RMB38,172,000 (2019:
RMB55,246,000), being 10% of the net profit after income tax as stated in
the financial statements prepared under PRC accounting standards, was
transferred to the statutory surplus reserve fund as at 31 December 2020.

In accordance with the amendment of the Company Law of the PRC on
27 October 2005 effective from 1 January 2006, it is not required to accrue
for statutory public welfare fund since the year 2006. The balance
together with statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to offset
accumulated losses or convert as share capital of the Company.

(c) Tax reserve

According to the preferential enterprise income tax policy for new
technology enterprises (‘NTE”) under the old PRC Enterprise Income Tax
(“EIT") regulation (effective before 1 January 2008), an NTE located in a
designated area of Beijing Economic and Technological Development
Zone was subject to EIT at a preferential income tax rate of 15%.
Moreover, upon approval by the relevant local tax bureau, the Company
was entitled to full exemption from EIT from 2000 to 2002 and 50%
reduction from 2003 to 2005. An amount for exemption and reduction
has to be appropriated to a non-distributable tax reserve. However, the
utilisation of the exempted tax is restricted to specified purposes and not
distributable to shareholders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

18. RESERVES (conTINUED)

(d) Foreign currency translation differences

Foreign currency translation differences reserve arises from currency
translations of all group entities that have a functional currency different
from the RMB being translated into the Group's presentation currency of
RMB.

(e) Other reserve

Other reserve mainly includes reserves arising from the issuance of
additional shares by subsidiaries and disposals to non-controlling
interests without change in control.

19. DEFERRED INCOME — GOVERNMENT

18. fitiff (=0
) AP AEB

SNEFEERELANEETHNAEERKEER
W RERARBHIN ML SR E KRN EEH
FEARAAIE AR M ZEE -

(e) AL

Efp BT BEEN T ATEERS RTEH
KA BN T A AERED -

19. MEAE WA — BUAT i Bh

GRANTS
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Beginning of the year F {]#2 58 76,492 83,680
Government grants received ZN 4 U E| B9 XA 48 B 90,690 8,065
Amortisation in the income statement (Note 26) #2455 & 8 (F13E 26) (16,777) (15,253)
End of the year F R &858 150,405 76,492

The ending balance of the government grants are relating to:

FRBUTHBIERFRE A T IEE HHE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT
Research and development expenditure ff 35 5 3% 5% 6,519 4385
Property, plant and equipment 55 & & iEEEY) - RE K& 43,815 46,510
Land use rights =35 F #2 93,530 21,041
Other expenditures E th 37 H 6,541 4,556
150,405 76,492
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

20. BORROWINGS 20. &=

As at 31 December
R+=B=+—8
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T

Non-current 3E57 B
Corporate bonds (‘bonds”) (Note (b)) A FIEZ ([ &3 1) (FiI5E (b)) - 816,326

Bank borrowings $R1T & 7K

— Secured 49 _
— Unsecured 3 483,178 407,245
483,227 1,223,571

Current i B
Bonds (Note (b)) &% (MI5E (b)) 806,080 -

Bank borrowings $R1Tf& 7K

— Secured 1 3,000 3,000
— Unsecured K 200,000 -
Add:  Current portion of non-current unsecured bank borrowing
Eon. EERIERBIRITEROENERE D 15,219 105,149
Current portion of non-current secured bank borrowing
ERIEREIRITIE R ENEAED D - 49
Borrowings from a related party (Note 35(d)) ¢ Bg B~ &) f5 AR IE (FI7E35(d)) 32,000 32,000
1,056,299 140,198
Total borrowings 15 FX A8 E8 1,539,526 1,363,769

Certain secured bank borrowings are secured by land and buildings of 2B 3K 3RE 2k DA AN E B /) T AEFERREEE
carrying amounts of RMB9,472,000 (2019: RMB9,438,000) of the Group ~ A B #9472000( —Z T — N F: A R

(Note 6). 9,438,000 7T ) A (Mist6) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ

20. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(@)  Asat 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's borrowings would
be repayable as follows:

20.

(@

8 3K (a0
RZEBE_EF+_A=+—"HEKZZ
—RE+=A=t— B ARBERHD

EEHANT ¢

As at 31 December
R+t=—A=+—8

2020 2019

RMB’000
AR®T T

RMB'000
ARETT

Within 1 year —E LA 1,056,299 140,198
Between 1 and 2 years —F & 4 385,594 921,475
Between 2 and 5 years —F E R F 92,133 251,947
Over 5 years A4 A = 5,500 50,149

1,539,526 1,363,769

(b) In 2016, the Company issued bonds with aggregate principal
amount of RMB800 million and a maturity of five years with a
nominal interest rate of 2.95% per annum, which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. According to the current market
environment and the Company'’s circumstance, the Company
decided on 19 June 2019 to raise the coupon rate of the bonds to
4.35% at the end of the third year of the current bond term. The
coupon rate of the fourth year and the fifth year (from 31 July 2019
to 30 July 2021) is 4.35%. The fair value of bonds as at 31 December
2020 amounted to RMB804,088,000 (2019: RMB811,600,000) which
is determined by reference to published price quotations and
within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3).

The carrying amounts of other borrowings approximate to their fair
value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

20. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 20. &K =)

(©  The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated  (c) ZANEEEZHEREEEIA T EE B8EA :
in the following currencies:

As at 31 December

R+t=—A=+—8

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREEFIT
RMB AR 1,537,582 1,362,825
Macanese Pataca J®2F97T 700 895
United States Dollar 7t 665 -
Polan Ztote ) B 22 78 1% 377 -
Canadian Dollar iTE AT 153 -
Australian Dollar Y& A F|25 7T 49 49
1,539,526 1,363,769

(d)  Theaverage interest rates (per annum) are as follows: d) FEHERMZE@ET :
2020 2019

Bonds f& %

—RMB AR ¥ 3.008% 3.008%

Other borrowings E4th {3

—RMB AR 2.832% 3.200%

— Australian Dollar A FZ5 7T 3.774% 4.890%

— United States Dollar 7T 1.000% -
The borrowings in other currencies bear free interest rate. HihEEZEEEET -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ

21. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 21. FEAT IR e B 9%

As at 31 December
B+=B=+—8
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T

Trade payables JE{BR X

— third parties £ =7 588,177 588,774
— related parties (Note 35(d)) B8 ES 75 (B &£ 35(d)) 29,648 43,538
617,825 632,312
Bills payables 1S 2= & 100,000 50,000
Trade and bills payables &< BE 5 & Z & 717,825 682,312
As at 31 December 2020, the ageing analysis of trade and bills payables JA—F-FEHF+—-H=+—H ' ENEAL
based on invoice date and financial position was as follows: ARSI Z B HPM E\jﬁ%ﬁj(/ﬁmlﬁg‘@/gﬁﬁyuj“ :
As at 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—~H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFTT
Within 4 months PU1E H AR 627,718 541,484
Over 4 months but within 1 year PA1E A & —4 78,971 87,254
Over 1 year but within 2 years —HF & — 4 4,956 30,415
Over 2 years but within 3 years —&F & =4 4,831 22,197
Over 3 years —F A k£ 1,349 962
717,825 682,312

Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 120 days of ~ FEfTBRFNMEYE(R - WA E TR 120 KA F LA
recognition. S e

The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables are considered to be the  FHRAEAPR AR @ FEN IR R ZEMEE B ER
same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. RAEEEQNLEEMES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

22. OTHER PAYABLES 22. Hofis E £ 3%

As at 31 December
R+=B=+—8

2020

RMB’000
ARBT T

Other payables £ i fE 1< 3¢

2019

RMB'000
ARETT

— third parties 8 =7 511,376 599,500
— related parties (Note 35(d)) B8 E# 77 (B 5L 35(d)) 24,745 29,513
536,121 629,013

As at 31 December

Rt=-RA=+—H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT
Payable to vendors of construction, machinery and equipment &1~ 5% {f T2 5K 146,600 247,102
Provision for sales discount and promotion expenses T IZ I EITE L S EHEE 105,542 103,429
Advances from customers JBU TR 117,860 84,902
Service fee payable JE < iR 75 & 32,275 21,845
Labour-union expenditure and education funds T &4 & LB TH B K& 21,383 20,464
Accruals for travel expenses T2 2 ik & 5,413 5,888
Interest payable J&{<f 7 & 14,500 14,500
Payment for land use right < T 3X 7,870 7,870
Non-controlling interests payable &1 /> 8 J% 5 3k 18 6,365 7,843
Research and development payable JE{~H i 505 3% & 5,476 11,662
Indirect taxes payable &2 B i 16,506 48,506
Deposits received FE{T IR 78 & 6,897 5,571
Dividends payable J& < i% ) 474 3734
Others EAth 48,960 45,697
536,121 629,013
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

23. SALARY AND WELFARE PAYABLES 23. BEA T8 K16 f 2%

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—8H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETFT
Salary payable FEfS T#& 52,295 62,235
Welfare payable [ 1< 1& T & 324 1,048
52,619 63,283
24. REVENUE 24. WA

2020

RMB’000
AR®TF T

Sales of Chinese medicine products AP %52 & §5 & YA

2019

RMB'000
ARBTIT

— Mainland China 7 H B i 3,788,289 3,443,104
— Outside Mainland China B& A B (A b LA S 758,659 951,826
4,546,948 4,394,930
Advertising services income J& &5 RIS A
— Mainland China 7 # B A i 23,616 32,053
Services income ARFGUA
— Mainland China 5 # B ;A3 6,525 6,790
— Outside Mainland China B& A B (A 3 LA S 30,100 42,458
36,625 49,248
Royalty fee income fn K2 {5 FRREULA
— Outside Mainland China [ /R B8 (A1 3 LA Sh 180 218
4,607,369 4,476,449
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F—FF+=-H=+—HIFFE
24. REVENUE (conTINUED) 24. WA @0
The Group has recognised the following asset and liability related to  ANEBE RN THEFPARIABENEENE
contract with customers: f& :

As at 31 December

R+=—RA=+—A8
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETTT
Contract liabilities — Services income & B B & — RIS A 3,142 1,934
The Group has not recognised any contract assets related to contract A - - FEF+ - H=+—BM_ZT—hFE
with customers as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 +-A=+—H AEEFIEREZEARE
FHNEREE
There is no significant changes in contract liabilities during the year FHZE —-E - ZTF+ — ﬂ =—+—BHIFEE &R
ended 31 December 2020. BERBREEAEE
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities SR E A R A EE BB

The following table shows revenue recognised in relation to contract " NEFMRAHEZE T ZTEF+_A=+—EAHK
liabilities in the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 related to carried  —=F—hE+—-A=+—H | EE S ERHHE

forward contract liabilities at the beginning of the year. ARABEAENMKRAFEEYEEEARAERE
ﬁﬁ%%k@ﬁ°

As at 31 December
R+t=—A=+—8
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTF T AREFTTT

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year
REMNEEREE R & EAARA 1,180 2,475
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

25. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 25. MBs W B

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F T AREETIT

Finance income 817§ Uk %

Interest income 1 B A 49,118 49,759
Exchange losses, net [& i3 182k, /F 58 (1,033) (1,920)
48,085 47,839
Finance costs 81 % &
Interest on bonds &% F| & (24,554) (45,685)
Interest on bank borrowings $R17 &7 F| & (20,994) (11,656)
Interest on lease liabilities T & & (& 71 & (6,016) (4,301)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets (Note 6)
B B BBREEANMEEEE (Hie) - 20,617
(51,564) (41,025)
Finance (costs)/income, net 8135 (B /), Wi @ FBE (3,479) 6,814
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—-—F=-—FF+=-F=+—HILFE
26. EXPENSE BY NATURE . B EEHES R
Operating profit was arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following: THRBEEER(E50) FaFE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETT
Raw materials, merchandise and consumables used R} ~ 790 R BIE#H 1,558,536 1,404,752
Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress & ik & & £ & @ B 15 & & &) (45,748) 112,664
Employee benefit expense (Note 27) 8 T&F|F 7 (HI5E27) 753,335 827,041
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 6)
R Ry - M5B RREITE (Fitte) 183,652 90,822
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) {& FA#E & E#E8Y (Fi5E7) 73,071 54,901
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) /12 & E # 55 (K13 8) 9,191 12,711
Amortisation of other long-term assets E fth & B & = £ §4 4,339 1628
Provision for impairment of inventories 17 & X B 2 &1 18 22,808 48,614
Provision for impairment of goodwill ?ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ% 1,235 -
Provision for impairment of receivables U X T8 522 BR *E & 5 1R 22,296 20,113
Expenses relating to short-term leases 2 EiFH & & 21,988 45,321
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
AEHENFBEER(TRENHEHERE)Y 2,142 956
COVID-19-related rent concessions ¥7 7! 7 ki 25 i 26 A8 B HH € 5 (2,986) -
Auditor's remuneration 1% £X&T M &
— Audit services #Z EUIRT
— PricewaterhouseCoopers Z& &l 7k 38 6,096 6,153
— Other auditors E fth 2851 Ail 1,328 3,033
— Non-audit services 3FZ EUR
— PricewaterhouseCoopers & £ 5 7k 18 271 194
Research and development costs @ Aff 5T 2 & 5 @ 65,548 28316
(Gains)/losses on disposal of non-current assets 3E//i B & BB 12 (W= 5),/ 185k (10,051) 3,387
Amortisation of deferred income — government grants (Note 19)
BIEWA — BT R Bh ey B85 (FHRE19) (16,777) (15,253)
Processing costs 1 T & 244,384 259,119
Advertising and promotion expenses 5 R EEHEE 229,952 189,541
Transportation i &) & 48,399 45,175
Repair and maintenance #E & & R & 52,697 54,707
Utilities JAK} Rz #HB% 37 Y 120,586 90,319
Other taxes EfthFi & 40,508 43328
M Variable lease payments represent the amounts which are @ AJ#%&# FHENREERIEETFTEEEEAL
calculated based on percentages of revenue generated by certain El‘j IWAEBDLL A ERBHEBR TR S
retail outlets that exceed their fixed rentals. 4% o

@ Excluding employee benefit expense, depreciation and @ REFEETEMES « FTENRBEER -

amortisation expense. The research and development costs B L E R E’]ﬁﬂ?{ﬁfﬂ?’\%%ﬂﬁ%}\ﬁﬁg
including employee benefit expense, depreciation and 103,641,000 7% ( = —hFE: ARK
amortisation expense were RMB103,641,000 (2019: RMB61,248,000). 61,248,000 7T ) °
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T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 27. B LA B %
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREET T
Salary and wages T& 609,033 604,225
Staff welfare & Fl| & 43,165 40,790
Housing fund (Note 33) B AfE® (M 33) 49,675 51214
Contribution to pension schemes (Note 32) R K & 7% (B 5F 32) 51,462 130,812
753,335 827,041

The five individuals whose emoluments before individual income tax ~ RNREFNEFFEAMESHRAITFES RSN AMA
were the highest in the Group for the year include one (2019:one) +®E—(U(—_ZE—LF: —()EFE > I
director and no (2019: no) supervisor whose emoluments are reflected in (= ZE— f,4F : B7)B5E - IR EN S 1P =F

the analysis presented in Note 31. The emoluments payable to the 31O IR ML c REEY N FEHAUAMN (=

remaining four (2019: four) individuals during the year are as follows: E—NF  POG) ATEEIS T -
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT
Basic salaries, allowances and bonuses BB ¢ - 28 & 825 6,308 5,593
Contribution to pension scheme 3R /RK 4t 7X 125 166
6,433 5,759
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (conTiNUED) 27. B LA P X @0
SENTHBENARS

2020 2019

HKD1,000,001-HKD1,500,000 (Equivalent to RMB888,701-RMB1,333,050)

The emoluments of these individuals fell within the following band: It E5 A T E B

7511,000,001-1,500,000 7T (FHE 7 AR 5 888,701-1,333,050 7T.) 1 2
HKD1,500,001-HKD2,000,000 (Equivalent to RMB1,333,051-RMB1,777,400)
75#1,500,001-2,000,000 7T (FHE A AR 1,333,051-1,777,400 7T) 2 2

HKD2,000,001-HKD2,500,000 (Equivalent to RMB1,777,401-RMB2,221,750)
7 H& 2,000,001-2,500,000 7 (FBE R AR ¥ 1,777,401-2,221,750 70) - -
HKD2,500,001-HKD3,000,000 (Equivalent to RMB2,221,751-RMB2,666,100)
78 2,500,001-3,000,000 7T (FEE A AR 2,221,751-2,666,100 7T 1 -
HKD3,000,001-HKD3,500,000 (Equivalent to RMB2,666,101-RMB3,110,450)
75K 3,000,001-3,500,000 7T (AEZE Y AR ¥ 2,666,101-3,110,450 JT) - -

Among the above four (2019: four) individuals, there are four (2019: four) ~ AFEE FifipUfiz (ZFE—HFE : U ) A+H A
individuals whose emoluments were paid by Tong Ren Tang Chinese  PU{i (ZZF— .5 : Ui ) ATHEH AR E
Medicine and its subsidiary for the year. BREFNRIEA -

None of the five highest paid individuals of the Group waived any  F#l A/ xS ¥ A T W RHEEAE o ANE
emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of such B A Al m s AT X & /E B8 E 1
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group oras  ZEIIANEBH NS - ik B AEE(E o
compensation for loss of office.
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T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC effective from 1
January 2008, enterprises with a High/New Technology Enterprise
("HNTE") status are able to enjoy a preferential tax rate of 15%. For the
entities without the HNTE status, the PRC income tax rate is 25% (2019:
25%). As of 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries have obtained the HNTE certificate. Consequently, their
applicable income tax rate in 2020 is 15% (2019: 15%).

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Income tax on other countries and regions (excluding Mainland China
and Hong Kong) profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the income tax rates prevailing in the tax jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

Current income tax expense & HiFT1S & F

28. Pr3BiEH

BIEE —_EENF— A —BHRITHRBEERT
BEEARET ST hEENZE 15% AT
SRERHE - HRIESHHMEE - FTE/H
HMEEB(ZZE—NF :25%) c HE_ZT =
EFE+_A=+—BKZZE—AhF+=A
=t+—H ARRERIEDPFRAREEESHE
MEEFE - Al ZBH R _ZE_FFHE
TSR EA15%(ZZ—F : 15%) °

ERAFEGHTERGAE  B5wEARNZ
HRECEREMHEER A1650( - — L& :
16.5%) °

B e B P 2 R BB B DA SN EL A B R s [
BN 2 IR IRA S (At R A B KRR
SELEXBAERRSM R 2 BITHE

et

= o
Ean

2020 2019

RMB’000
ARBTF T

RMB'000
ARBTIT

— Mainland China A B A ), 71,724 89,781

— Hong Kong &/ 83,478 89,130
— Other countries and regions (excluding Mainland China and Hong Kong)

Bk o B 79 3t B o BRI 78 LA SN EL At BRI 2R Bl [ 9,452 5,972

164,654 184,883

Deferred income tax credit {EIEFTSFi & IA (11,542) (2,768)

153,112 182,115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 28. i Bi B A )

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the ANEBFLRAAEFRAIFEOFIE  BERS O
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average income == 82 FI| ;B3 BB A9 INFE 951 K 209% (ZF— N1,

tax rate of 20.9% (2019: 23.7%) to profits of the consolidated entities as 4 : 23.7%) MEE A MIERG AN EREWT -
follows:

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

Profit before income tax & FT15 4 Al F1) ) 939,619 923,505
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries

EEABEBRROAERERNE MR EAERNRIE 196,093 218,852

Tax effects of: FRIEF £
— Income not subject to tax FE T 2 YA (5,855) (6451)
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1~ A] #7532 & Fi 6,100 6,173

— Tax losses and temporary differences for which no deferred income
tax assets were recognised

RBREEFEHEENHEEEREREER 1,283 3,641
— Effect of preferential income tax treatments Fr iS5 8 I 5 H) 52 (41,687) (38177)
— Final settlements and payments [ &5 £ 2 (2,269) 290
— Others H A, (553) 2.213)
Income tax expense PS5 & 153,112 182,115
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T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE 29. FFHBW A

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to AR B ARINZSIZ AN A T FT B B EEFFNBLA
owners of the Company of approximately RMB467,553,000 by the ¥ 467,553,0007T * BRIAS BAE 21T E@BARHY
weighted average number of 1,280,784,000 shares in issue during the  INFEIIEUH 1,280,784,000 IX 25T E &Y »

year.

The Company had no dilutive potential shares in 2020 and 2019. AARIRZE_EFR_T-—NFIEEE
HEHAD -

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T

Profit attributable to owners of the Company AE 5 BRA R AT A& 467,553 417,650

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands)

IniEFEE BT BB ER (FAR) 1,280,784 1,280,784
Earnings per share &% W& RMB0.37 RMBO0.33
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

30. DIVIDENDS

The cash dividends paid in 2020 and 2019 were RMB204,925,000
(RMBO.16 (including tax) per share) and RMB230,541,000 (RMB0.18
(including tax) per share) respectively.

On 26 March 2021, the Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 of RMB0.16 (including tax)
per share, amounting to a total of RMB204,925,440, which is subject to
the shareholders’ approval at the 2020 annual general meeting. These
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

30. X B

RZEZEFR_F-NFAZMNHNRESRE
o Rl A A R ¥ 2049250007 (B IRARE0.16
T(EF)) RARY 230,541,000 7T (BIRA R
018TL(EF)) °

RZZE-—F=ZA=+"H EEZLEZREE
BAREI6TL(ER) RBEHE_T_FF
+TZA=+—BHUEFERSERE BEAAR
#520492544070 c ZRENDERERFEL T
TFERRBFAFRSHAE - RPBEHRIRAR KB
IHIBFERTAR B o

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREET T

Interim dividend paid of RMB nil (2019: RMB nil) per ordinary share
FHIRERE BRARBOT(ZZE—NF : BRAR®BOT)
Final dividend proposed of RMB0.16 (including tax)

(2019: RMBO.16 (including tax)) per ordinary share

BRAHRE - BRARKI6TT(BEHR)(ZT—NF ERARBI167TT(EH)) 204,925 204,925

204,925 204,925
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

31. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

Emoluments paid or
receivable in respect

31.

3 N B 3 B A 4 A B B

o 27 B B 5

S

—ECTFEF A=+ —HUEFE:

of aperson’s
services as a director/
supervisor, whether
of the Company or its Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director's/supervisor's other services in
subsidiary undertaking connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
fFRES/BS
(FERARAGHT
DALE) RERE
MXARERHHE AEBRAFREFARLENSHRHANES  ESRBMIARERNHE
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary Allowances and toaretirement
Fees Salary bonuses benefits * benefit scheme Total
BB EY
ik #e Bfgen BHRER ESE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR#TTR ARMTT ARMTT ARMTT AR%TT
Chairman EER
Mr. Gu Hai Ou BB /BB 2% - - - - - -
Executive directors H1{TEE
Mr.JinTao® £ B4 Y - - - - - -
Mr. Ma Guan Yu® B EIF 74 © - - - - - -
Mr. Huang Ning ¥ E 2 75 4 © - - - - - -
Mr. Wu Le Jun @ REZE 5 A 1 - - - - - -
Ms. Wu Qian REZ T - - - - -
Mr. Wang YuWei © TIEfE 5L 4 © - 253 1,402 45 4 1,704
Ms.Fang Jia Zhi BR S & T - 147 548 2 4 74
Independent non-executive directors
BUYES
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen T RIB%4 213 - - - - 213
Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza FRE 22 213 - - - - 213
Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing B R E 4 100 - - - - 100
Supervisors &%
Ms.Suli I =
Mr.Wu Yi Gang R IASE 5% 4 100 - - - - 100
Mr.Li Yuan Hong ® E LA %4 @ - 591 - L5} 4 637
Mr. Dong Ke Man® B2 i 4 @ - 49 324 14 4 391
Notes: Hisr

(1) Bonuses are accrued according to current year's results, which will be paid )

in the following year after Board of Directors’ approval

2) Include housing and car allowance
(3) Appointed on 18 June 2020
(4) Resigned on 18 June 2020

(5)  General manager of the Company
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31. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

31. 3 R SR A5 R RE AR w0

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (coNTINUED)
Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) o g 5 B o)

For the year ended 31 December 2019: B2 NFt+-A=1+—"HIEFE:

Chairman B2 &
Mr. Gu Hai Ou® BB B  4 O
Mr. Gao Zhen Kun © iR ik £

Executive directors 5 {7EE
Mr. Huang Ning ZE 4% 4
Mr.Wu e Jun REE %4

Ms. Wu Qian REEZ L

Mr. Wang YuWei ® T12 /&R 4"
Ms.Fang Jia Zhi RS LT

Independent non-executive directors
BukyES

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen T RIB% 4
Ms. Chan Ching Har, Eliza BB B & +

Mr. Zhan Yuan Jing B R 24

Supervisors E5Z
Ms. Suli I
Mr. Wu Yi Gang RIASE &

Mr. Dong Ke Man & 52 % &

Emoluments paid or
receivable in e

of a person’s

services as a director/

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director's/supervisor's other s

subsidiary undertaking connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary

REZ/&

HEHREAMES/

Employer!

contribution
Discretionary Allowances and to a retirement
bonuses " benefits @ benefit scheme

= 1214 847 45 50

2 = - - -

100 = = = =

100 - - - =

21
21
100

T FACENRBEREGARAF o ZROFBEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

31. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (coNTINUED)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019: (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Bonuses are accrued according to current year's results, which will be paid
in the following year after Board of Directors’ approval

2) Include housing and car allowance
(3) Appointed on 11 June 2019
(4) Resigned on 11 June 2019

(5) General manager of the Company

No directors and supervisors waived any emoluments and no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors and
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of position.

No payments or benefits in respect of termination of directors’ and
supervisors’ services were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to or
receivable by any director or supervisor; nor are any payable.

No consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ or supervisors’ services.

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors
and supervisors, their controlled bodies corporate and connected entities.

Saved as disclosed in Note 35 and elsewhere in these financial
statements, none of the directors and supervisors had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group, to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and which was
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T D S8 25 3 i e (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

32. RETIREMENT AND TERMINATION
BENEFITS

Pursuant to the PRC laws and regulations, the Group is required to make
monthly contributions to various retirement benefit schemes organised
by the relevant provincial and municipal governments for the Group’s
employees in the PRC at rates ranging from 22% to 24% (2019: 22% to
24%) of the employees’ standard salaries, of which 14% to 16% (2019:
14% to 16%) is borne by the Group and the remaining portion is borne by
the employees.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme (the "MPF scheme”) in accordance with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of Hong Kong (the “MPF
Ordinance”). The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme. These
defined contribution schemes are responsible for the pension liabilities of
the employees. The Group's contributions to these defined contribution
schemes are expensed as incurred.

In addition, the Group provides termination benefits to certain employees
up to their normal retirement age as set out in Note 2.21(c). The carrying
amount of the relevant provision as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB454,000 (2019: RMB863,000).

33. HOUSING FUND

The Group's full-time employees in Mainland China participate in a state-
sponsored housing fund (“Fund”). The housing fund can be used by the
Group's employees for purchasing houses, or withdrawn upon their
retirement. The Group is required to make annual contributions to the
Fund based on certain percentages of the employees’ salaries. The
Group's liability in respect of the housing fund is limited to the
contributions payable in each period. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group contributed approximately RMB49,752,000 (2019:
RMB51,602,000) to the Fund.

RN EBERREBARAA o

32. B PR A B Al e

BEFEE@EREZRIAE  ~EEEER
BEANE Tk ARBAFREEBHMERSEZR
%o IR A AEH BT ENIZETER
WHEUNZE(ZZFE—NF 2% 24% 2
M) HABRAREBRENLH A14%ZE 16%
ZE—NF 4% E16%) c BRI BRE T
HAHE o

AEBURBBNTFARREELRHIEATE
SEOI(MREEES ) 2 Ea bt A BT
g ([aEEsd)) RS8R A%E
ZEETERAABELMFEHRR ZFETER
K&z BEZTRBETEIBYE - AEBEHK
RRIERBENHERINEERERL -

AN - REB AF LR B FARAERMEHRE
ZEFRIKF B 2 BT K B R B 5
2210) e R=E-_ZTF+_-_A=+—HBZHE:t
IRABREL B AR 454000 T (ZE—NF -
AR #863,0007T) °

33, EEARE

FrEREBNFREANLEHRE THEEZIER
EPNEELAESHE(AEEEE) - &%
BETAAAEEHEBEREXREBRE— R
TH - AEBESFHETTE—Fa»LAR
BaiTERR - REAE2ME - AEEH
EARBRRAES—HEERER -BE=-Z=
TF+_A=1+—BLFE  AEEAELER
BERAITMNHOARY497500T(ZF— N1
F: HAREE51602,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

34. CASH FLOW INFORMATION 34. BlEWBERER
(a) Reconciliation from profit before income tax to cash (a) %mﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂimﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ]ﬁﬁ
generated from operations: it ik VG B

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T AREET T

Profit before income tax & BT 15 %% il F1) 939,619 923,505
Adjustments for: FHEIEF :
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 6)

FENZEY - BE NRREBITE (o) 183,652 90,822
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) £ FI#E & E=# 85 (FI5E7) 73,071 54,901
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) &2 & E#4 § (71 8) 9,191 12,711
Amortisation of other long-term assets Eth & 23 & 2= # £ 4,339 1,628
Provision for impairment of inventories 17 & B & 2 5T 1 22,808 48,614
Provision for impairment of receivables & B R IE R BT 22,296 20,113
Provision for impairment of goodwill 725 B 2 F T 1,235 -
(Gains)/losses on disposal of non-current assets 3ER BN & 25 IE (W zs), 1B % (10,051) 3,387
Amortisation of deferred income — government grants (Note 19)

BB A — BT Bh a0 88 (BsE19) (16,777) (15,253)
Interest income (Note 25) | 8IS A (B 25) (49,118) (49,759)
Interest expense (Note 25) %I 8 37 ) (B 3£ 25) 51,564 61,642
Exchange losses (Note 25) [ 54,18 5 (B 5% 25) 1,033 1,920
Share of losses of investments accounted for using the equity method (Note 10)

FHRREREABRNKENERNTE (M5 10) 451 1,456

Release of foreign currency translation differences upon liquidation
of a joint venture (Note 10)

HEEFEEMBER 2 INEITEZH (I 10) - (846)
Other income and gains, net EAth Yz B F1S + F58 (587) (902)
Operating profit before working capital changes &% & & £ B) il 2 48 & 5 1,232,726 1,153,939
Changes in: &) :
Inventories 17 & (454,819) (3,694)
Trade and bills receivables U BR 50 & Z= 4% 55,605 27,685
Other financial assets at amortised cost LA SRR ANGT 2R E M S B E & (2,576) 27,518
Prepayments and other current assets TE15 5k 2 E Al iR BV & 2= (71,140) (87,685)
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
RAREBEEAZEEEZSF AHMES KanemEE (23,513) 114,516
Trade and bills payables &1 BR 58 & =5 35,513 (88,474)
Other current liabilities ELth 7 Eh & (& (25,188) 47,848
Proceeds from government grants #EZEUZ A - B 4 B 12,134 2,396
Cash generated from operations &% & & &) Us Bl H938 & 758,742 1,194,049
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

34. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 34. BIEWEBERE B mw
(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents and (b) ﬁ%&ﬁ%%fg%ﬂﬁ,ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ#%

short-term bank deposits

As at 31 December, cash and cash equivalents were denominated inthe A+_-_A=+—H  BE KBS EBEYiREE
following currencies: FRIOE ¢

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTF T ARETT

Cash at bank and in hand 38 & MR/ T R ERTF X

RMB A R #& 1,748,411 2,005,623
HKD /& ¥ 1,079,591 894,389
United States Dollar €71 30,543 25,579
Australian Dollar S A ) 38 7T 25,648 18510
Macanese Pataca Y2F97T 23,299 10,142
Singapore Dollar ¥7 A0 7T 15,308 12,452
Canadian Dollar i1 & X JT 9,450 9,973
New Zealand Dollar 778 5 7T 7,305 7,351
UAE Dirham [ B 25 3 7 45 3,509 2,709
Other currencies E fth & & 4,894 3,917

2,947,958 2,990,645
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ

34, CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents and

short-term bank deposits (Continued)

Bank deposits with original maturities of over three months were
classified as short-term bank deposits and denominated in the following
currencies:

34, BEREEREB @
(b) B4 e B4 55 6Py A 3o 9 RAT A7k a0

RiaF R IR R =18 A RITFRIIR R
HIRTTIFAR - IRERBIIRIN T

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
RMB AR 100,000 42,793
HKD 7 #& 328,510 797,638
Canadian Dollar i & A JT 16,035 8,976
Singapore Dollar ¥ N3 7T 8,387 8,626
Other currencies H fb & # 1,463 1,421
454,395 859,454

As at 31 December 2020, the cash in hand balance of the Group was
RMB926,000 (2019: RMB1,096,000). Cash at bank and short-term bank
deposits balance of the Group was RMB3,401,427,000 (2019:
RMB3,849,003,000). Management did not expect any losses from non-
performance by those banks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

34, CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

() Reconciliation of cash flows from financing

activities

This section sets out an analysis of cash flows of financial liabilities from

financing activities and its movement for each of the year presented.

£ F B 5 e 25 B

34, BEREERER @
(c) SIS Wy i 2k iy B4 U B B

RERES 5

NIRRT REN DT NE) -

(#)

—EFEL A=+ —HILFE

EREAAINRNEE B ESE

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETRT ARETTT

Gross debt — fixed interest rates 48 {& %5 — & F| = (1,117,476) (928,720)
Gross debt — variable interest rates Z &7 — /2 & F & (422,050) (435,049)
(1,539,526) (1,363,769)

Liability from financing activity as at 1 January 2019

Borrowings due
within 1 year

—EREBER
RMB'000
ARBETT

Borrowings
due after 1 year
—FRIMER

RMB’000

ARETT

Lease liabilities
HESR
RMB'000
AREETT

Total

st
RMB'000
AREEFT

R-E-NF-A-REELPNAE (200,146) (911,331) (123,068) (1,234,545)
Cashflows RE R E 165,146 (400,000) 45343 (189,511)
Acquisition — leases 1& il — F & - - (20,866) (20,866)
Foreign exchange adjustments [& 3 F 2 - (20) (2,301) (2,321)
Other changes H b & &) (105,198) 87,780 921 (16,497)
Liability from financing activity as at 31 December 2019
RZBE-NE+ZR=T—HEEEDNAE (140,198) (1,223,571) (99,971) (1,463,740)
Cash flows B &R & (184,852) (1,237) 56,480 (129,609)
Acquisition — leases 3Z il — FHE - - (111,244) (111,244)
Foreign exchange adjustments [E &% 86 3624 3,710
Other changes " E fth & & (731,249) 741,495 3523 13,769
Liability from financing activity as at
31 December 2020
R-Z-ZF+-A=+-BEETEHNER (1,056,299) (483,227) (147,588) (1,687,114)
M During 2020, other changes are non-cash movements, mainly @ 2000FF  Hh B RIIERSEH - =
including non-current borrowings of RMB731,249,000 reclassified T EEA E #& 731,249,000 0 K EAfE R &
to current portion and lease modification. SEERENER LB EEHS -

RN EBERREBARAA o

—eoeaaen 221



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the other
party or exercise significant influence in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control.

Related parties include the ultimate holding company and its subsidiaries,
other entities and corporations in which the Company is able to control
or exercise significant influence in making financial and operating
decisions and key management personnel of the Company as well as
their close family members.

During the year, the Group had the following material transactions with
related parties, which were entered into at terms mutually agreed with
these related parties in the ordinary course of business.

(a) Transactions with the ultimate holding company

Transactions with the ultimate holding company during the year are
summarised as follows:

Trademark licence fee (Note (i

) FIRER & (K G)

Property leasing expense (Note (i) ¥ 2 & & A (M 5E (i)

Additions to right-of-use assets ¥ K {& A& &
— Property, plant and equipment (Note (i) 5= /& & &
— Land use right (Note (iii)) 2= 3tb{57 FA 48 (Ffd 5 (iii))

Interest on lease liabilities & & & %8 3
— Property, plant and equipment (Note (i) 5 & }& i
— Land use right (Note (i) 2= 3t {55 F5 48 (Ff¥ 5 (iii))

&Y - BE Rk (M i)

[68 6k 5 52 S
BB R — AR IER S
fﬂ%&éﬂ?&ﬁimﬂﬂiﬁ?ﬁ‘i
] B9 A 1 7 X R g

T RIEE TS
ET X E|MERE

BT BREREERARMETEFAR
AR EIHE j]ﬂﬁﬁﬁ“%ﬂ%&*éﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ %lJ
SHEMEBARZEZ REIARRREIRREEA
BRMPIREEZINREKRE -

REEAEIANB AT G TEARS © 5
B 5 R — R TS BIE T IR R A T
B 7T 4 o

(@) BLIE AP IR 2 ) 58 5
REFRBEIBRATOZ ST -

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR AREETIT

3,550 3,250

687 8,510

& (B E (i) 31,496 1,669
33,189 -

1,415 76

429 171
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35.

(a)

Notes:

(iii)

(iv)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

Transactions with the ultimate holding company (Continued)

A licence agreement was entered on 28 February 2018 between the
Company and the ultimate holding company whereby the Company is
allowed to use certain trademarks and trademark logos (collectively,
“Trademarks”) of the ultimate holding company. The licence agreement is
effective from 1 March 2018 to 31 March 2021. In case of the extension of
the agreement, the Company can apply three months prior to the
expiration of the licence and renew the licence agreement with the
ultimate holding company. The annual licence agreement fee is
RMB3,000,000 with an annual increase of RMB300,000 thereafter.

On 25 January 2017, the Company and the ultimate holding company
entered into a property leasing framework agreement, pursuant to which,
the ultimate holding company has agreed to lease and procure its other
members to lease certain premises to the Group for its productions and
operations, including but not limited to office premises, warehouses and
staff quarter, for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2017 to
1 December 2019. The continuing connected transactions under the
Property Leasing Framework Agreement was entered into in accordance
with the pricing policies below: (1) The relevant market price. (2) Where the
market price is not available, then the contracted price, which shall be
determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties of the
agreement based on the principle of cost plus a fair and reasonable profit
ratio and by reference to the historical rentals. The reasonable cost shall be
determined by reference to the size of the premises provided by the
ultimate holding company, and the cost of premises management.

On 30 December 2019, the Company renewed the property leasing
framework agreement with the ultimate holding company, for a term of
three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

A land use right leasing agreement (the “Old Agreement’) dated 6
October 2000 was entered into between the Company and the ultimate
holding company. Pursuant to the agreement, the total area leased to the
Company is approximately 49,776.35 sq.m. The land is located in Beijing,
the PRC, with a lease period of 20 years commencing from 6 October 2000.
The annual rental is calculated at a rate of RMB53.95 per sq.m. Any
adjustments to the annual rental shall be made at the market rent, provided
that such adjustment shall not exceed 10% of that of the previous year. On
1 January 2006, an amendment was made to reduce the total area of the
land leased to 43,815.15 sq.m., the remaining clauses on the Old Agreement
still remain effective.

On 26 March 2021, a land use right leasing agreement was entered into
between the Company and the ultimate holding company. Pursuant to the
agreement, the total area leased to the Company is approximately
43,812.95 sg.m. The land is located in Beijing, the PRC, with a lease period of
5 years commencing from 6 October 2020. The annual rental expense is
about RMB8,373,000.

The Company entered into the asset transfer agreement and supplemental
asset transfer agreement with the ultimate holding company, which was
approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 17
February 2020. Pursuant to the agreements, the Company purchased
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Processing Base (including land
use right and buildings) at the consideration of approximately
RMB640,682,000 (tax inclusive), which is recognised as right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment with carrying amounts of
RMB183,434,000 and RMB404,348,000 respectively.
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35.

(a)

U]

(iff)

(iv)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

—EFEL A=+ —HILFE

B W5k 5 28 5 (w0
Bl I3 2 P e A ) A2 B (o)

J'L /\

PiN/N —N\FZA=+/\HEREEZE]
JA*@WFE%&TAH Bt - AR TT@
%Eﬂ¢““7mﬁH&ﬁHlT(ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬁD
EIRERERE T —N\F=A— Hté_gz
FZA=Z+—Bi WFERFEARKRE A2
EERTBRI=FEARYEFR ﬁwﬂ%“ﬂﬁﬁ
TEIREFERAFTAR - —E— N\FEEIEZER
FAARECEAAREI08E T WEBFTIEA
R¥3087T -

MZB—tF—-A-+0H  ARAERKEE]
AIZTMEREER G - REBEZ M Emi
REERE LB R E MK S R F HHEE T

%ﬁ%@%%i%&%@ BREENRRBAE

¥ REREBIER RB=% BT tF—

J’L/_\

A—RARBRE-T—-NF+A=+—Hit - W%l
fﬁ S IE MSERER SHRIBEL T EEBRER]

NABREATH{E o Q) (W T EEEET{E - RIFTRENE
E%%%ﬁﬁ%&$%@$éﬁﬂﬁ%$ﬁ%ﬁ%
%‘iﬁfﬁﬁ% KN TEREETE - 8 BRANERE
E;g NEIRENMERE  URMEEEER
METE °

—hNEF+ZA=1+H ' ARARHEZKKERA
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AARRZEZEZF+ ANHERZRKRIERARER
—@i%ﬁ%%ﬁ = ([ RiBE]) - ﬁﬁ&%
& ANQRIAALHEIEL 4977635 F K o 2L
R FBEE RN HEHRE _EEEF+HANA
B AT F - FHEABTFHRKRARES395
o AHHEZFHES  FHRBEERETSE
BT BTEBALFENESZT KRZZEX
¢ A—B AAREZKRERARFTHAER
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AABN T - —F = - +/NHEZKRERA A
MJ—mim@%%ﬂ St o WIBZ B - AR
AIFAA L b EFE#) 43,812.95 F 52K o 5% L AL AR

BEitmmc HEHAE T F+ A/ A BH
A  FHESHAARES373,0007T °

R-ZF_ZE_A++H  BARBRBRREFRIAES

BOAE AN A E A AN R R] S MY B B e
LEBEERMBABRLEN - RIEZ MR - AREIA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Transactions with the subsidiaries and joint ventures of

the ultimate holding company

35.

(b)

B8 W 5 A 5 a0

BEBRAANTAREBEE
ﬂ@xfu

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARETTT
Sales of Chinese medicine related products (Note (i) $4 & A 2248 B8 &= & (B EE () 1,262,162 927,411
Purchases of Chinese medicine related products (Note (ii)) £ B8 b %548 B8 & & (P = (i) 114,585 155,773
Purchases of products for exclusive distributorship (Note (jii))
REBB R SHE m (B E (in)) 44,224 50,511
Advertising services income (Note (iv)) & &5 ARFS A (B 5E (iv)) 22,619 31,997
Property leasing expense (Note (a)(i)) ¥ 2FAE & A (M 5E )(i) 4,332 3,873
Additions to right-of-use assets (Note (a)(ii) FT1& B {# FRE & = (M 5F (a 11,595 -
Interest on lease liabilities (Note (a)(il)) # & & & F 237 ) (B 3E @)(i)) 387 -
Notes: Btet -
0] On 29 September 2016, the Company entered the distribution framework (i) RZE—RFENLAZTNH » RAFEREIERR
agreement with the ultimate holding company. Pursuant to the agreement, .Jiiﬁ%ﬂmﬁﬁ% CIRER G AR H-ﬁﬁ
the price of the products to be sold by the Group to the ultimate holding %%E—ﬁﬁ(? NAINTFRBINEETHE ZEMRER

company'’s subsidiaries and joint ventures shall not be lower than that
charged by the Group to other independent third parties and shall be
determined in accordance with a reasonable cost plus a fair and reasonable
profit margin: (1) the reasonable cost shall be determined by reference to
the cost of the raw materials, the cost of labour and the manufacturing
expense etc,; and (2) the profit margin shall be determined by reference to
the prevailing market and the then market price for comparable products
in the related industry, and the profit rate of the products of the Group in
the past years of not exceeding 50%, which is in line with the previous gross
profit rate of the Group. The agreement was approved at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 16 December 2016 and for a term of
three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

On 16 October 2019, the Company renewed the distribution framework
agreement with the ultimate holding company with similar pricing policies.
The renewed agreement was approved at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 16 December 2019 and for a term of three
years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.
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35.

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

Transactions with the subsidiaries and joint ventures of

the ultimate holding company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

The Company entered a master procurement agreement with the ultimate
holding company on 29 September 2016. Pursuant to the agreement, the
subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding company can supply
to the Group the products that are required for the Group's production, sale
and distribution. The price procured by the Group from the ultimate
holding company’s subsidiaries and joint ventures shall be negotiated by
the parties on an arm’s length basis. The agreement was approved at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 16 December 2016 and
for a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

On 16 October 2019, the Company renewed the master procurement
agreement with the ultimate holding company. Pursuant to the agreement,
the subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding company can
supply to the Group the products that are required for the Group’s
production, sale and distribution. The price procured by the Group from the
ultimate holding company’s subsidiaries and joint ventures shall be
negotiated by the parties on an arm’s length basis. The ultimate holding
company shall not supply the products to the Group (1) provided that the
products satisfy the pharmacopoeia of the PRC standard and the internal
quality standard of the Company, and under the premise of equal quality,
the price shall be negotiated and agreed by the parties based on the
market price for procurement with fair market competition and public offer,
which shall be determined with reference to the prevailing market price of
comparable products negotiated and provided by at least two independent
suppliers in the same or surrounding areas; (2) if the relevant products are
only available from specific suppliers due to content, special requirement or
market resource limitations, reference shall be made to the price offer of
suppliers and book comparable price; and (3) under the premise of equal
quality, the price to be paid by the Group for the procurement of the
products shall not be higher than that available from independent third
parties for similar products, or higher than the market price, whichever is
the lower. The renewed agreement was approved at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 16 December 2019 and for a term of
three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —

35.

(b)

—FE AT+ —AULEE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

Transactions with the subsidiaries and joint ventures of

the ultimate holding company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ifi)

226

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine entered an exclusive distributorship
frame-work agreement with Tong Ren Tang Ltd. on 8 November 2017, with
an effective period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020, pursuant to
which, Tong Ren Tang International Natural-Pharm, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine, is appointed as the sole
distributor outside Mainland China of the Tong Ren Tang Ltd., for the
purpose of the distribution of the relevant Tong Ren Tang branded
products supplied by Tong Ren Tang Ltd. ("Relevant Products’) outside
Mainland China. The price of the Relevant Products supplied shall not be
higher than the wholesale price of the Relevant Products sold to the
wholesale customers in Mainland China and shall be determined with
reference to the then prevailing market price. The agreement has been
approved by the extraordinary general meeting of Tong Ren Tang Chinese
Medicine on 1 December 2017

Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine renewed the agreement with Tong Ren
Tang Ltd. with similar pricing policies on 6 November 2020, with an
effective period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. The renewed
agreement has been approved by the extraordinary general meeting of
Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine on 17 December 2020.

On 29 September 2016, Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising renewed the
advertising agency framework agreement with the ultimate holding
company for a term of three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019. Accordingly, the fees for the provision of specific services by Tong
Ren Tang Century Advertising to the ultimate holding company or its
subsidiaries and joint ventures under individual implementation agreement
shall be negotiated and determined by the parties with reference to the
actual quotation offered by the advertiser, which is at discount on the basis
of its published price list, plus a reasonable fee for the advertising agency
service of Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising, which is generally not higher
than 15% of the quotation offered by the advertiser.

On 28 February 2020, Tong Ren Tang Century Advertising renewed the
advertising agency framework agreement with the ultimate holding
company for a term of three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2022. Accordingly, the fees for the provision of specific services by Tong
Ren Tang Century Advertising to the ultimate holding company or its
subsidiaries and joint ventures under individual implementation agreement
shall be determined with reference to the actual quotation offered by third-
party advertising providers on the basis of their published price lists, plus a
reasonable fee for the advertising agency service provided by Tong Ren
Tang Century Advertising (generally not higher than 10% of the quote
offered by third-party advertising providers).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BT 22 5 o)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Key management compensation (c) fﬁ%ﬂAﬁ#m
Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) and EEBABBRENITMIERATEETNERE
senior management. The compensation paid or payable to key IBAEB - SHEERBATEESIEA B LN E
management for employee services is shown below: RS T -

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits % & F1 H 4 52 #i{& 8 18 7 7,056 9,370
Pension costs — defined contribution plans JBK& A A — EREHZETE] 26 406
7,082 9,776
(d) Balances with related parties (d)  BBE A v 15 R R B
As at 31 December, balances with related parties consisted of: R+—A=+—H8 BB AaTRGER:

As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBET T AREET T

Amounts due from related parties (Note(i)):

P W BE B 2 R RRR (MR () -

Subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding company
BRERATNFAARAELE

Trade receivables FEUZ BR 3K 345,133 183,286
Other financial assets at amortised cost LABEgRRK AT 2 H L & R E B 818 1,146
Prepayments TE{ BE 3K 1,046 160

346,997 184,592
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE—=—F —FF+=-H=+—HIFFZ

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(d) Balances with related parties (Continued)

Amounts due to related parties (Note(i)):

B8 W 5 A 5 a0
(d) BB A w) AR AR ()

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

2020 2019

RMB’000
AR®TR

RMB'000
ARE T

PEASBARE A R R (BEEE (i) -
Subsidiaries and joint ventures of the ultimate holding company
REERARNFRAIRAEERE
Trade payables )EHEE,TA 29,648 43,538
Other payables EL i &1 53X 24,745 29,513
54,393 73,051
Lease liabilities: 5 & & :
Ultimate holding company (Note (a)(ii)), (Note (a)(iii))
RESEEIR AR (M EE @)a1), BIEE (@) 62,807 3,026
Borrowings from a related party (Note(ii)):
EBANE A B & A KRR (B EE (i) ©
Ultimate holding company B 4% 3% 3% 2 7] 32,000 32,000
Notes: Bt -
()  The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and () WEEW/F?H A ARIBREARE  BRELERK
recoverable or repayable within twelve months. B WE+ZEARNEE -
(i) Borrowings from a related party are in the form of entrusted loans which (i) BAEF QA& mﬁﬂmﬁﬁ?‘ﬁ IEE’J??/ B3R
are unsecured, bear interest by reference to benchmark lending interest ME2EPEARRITRBPERE ﬂ FT

rate published by the People’s Bank of China with moderate decrease and
repayable within one year.

36. BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had aggregated banking facilities of
RMB1,037,775,000 (2019: RMB586,859,000) for loan and other trade
financing. As at 31 December 2020, the unutilised banking facilities
amounted to RMB737,002,000 (2019: RMB536,810,000).
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36. SRATRLE

R-ZZE-EF+_A=+—8 ' xEEHEEA

ﬁé}1,037,775,00075@&171%%%EF‘ (ZE—N
F: AR¥5868590007T) * A ARERME
SmME N E_FTF+_A=+—8 " %%
ZERBEEAARE 737002000 (ZZE— AN
F: AR%5368100007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—

37. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

As at 31 December, the Group had the following capital commitments
which were contracted but not provided for:

Property, plant and equipment 5 & M3 EEY) - R E K&

T F B 5 e e P e (46)

—EFEL A=+ —HILFE

ARk 3 IH
(a) BAAKGE
W+=—A=+—H" $EIEWTﬁ$§%E

B HMRNE D R E ANAGE

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H

2020 2019

RMB’000
ARBT T

RMB'000
ARETT

43,208 215,523

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various warehouse and factory premises under non-
cancellable operating leases.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets for
these leases (Note 7), except for short-term and low-value leases as set
out below.

Not later than one year —4F A

(b) BEAERE

AEEHRBNEELEMNBEER T AR
HEVTHAD -

BE-ZE—-NF—A—A8##"
HEnEREEE WE7)
HHEEMEEERER -

REE O HERE L
BIATFrEL 2 %2

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H

2020 2019

RMB’000
ARBT T

RMB'000
ARET T

5,792 7,337

As at 31 December 2020, undiscounted future lease payments amounted
to RMB11,832,000 (2019: RMB11,664,000) are committed by the Group
but the relevant lease periods have not commenced. These lease
commitments will be recognised as right-of-use assets upon the lease
commencement date in 2021.

RN EBERREBARAA o

RZB-EF+-_A=+—H xX&EEEE&H
BRABEHRTRAREENKERLARE
11,832000c(ZE—NLEFE+=-_A=+—H: A
ER®116640007T) c EEHEAEKHR =T
——FHENRRAREERRERAEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

38. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 38. ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁfﬁi@&%ﬁ%ﬁjﬁ
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company An|EEAMRR

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARET T
Assets T E
Non-current assets 3£ B & &
Property, plant and equipment 5 & MIZEEY) - 5 MR & 1,504,533 1,152,827
Right-of-use assets {2 Fi 1 & & 304,477 74,577
Intangible assets #E 2 & & 9,055 6,173
Investments in subsidiaries ¥f 72 Bl HI& & 1,429,477 1,383,154
Investments accounted for using the equity method & iz A BREVIZE 8,700 8,700
Prepayments for purchase of property, plant and equipment
BEREEY  WFEMKFREENRK 28,098 25,127
Deferred income tax assets 1& i AT 1557 B &= 16,062 15972
3,300,402 2,666,530

Current assets i B & &

Inventories 17 & 1,968,172 1,798,790
Trade and bills receivables & U BR 7 &2 =& 447,635 801,459
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEYZF A A ZIE 279,220 116,457
Other financial assets at amortised cost LAk gRAX At EMH AL S BLE & 3,441 17,580
Prepayments and other current assets TB15 5k & E At 7 & B 69,781 15,328
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
UARBEFEEEEH T AEMGERENEREE 50,824 27311
Short-term bank deposits 52 Hi$R 1777 5K 100,000 42,794
Cash and cash equivalents IR & M IR & EEW 1,301,900 1,607,044
4,220,973 4,426,763
Total assets & E 45+ 7,521,375 7,093,293
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZ

38. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 38. A EEAMBMELEREE R @)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) 2 i) i AU R a0

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETIT

Equity and liabilities % &2 & {&

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 5ZBR A QAT A H

Share capital f&Z< 1,280,784 1,280,784
Reserves (Note (a)) ff&f& (Fii3E ) 3,596,465 3,419,980
Total equity &5t 4,877,249 4,700,764
Liabilities & f&
Non-current liabilities 3E R B & &
Borrowings & 5K 481,500 1,222,826
Lease liabilities FHE & 1& 38,427 -
Deferred income — government grants & i 48 A — B i 48 B 37,978 39,294
557,905 1,262,120

Current liabilities R EI & &

Trade and bills payables &1 BR 5k & B 4% 455,308 391,034
Salary and welfare payables JEf T & & 1@ 5| & 26,777 27,186
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEFF 72 B3 E 220,652 127,445
Current income tax liabilities & HiFT ST & & 3,741 16,419
Other payables H b F& { 3% 310,140 429,726
Borrowings f& 5k 1,053,080 137,000
Lease liabilities 76 & & f& 16,523 1,599
2,086,221 1,130,409

Total liabilities & & & &t 2,644,126 2,392,529
Total equity and liabilities #3 & E#& 5t 7,521,375 7,093,293

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of RAMBHRREBAESER _FT-_—F=H

Directors on 26 March 2021 and was signed on its behalf. —tBEE TRRESZEHE -
Gu Hai Ou E/5 &8 Fang Jia Zhi ER&
Chairman EF K Director &%
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z—ZF_FF+_-H=—+—HIFFZF

38. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 38. AR|BEEAMENERET LR
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) 2 )8 e AR o

(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) AFERBEIX

Statutory
surplus  Statutory
reserve public

Capital fund welfare

reserve EEBER fund Taxreserve
B NEE ZELmE  RBEE  Retained
(Note 18(a)) ~ (Note 18(b))  (Note 18(b))  (Note 18(c)) earnings Total
(Kiet18@) (Miatisw)) (Kiatisw)) (Hiat18(c) BEWz  EEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTE ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Balance as at 1 January 2019

RZZE-NF—H—H&E 414,100 492,112 45,455 102,043 2,044,635 3,098,345
Profit for the year 4F & FI|JE - - - - 552,176 552,176
Appropriation from retained earnings
I YN - 55,246 - - (55,246) -
2018 dividends distributed to shareholders

of the Company
DEARARR_ZE-NFERE - - - - (230,541) (230,541)
Balance as at 31 December 2019
RZZE-NAE+-A=+—HB%%E 414,100 547,358 45,455 102,043 2,311,024 3,419,980
Balance as at 1 January 2020
RZZB_TF—-H—-HHAE 414,100 547,358 45,455 102,043 2,311,024 3,419,980
Profit for the year £ & & - - - - 381,410 381,410
Appropriation from retained earings
e YN - 38,172 - - (38,172) -
2019 dividends distributed to shareholders

of the Company

DEARARR - NFERE = = =

(204,925) (204,925)

Balance as at 31 December 2020
R-E-FEE+-A=1+—HAKE 414,100 585,530 45,455 102,043 2,449,337 3,596,465
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